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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am Councilman

          3  Stanley Michels and I am the Chair of the Committee

          4  on Environmental Protection. I want to welcome all

          5  of you to this important hearing of the Committee on

          6  Environmental Protection. All of our Committee

          7  meetings are important but this is an especially

          8  important one.

          9                 I extend a special welcome to those

         10  of you who have traveled from upstate watershed

         11  areas to join us today. Advocates from the watershed

         12  communities, we appreciate your presence here today,

         13  and look forward to hearing from you on your views.

         14                 I am also very pleased to have with

         15  us high ranking officials from two federal agencies,

         16  the Army Corps of Engineers and the Environmental

         17  Protection Agency of the United States, as well as

         18  the DEP Commissioner, Joel Miele, also very

         19  important.

         20                 We, as a City, have to work together

         21  with the upstate communities, to protect our City's

         22  invaluable drinking water supply, which is used by

         23  these communities as well as the City. We must

         24  maintain the purity of our water, the City's most

         25  vital asset, not just for our own benefit, but for
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          2  generations to come.

          3                 Today's hearing is on the proposed

          4  changes to the Army Corps of Engineers' Nationwide

          5  Permit Program, and the effect that such changes

          6  will have on our wetlands in the upstate watershed.

          7  This is an important issue to this Committee, as

          8  well as for the Council.

          9                 For many years the Council has been

         10  the leader in this effort to preserve one of the

         11  most pristine public water supplies anywhere, and

         12  happily we have had great cooperation from upstate

         13  New York, and we want that to continue.

         14                 As all of you undoubtedly know,

         15  wetlands in the watershed play a critical role in

         16  the protection of the quality of our drinking water.

         17  They act as a natural filtration system, literally

         18  purifying our drinking water by removing sediments

         19  from run-off detoxifying pesticides and other

         20  chemicals and reducing the impacts of nutrients such

         21  as nitrogen.

         22                 Wetlands also help to protect the

         23  watershed from the impacts of floods, provide

         24  critical habitat for fisheries and wildlife and

         25  stabilize the shore lines of water bodies in the
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          2  watershed.

          3                 New York City's watershed is often

          4  referred to as a living watershed, in reference to

          5  the many thousands who make their homes, pursue

          6  their livelihoods, work their farms and raise their

          7  children there, and where there is human activity,

          8  there will always been environmental impacts.

          9                 Our challenge has been and will

         10  always continue to be, take all reasonable steps to

         11  preserve the natural systems that can absorb the

         12  impacts of the human activity.

         13                 At the same time, consideration must

         14  be given to special circumstances faced by upstate

         15  neighbors. We must work all together in order to

         16  protect the special wetlands areas so that we are

         17  not forced to construct a filtration plant.  It

         18  would be both shameful and sadly ironic if the

         19  failure to protect our natural filtration system

         20  results in us having to construct an artificial one.

         21                 The Committee has reviewed documents

         22  prepared by the Corps of Engineers and the EPA and

         23  the New York State Department of Environmental

         24  Conservation, as well as correspondence from DEP's

         25  top water quality specialists and from environmental
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          2  organizations.

          3                 Today we will explore this issue with

          4  the aim of reaching a more focused understanding of

          5  this vital policy question. I am confident that

          6  through discussion and analysis we can do so and

          7  continue to work together.

          8                 Before we have a presentation by the

          9  Army Corps of Engineers, I would like to identify

         10  the members of the Council who are here. We have

         11  Council Member Robles from Brooklyn, Council Member

         12  Sabini from Queens, Council Member Provenzano from

         13  the Bronx, Council Member Carrion from the Bronx,

         14  Council Member Fiala from Staten Island and Council

         15  Member Miller from New York and Council Member

         16  Leffler from Queens. At this point I would like to

         17  introduce you to the Speaker of the City Council,

         18  the Honorable Peter Vallone.

         19                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Thank you very much,

         20  Mr. Chairman, and I want to especially thank you

         21  because this is a very sensitive topic, nobody knows

         22  that better than you and this Committee. It was this

         23  Committee under your leadership that first brought

         24  upstate political considerations and downstate

         25  political considerations to the table, and together
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          2  with people in this audience like Robert Kennedy who

          3  has been a voice in the wilderness concerning how to

          4  protect probably the nation's greatest water supply

          5  right here in New York State for New York City.

          6                 The issue today before us is the

          7  difference between what is the right thing to do and

          8  what is the political thing to do. The right thing

          9  to do is to keep our water supply as pure and as

         10  perfect as it possibly can be.

         11                 In addition to that, to do it in the

         12  best possible manner, shape and form. Now, there has

         13  been tremendous misunderstanding and misinformation

         14  between State interests and City interests

         15  concerning the developing of State land and

         16  concerning the preservation of our water supply.

         17                 No one has been more in the interest

         18  and foremost in protecting our water supply than our

         19  own Department of Environmental Protection and our

         20  own Mayors in the history of the City of New York,

         21  no less this Council which was the first one that

         22  had the nerve to get involved in a situation and try

         23  and bring upstate people together with downstate

         24  people. Nobody knows the political considerations

         25  better than I, who attempted to run for Governor in
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          2  the State of New York and had to make people

          3  understand that there is no difference between

          4  protecting our own water supply and protecting what

          5  is good for everybody else in the State of New York.

          6                 The issue today is what led the

          7  Department of Environmental Protection to completely

          8  reverse its position and change the protection of

          9  the water supply system, rather than the development

         10  of the water supply system, which makes no sense,

         11  and I am deeply interested in the testimony of the

         12  Commissioner, and what led them to change a stated

         13  policy of protecting probably the world's greatest

         14  water supply system and at a possibility of costing

         15  this City taxpayers billions of dollars in building

         16  more filtration plants.

         17                 Now, we have, thankfully, the Army

         18  Corps of Engineers here who have superseding

         19  jurisdiction, who as far as I am concerned, are also

         20  interested in the protection of our water supply,

         21  and I am very anxious to hear from them as to what

         22  they think or why it would be better somehow for New

         23  York City people to have further development in our

         24  watershed system, I would love to hear from them and

         25  I would love to hear from the Commissioner. I think
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          2  that basically what we do today is very, very

          3  important, not just for us, but for everybody in the

          4  State of New York, to understand that when it is all

          5  said and done, the most correct governmental thing

          6  to do is the right thing to do, and how anybody can

          7  disagree with the fact that we should be doing

          8  whatever we can to preserve our water supply system

          9  and to prevent development which would spoil it, is

         10  an interesting area to explore and I am anxious to

         11  get on with it, so let's get on with it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Our first

         13  witness will be the Army Corps of Engineers and they

         14  are Joseph Sweebode and Roberto Barbosa of the New

         15  York District, US Army Corps of Engineers. And while

         16  you are getting ready and there will be a slide

         17  presentation to orient everyone and put this in

         18  perspective so that we can understand exactly what

         19  the situation is presently and what are the

         20  suggestions and possibilities in the future.

         21                 Gentlemen, welcome. Since we are not

         22  having a reporter here, we ask you to please

         23  identify yourselves when you speak so that we know

         24  who you are.

         25                 Welcome.
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          2                 MR. SWEEBODE: Thank you.

          3                 Mr. Speaker, Chairman Michels,

          4  distinguished Council members, and concerned

          5  citizens, I am Joseph J. Sweebode, the Chief of the

          6  Regulatory Branch for the US Army Corps of

          7  Engineers, New York District, and on behalf of the

          8  Corps of Engineers, I appreciate the opportunity to

          9  brief you today on this important subject.

         10                 With me here today, on my left is Mr.

         11  Roberto Barbosa, a Senior Project Manager at the New

         12  York District Corps of Engineers, and on my right is

         13  Mr. James Palmer, Assistant District Counsel.

         14                 I am here to briefly discuss with you

         15  today proposed modifications to the Corps of

         16  Engineers Nationwide Permit Program, particularly as

         17  it would apply to those areas within the New York

         18  City Water Supply Watershed.

         19                 As a brief bit of discussion on our

         20  history, in regulating activities in waters of the

         21  United States, I would like to describe the

         22  authorities which we regulate under.

         23                 Specifically we regulate work in

         24  navigable waters under Section 10 of the Rivers and

         25  Harbors Act, and have been doing that since the late
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          2  1800s.

          3                 Since 1972 we have been regulating

          4  discharges of pollutants into waters of the United

          5  States, particularly fill, under the Federal Clean

          6  Water Act, Section 404. It is Section 404 of the

          7  Clean Water Act that pertains to activities within

          8  the New York City water supply watershed.

          9                 At this time I am going to show you

         10  some slides that will briefly describe some of the

         11  background behind the Nationwide Permit Program and

         12  some options that we will lay out for protection of

         13  the watershed under the Nationwide Permit Program.

         14                 First, I think it is important to

         15  provide you some general concepts and some

         16  definitions for the purpose of this discussion.

         17                 First, we are here to discuss

         18  Nationwide Permits. Nationwide Permits are a type of

         19  general permit that authorizes activities on a

         20  nationwide basis unless specifically limited.

         21                 The Nationwide Permit that we are

         22  here to talk about today is Nationwide Permit Number

         23  26. The proposal that is before us is to replace

         24  Nationwide Permit Number 26 by adding five new

         25  Nationwide Permits, nationwide, nationally, and
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          2  modifying six existing Nationwide Permits.

          3                 Nationwide Permit 26 today authorizes

          4  discharged of dredge of fill material into waters

          5  and wetlands that are specifically above the head

          6  waters. Head waters are described as locations that

          7  have flows or are associated with flows less than

          8  five cubic feet per second.

          9                 The new Nationwide Permits would

         10  allow discharges to potentially occur in areas below

         11  the headwaters, therefore below areas that have a

         12  minimum flow of five cubic feet per second.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Sweebode,

         14  just so people understand, there has been a change

         15  of thinking here, it was assumed for years when 26

         16  was put into effect that we didn't need as much

         17  protection for above the head waters as below the

         18  head waters; is that correct?

         19                 MR. SWEEBODE: That is correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is why

         21  there is the distinction between above the head

         22  waters and below the head waters.

         23                 MR. SWEEBODE: That is correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

         25                 MR. SWEEBODE: On the slide you will

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            14

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  see a definition of proposed regional conditions.

          3  Regional conditions are specific limitations that

          4  would apply to specific, proposed or modified

          5  Nationwide Permits, specific regions or both, with

          6  the purpose of furthering the Corps' goals for the

          7  regional conditioning process.

          8                 Another term you will hear me use

          9  this morning is "preconstruction notification". That

         10  is for some Nationwide Permits the developer or the

         11  applicant or a permit must provide in writing

         12  specific information to the Corps and the review

         13  agencies. And let me stop and say reviewing agencies

         14  are in this area New York City Department of

         15  Environmental Protection, New York State Department

         16  of Environmental Conservation, New York State

         17  Department of State, the Federal Environmental

         18  Protection Agency, United States Fish and Wildlife

         19  Service and the National Marine Fishery Service.

         20  They receive information describing the proposed

         21  activity. That will be called, as I said,

         22  notification. That process will ultimately result in

         23  a determination by the Corps as to whether an

         24  activity can be covered under the Nationwide general

         25  permit or whether in fact it must go through a more
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          2  stringent individual permit review.

          3                 General considerations behind the

          4  regional conditioning program is that the proposed

          5  regional conditions must not result in a substantial

          6  increase in workload to the Corps.

          7                 Secondly, that the proposed regional

          8  condition must not place an undue burden on the

          9  regulated public.

         10                 And third, the environmental benefits

         11  of the proposed regional conditions must equal or

         12  exceed the environmental benefits provided by the

         13  current Nationwide Permit Number 26.

         14                 The goals of the regional

         15  conditioning of the Nationwide General Permits are

         16  as follows:

         17                 - Ensure effective protection at the

         18  local level of wetlands and other water resources.

         19                 - Ensure that the proposed and

         20  modified Nationwide Permits will have demonstrably

         21  less environmental impact than the Nationwide

         22  Permits they replace.

         23                 Third, to ensure compliance with the

         24  statutory requirement that the Nationwide Permits

         25  result in no more than minimal adverse affects on

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            16

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  the aquatic environment.

          3                 Fourth, support the Administration'

          4  goal of no net loss of aquatic functions and values

          5  on a watershed and programmatic basis.

          6                 At this time I would like to quickly

          7  describe six options that we are consideration for

          8  regional conditioning within the New York City water

          9  supply watershed.

         10                 As I begin this part of the

         11  presentation, I would like to state that the Corps

         12  of Engineers, based on our experience and expertise

         13  in this field does believe that regional conditions

         14  are necessary in the watershed to protect the

         15  sensitive waters and wetlands of this area.

         16                 Option 1 is what I will describe as

         17  the least environmentally protective option. Under

         18  such option, the regional conditions would there

         19  would be no regional conditions, and in fact then

         20  discharges between zero and one-third of an acre

         21  would be allowed to proceed with no Corps of

         22  Engineers' review required.

         23                 For discharges greater than one-third

         24  of an acre up to three acres, the Corps of Engineers

         25  and the reviewing agencies would review notification
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          2  of the proposed activity to determine whether it

          3  could proceed under the Nationwide Permit or whether

          4  an individual permit would be required.

          5                 And for discharges greater than three

          6  acres, the proposed activity would require an

          7  individual permit.

          8                 A second option would be for

          9  discharges into wetlands or waters between zero and

         10  three acres that the Corps of Engineers and

         11  reviewing agencies would receive notification of the

         12  proposed activity.

         13                 For discharges greater than three

         14  acres, the proposed activity would require an

         15  individual permit.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Now, these

         17  particular options, which you are considering, are

         18  for those below the head waters?

         19                 MR. SWEEBODE: These options would be

         20  for areas both above and below the head waters.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Above and below

         22  the head waters?

         23                 MR. SWEEBODE: Yes, sir.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I see. And

         25  including an area above an acreage of 12.4 acres,
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          2  which the current jurisdiction of the state is?

          3                 MR. SWEEBODE: This would include all

          4  wetlands within the watershed, both those regulated

          5  under New York State law that are above 12.4 acres

          6  and those below 12.4 acres.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And also, these

          8  are the six you have come up with, but you are not

          9  limiting your options to these six, are you?

         10                 MR. SWEEBODE: That is correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

         12                 MR. SWEEBODE: A third option would be

         13  for discharges between zero and one-third of an acre

         14  that no Corps of Engineers review would be required.

         15  For private projects proposing discharges greater

         16  than one-third up to one acre and for public

         17  projects proposing discharges greater than one-third

         18  up to three acres, the Corps and the reviewing

         19  agencies would receive and review notification of

         20  the proposed activity.

         21                 For private projects proposing a

         22  discharge greater than one acre, the proposed

         23  activity would require an individual permit, and for

         24  public projects proposing a discharge greater than

         25  three acres, the proposed activity would require an

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            19

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  individual's permit.

          3                 Option 4 would require that

          4  discharges between zero and one-third acre not

          5  require a Corps of Engineers review. For discharges

          6  greater than one-third of an acre up to one acre,

          7  the Corps and the reviewing agencies would receive

          8  and review notification of the proposed activity and

          9  for any and all discharges greater than one acre an

         10  individual permit would be required.

         11                 A fifth option would be for

         12  discharges between zero and one acre, the Corps of

         13  Engineers and the reviewing agencies would receive

         14  notification of the proposed activity, for any and

         15  all discharges greater than one acre an individual

         16  permit would be required.

         17                 And finally, Option 6, which is the

         18  option that was proposed by the New York District

         19  Corps of Engineers in a November 18th, 1998 public

         20  notice, would have allowed discharges between zero

         21  and one-third acre to proceed without a Corps of

         22  Engineers review, but then that all discharges

         23  greater than one-third of an acre would require an

         24  individual permit.

         25                 Mr. Chairman, that completes my
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          2  remarks on this topic, I would be happy to try to

          3  answer any questions.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay. Well,

          5  first, thank you very much for coming here.

          6                 You had made a recommendation prior

          7  to this hearing, on November 18th, 1988, you had

          8  made a recommendation and that was a recommendation

          9  for Option number 6.

         10                 MR. SWEEBODE: That is correct.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What is your

         12  situation, as far as, what are you recommending now?

         13  What is the status of your recommendation procedure?

         14                 MR. SWEEBODE: Mr. Chairman, in

         15  response to public dissemination of information

         16  surrounding Option Number 6, there was a substantial

         17  amount of debate that occurred, a number of

         18  discussions have occurred between my agency, and not

         19  only other agencies but the general public and

         20  members of municipalities in the watershed as well.

         21                 We have not declared that Option 6 is

         22  the option that will ultimately be chosen. It was a

         23  proposal when it was described in November of 1998.

         24                 We are interested in working with not

         25  only the Watershed Council but this Council as well,
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          2  and the other agencies and interested stakeholders

          3  to see if we can develop an option that is in the

          4  best interest of all parties.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So you no longer

          6  are recommending Option Number 6?

          7                 MR. SWEEBODE: Option Number 6 remains

          8  our option of record.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Can you -- can

         10  the Committee obtain a copy of an analysis that led

         11  to the selection of Option 6? Is that a matter of

         12  public record?

         13                 MR. SWEEBODE: We can provide you

         14  information that we have that did move us toward

         15  this option.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, the

         17  Speaker would like to ask you a question.

         18                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Thank you.

         19                 The part that is puzzling to me is

         20  when you first came out with Option 6, unless I am

         21  wrong, please correct me, you received notification

         22  from the New York City Department of Environmental

         23  Protection saying that even though of all of these

         24  options that you have on here this is the strictest,

         25  and when I say strictest, the one that is most
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          2  conducive to protecting New York City's -- I

          3  understand we are talking about a national situation

          4  here, but I am concerned about New York City, which

          5  I believe you agree is a sensitive area that needs

          6  special protection?

          7                 MR. SWEEBODE: That is correct.

          8                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Okay.

          9                 Now, when you received Option 6, my

         10  information is that you received a letter from the

         11  New York City Department of Environmental Protection

         12  saying that the New York City Department of

         13  Environmental didn't think this was strict enough,

         14  as a matter of fact wanted you to add more

         15  restrictions; isn't that so? Didn't you receive a

         16  letter from the Department of Environmental?

         17                 MR. SWEEBODE: That's true.

         18                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Okay.

         19                 And it would seem as though that

         20  would be the proper position for this City to take,

         21  because even under Option 6, we are talking about

         22  discharges, you are talking about raw sewerage, are

         23  you know?

         24                 MR. SWEEBODE: No, we are specifically

         25  talking about discharges of fill material for

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  development within waters and wetlands.

          3                 SPEAKER VALLONE: And is that all you

          4  are talking about?

          5                 MR. SWEEBODE: Yes, sir.

          6                 SPEAKER VALLONE: All right. Now,

          7  discharge into a water supply system would do what?

          8                 MR. SWEEBODE: It effectively would

          9  destroy or deteriorate the wetlands and water

         10  resources that act as the filtering system and also

         11  provide habitat and other functional values.

         12                 SPEAKER VALLONE: So, even under this,

         13  what appear to be your strictest option, you have no

         14  Corps of Engineer review required for discharges

         15  between zero and one-third acre; that's correct?

         16                 MR. SWEEBODE: Correct.

         17                 SPEAKER VALLONE: As far as you are

         18  concerned, if I want to build a tennis court and I

         19  am a property owner in a sensitive area of

         20  watershed, I can build a tennis court and I don't

         21  have to get your permission at all?

         22                 MR. SWEEBODE: That was the proposal

         23  laid out in number six, that's correct.

         24                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Which would be

         25  rather frightening to me, since I am a New York City
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          2  resident, I would want at least my own New York City

          3  Department of Environmental Protection to be

          4  notified, would that not make some sense?

          5                 MR. SWEEBODE: That would make sense.

          6                 SPEAKER VALLONE: And yet, then you

          7  received a second letter, as I recall, from the

          8  Department of Environmental Protection saying forget

          9  the first letter, or, you know, maybe this is too

         10  tough, or maybe we don't need any notification; do

         11  you recall receiving any kind of letter the second

         12  letter from DEP?

         13                 MR. SWEEBODE: Yes, we did.

         14                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Do you have any

         15  rational as to what changed the policy here?

         16                 MR. SWEEBODE: I will not provide any

         17  speculation on it. I do know that there is a large

         18  amount of debate that has gone on in discussion

         19  about the need for the restrictions at the federal

         20  level in light of some particular view that the

         21  local regulation and agreements that have been

         22  reached in the watershed would be equally protective

         23  against projects that did not make or were not --

         24                 SPEAKER VALLONE: You're concerned,

         25  you're concerned for New York City's water supply;
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          2  is that not correct?

          3                 MR. SWEEBODE: That is correct.

          4                 SPEAKER VALLONE: And in any water

          5  supply that might be endangered by building even up

          6  to one-third of an acre?

          7                 MR. SWEEBODE: That's correct.

          8                 SPEAKER VALLONE: It would be rather

          9  surprising to you if the local authority said, well,

         10  we don't really care, I mean that is not our

         11  concern, we are not worried about minor development,

         12  it is not going to really affect our water supply;

         13  wouldn't that be rather surprising to you?

         14                 MR. SWEEBODE: We were somewhat

         15  surprised by the letter, yes, sir.

         16                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Thank you very much.

         17                 MR. SWEEBODE: You are welcome.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Just to get back

         19  on that particular subject, Option 6 talks about one

         20  third of an acre?

         21                 MR. SWEEBODE: That's correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Up to one-third

         23  of an acre no regulation, and no notification.

         24                 Some of your options also talk to

         25  three acres. Another option is set up to three

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            26

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  acres. I mean, the question in my mind is what if

          3  say 20 people who are on the wetlands decide that

          4  they want to do some development and each one of

          5  them has an application to you for a third of an

          6  acre or each one as to three acres, depending on the

          7  option; what are you going to do in that event?

          8  Because obviously it is going to be covered on

          9  larger areas.

         10                 MR. SWEEBODE: At any time when we

         11  become aware that there is development pressure that

         12  is substantial upon either an individual wetland or

         13  a series of wetlands, we do have authority, clear

         14  authority to take what we call discretionary

         15  authority to review that work under an individual

         16  permit. We have done that in the past and we would

         17  use that tool as appropriate.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And how would

         19  you find out about it?

         20                 MR. SWEEBODE: Normally we would find

         21  out about it from the local municipality coming in

         22  and notifying us or by virtue of individual

         23  developers coming in for verification that they

         24  otherwise were covered by the Nationwide Permit

         25  Program.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Because we are

          3  talking about its accumulative impact.

          4                 MR. SWEEBODE: That's correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And even though

          6  you maybe limit it to either a third or three acres,

          7  putting it together you may cover who knows how many

          8  acres of the wetlands and have a terrific impact.

          9                 So, you would have no one going out

         10  there. You don't have a group of people who would be

         11  able to give you the notification on that type of

         12  thing?

         13                 MR. SWEEBODE: We have people who are

         14  doing enforcement and who are doing surveillance.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How many people

         16  do you have?

         17                 MR. SWEEBODE: We have got about 12

         18  people in New York State.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In New York

         20  State.

         21                 And let me ask you another question.

         22  When someone notifies you that they have a third of

         23  an acre, where you don't get notification, we are

         24  told of a third of an acre; does anybody ever go out

         25  to check and see if it is really a third of an acre?
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          2                 MR. SWEEBODE: Yes, we do. Not on all

          3  occasions but we do on many occasions.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Miller.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Just a brief

          6  question.

          7                 So with regard to there not being any

          8  necessity, a proposal that there not be any

          9  necessity for notification for development for

         10  discharges of less than a third of an acre, is there

         11  anything to prevent somebody from doing a little bit

         12  less than a third of an acre, waiting a year and

         13  then doing a little bit less than a third of an acre

         14  and not even a year, six months doing less than a

         15  third of an acre?

         16                 MR. SWEEBODE: There is a certain

         17  amount of self-policing that does go into this

         18  program. There is a possibility that could occur.

         19                 I will tell you that we have had

         20  cases, actual enforcement cases where we have seen

         21  someone going back after a year and trying to fill

         22  additional wetlands.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: But under this

         24  proposal, would it be clear that it would be

         25  unlawful to do that? Or would it be actually
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          2  acceptable from the point of view -- I mean from the

          3  point of view of the regulation, if I own, let's say

          4  I decide that I want to do a tennis court and I put

          5  in a tennis court and later on I decide I would like

          6  a putting green, so I put in a putting green, and

          7  then I decide I want a second tennis court because

          8  my friends are coming over or whatever it is -- not

          9  tennis court, whatever it is. My question is, would

         10  that be against the regulation or would that be

         11  consistent with the proposed regulations?

         12                 MR. SWEEBODE: The regulations lay out

         13  that the project must be a single and complete

         14  project that is undertaken under this nationwide

         15  permit.

         16                 So, in essence, if someone were

         17  coming in and looking at buildings separate and

         18  distinct developments, one-third or less of an acre

         19  --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: That would

         21  require no notification.

         22                 MR. SWEEBODE: That might not require

         23  notification, that's correct.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Okay, thank

         25  you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Robles.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chairman.

          5                 If I may, I would like to pick up

          6  with the Speaker's line of questioning, because for

          7  some of us who might be on this Committee, we may

          8  not be as experts like you are, but we rely upon,

          9  since I guess this hearing is, or these proposals

         10  are based upon you, so let me try to understand

         11  this.

         12                 The Speaker began by saying to you

         13  Option 6 and you pointed out that these proposals

         14  somehow had a public notice and was held November of

         15  '98. And clearly, you said what they were.

         16                 MR. SWEEBODE: Yes, sir.

         17                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Then the Speaker

         18  asked you about some letters that went back and

         19  forth from a -- forget the state but from a

         20  municipality or could be a town village since in New

         21  York State not everybody is the big five big cities,

         22  but it is a local government, and basically sort of

         23  the dentist where you were trying to find the right

         24  tooth and then all of a sudden we found it and got

         25  to the point where even you went on record saying
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          2  that you were baffled by those letters since the

          3  position, the original position of the municipality

          4  even was not too thrilled with your proposal; is

          5  that what I heard?

          6                 MR. SWEEBODE: That is what you heard,

          7  sir, yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Now the second

          9  letter apparently made a complete 180 degree turn.

         10  Here is my question as a lay person: Ultimately you

         11  are the defenders, you are the regulators and you

         12  are the ones who are obligated to protect whatever

         13  the issue is before us today; is that correct?

         14                 MR. SWEEBODE: We are responsible for

         15  putting this regional conditioning program in

         16  effect.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Right. So,

         18  even when the local municipality changes its

         19  position, but it is you who ultimately has the

         20  burden and responsibility to protect, why the

         21  decision has not been made?

         22                 If you are supposed to be the one who

         23  ultimately makes the ultimate decision based upon

         24  not whoever it is, where it comes from, but what you

         25  are obligated to do and I think that was the
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          2  question that I thought was being led to and I

          3  didn't hear the answer. You proposed something;

          4  that's correct?

          5                 MR. SWEEBODE: That's correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: You laid out a

          7  formula, why are you not moving on it?

          8                 MR. SWEEBODE: There is a public

          9  process that is continuing, we are not at the point

         10  where the final decision is yet to have been made on

         11  this issue.

         12                 In response to the substantial debate

         13  and criticism of the proposal as laid out in the

         14  November '98 public notice, we have involved

         15  ourselves in discussions with City, state and

         16  federal representatives and concerned citizens on

         17  both sides of this issue to determine whether there

         18  is an approach that will meet the interests of all

         19  parties and still be environmentally protective of

         20  the watershed.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: One more

         22  because I think I heard you say to the Speaker also,

         23  when the Speaker asked questions, and I believe in

         24  your statement you pointed out that besides the

         25  local municipality, you also wanted to have a

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            33

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  partnership with the Council, and I must say that

          3  the institution is led by the person who asked you

          4  the question by the institution's membership

          5  election and that is the Speaker; in this dialogue,

          6  have there been any communications between -- since

          7  there seems to be, although you heard a lot, now it

          8  is a change of direction, or at least position, by

          9  the Executive Administration, has there been any

         10  kind of back and forth with the leadership of the

         11  Council?

         12                 MR. SWEEBODE: We have received a

         13  letter that is being heavily considered in the

         14  review process.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I am sorry, I

         16  got lost there.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They received a

         18  letter that is being considered.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Okay, thank

         20  you.

         21                 MR. SWEEBODE: You are welcome.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member

         23  Boyland.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: I just have a

         25  brief question. To piggy-back on what my counterpart
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          2  question was. Is there a restriction at all on what

          3  you can do on this particular land? Let's just say,

          4  he used the tennis court, let's just say I wanted to

          5  do a recycling plant on that particular land and had

          6  gone through the process of a year, after I did the

          7  tennis court I wanted to do some more development on

          8  that land, and it is something that may be hazardous

          9  to the community, how do we go about saying, well,

         10  these are some of the restrictions?

         11                 Is there a list somewhere saying that

         12  this is a hazard and you won't be able to do that on

         13  this particular land.

         14                 MR. SWEEBODE: There is a list of

         15  restrictions that would be in effect for use of any

         16  one of the nationwide permits. Each one has its own

         17  individual sets of conditions and restrictions.

         18                 We do rely on local municipalities

         19  and others to notify us when there are proposals to

         20  do filling in wetlands, particularly those that are

         21  large but also those that are small where the

         22  facility that is proposed to be developed may have

         23  impact above and beyond those directly related to

         24  the fill. It would be the air quality or effect on

         25  some other --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Exactly,

          3  because permits have to be received to do this kind

          4  of thing I would assume.

          5                 MR. SWEEBODE: That is correct.

          6                 And as I mentioned, if in fact one

          7  did propose to fill less than a third of an acre for

          8  something that was not considered initially to be in

          9  the public interest or had the potential to have

         10  some environmental impact above and beyond minimal,

         11  we have full authority to review that project as an

         12  individual permit.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, thank

         14  you.

         15                 MR. SWEEBODE: You are welcome.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member

         17  Freed.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thanks.

         19                 Have you done any estimate as to

         20  what, if this last option is adopted, have you done

         21  any analysis as to what the likely impact would be

         22  on the watershed area? Have you looked at little

         23  development, lots of development, in between

         24  development?

         25                 MR. SWEEBODE: Under Option 6 we would
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          2  anticipate that the vast majority of activities that

          3  we have seen historically would not require an

          4  individual permit with full public review.

          5                 One of the things that does happen

          6  between the zero and one third of an acre is you do

          7  create some incentive by not requiring a public

          8  review for developers to reduce or minimize their

          9  projects to the minimum extent as far as effecting

         10  wetlands, and in fact that may have a beneficial

         11  impact from a larger perspective by reducing fills

         12  substantially that might otherwise come in for

         13  permitting.

         14                 I will mention to you that the

         15  numbers that we have historically indicate that the

         16  overall workload for us in the watershed has been

         17  relatively small and it was in part because of that

         18  that we felt comfortable going out with Option 6

         19  which would require the vast majority of activities

         20  to require the individual permit.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay.

         22                 On the other hand, it would be an

         23  incentive to have lower developments, but indeed it

         24  would also be an incentive to have developments

         25  where prior to that time you may not have had a
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          2  development.

          3                 MR. SWEEBODE: That is possible, yes,

          4  Ma'am.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: So it may be a

          6  different sort of development that the ultimate

          7  impact on the wetlands could potentially be much

          8  larger than current impacts are because of the

          9  extent?

         10                 MR. SWEEBODE: I think it is important

         11  to note that today there exists a Nationwide Permit

         12  which does allow this amount of fill to go forward

         13  without an individual permit.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: The only thing

         15  I am concerned about I think is having gone through,

         16  not only the whole questions about how to protect

         17  the wetlands, but at one point finding out that the

         18  most protected streams in the State of New York are

         19  the streams that feed into the Connecticut water

         20  supply, I think a lot of us felt that we should have

         21  the same sort of protection for the City of New York

         22  and for our drinking water. And we feel that

         23  anything that would in any way lessen the current

         24  protections, we are rather shocked and chagrined

         25  that the City would agree to it and we would
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          2  certainly be amazed that you would go along with it

          3  since we are very concerned about not only keeping a

          4  good water supply but also not having, ultimately

          5  having to put a filtration system in which could

          6  cost us upwards of $8 billion and that I don't think

          7  the residents of New York City are prepared to pay

          8  for.

          9                 MR. SWEEBODE: I appreciate that

         10  concern, and as I did mention during my opening

         11  remarks, the Corps of Engineers does believe that

         12  regional conditions are necessary on the Nationwide

         13  Permit Program to protect the wetlands and water

         14  resources of the New York City water supply

         15  watershed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: We agree. Thank

         17  you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Sabini.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chairman. Just to follow up on what Council Member

         21  Freed was asking.

         22                 What part of the decision-making

         23  process is your own sister agency, EPA, in terms of

         24  their mandates to us about filtration or filtration

         25  avoidance, what input do they have into your process

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            39

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  that would ease burdens on localities, both upstate

          3  and here in the City, to not have to spend the

          4  billions of dollars that might be required if EPA

          5  takes very tough stances on filtration?

          6                 MR. SWEEBODE: Sir, we are actively

          7  participating in discussions with EPA. We have met

          8  with them twice in the last two-week period to

          9  discuss these regional conditions, and we are

         10  working with them to try to come to some consensus

         11  as to what are appropriate regional conditions for

         12  the Nationwides that are environmentally protected

         13  and do meet the issues that you have described.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Just let me

         15  reiterate, it is important that people understand

         16  that the decision as to whether or not we have met

         17  the conditions for the filtration avoidance

         18  determination is up to EPA.

         19                 MR. SWEEBODE: That's correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And not up to

         21  the Corps of Engineers.

         22                 MR. SWEEBODE: That is correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The Corps of

         24  Engineers has a decision as to whether or not there

         25  is adequate protection of the watershed and they may
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          2  comply with the various laws of the United States.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Right.

          4                 MR. SWEEBODE: That's correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay. Two

          6  different decision-making bodies.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: But one

          8  affects the other.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Absolutely, no

         10  question about it.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: And further,

         12  while you are setting a nationwide policy, EPA's

         13  filtration policies up until now have sort of not

         14  looked favorable upon the New York system, because

         15  the New York system being so unique in its capacity

         16  and frankly much of its marvel of transporting the

         17  water over such, so far a length, that we have sort

         18  of been I think unfairly looked upon by EPA in many

         19  cases as being different so therefore we must be

         20  wrong. And while regional considerations should be

         21  taken into account, I feel very strongly that EPA,

         22  looking in a macro level on all nationwide water

         23  systems really doesn't look as kindly perhaps as

         24  they should on our water system in terms of

         25  filtration avoidance. So, the dialogue that you have
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          2  with your sister agency I see is critical, both for

          3  water purity and frankly, for the cost to the

          4  ratepayers. You know, New York City, our friends at

          5  the Water Board announced a good -- you know, we are

          6  talking about purity, but let's also talk about cost

          7  here, folks at the Water Board announced a Good

          8  Friday massacre of the ratepayers here where we are

          9  getting hammered again at record rates,

         10  single-family homeowners, co-op owners are taking a

         11  real hit here, and if we have to build filtration

         12  plants at enormous capacity, we are going to be

         13  taking hits into the next two generations to pay for

         14  those.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Sabini, I

         16  must say that the EPA is going to be testifying, you

         17  will hear their position.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: My understanding

         20  has always been that they have been very, very tough

         21  on the watershed.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is the

         24  reason that we are putting the filtration plant in,

         25  because they are overly protective.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: No, I

          3  understand. That is the dialectic that we work with,

          4  we want pure water, at the same time we think our

          5  water is pure enough not to filtrate it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But you will

          7  hear from EPA following this testimony.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Mr. Carrion.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Mr. Chairman,

         11  I will pass on my question. It was about filtration.

         12  I will hold off.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I think we need

         14  some clarification. Would you please give us a

         15  clarification as to the procedures with respect to

         16  the Nationwide Permit and the individual permit?

         17                 MR. SWEEBODE: The Nationwide Permit

         18  is a general permit, the proposal is to issue those

         19  Nationwide Permits across the nation and to

         20  regionally condition them locally to ensure that

         21  they are protective of the important environmental

         22  system wherever the location may be.

         23                 We are the New York district and we

         24  are looking at creating a regional condition program

         25  across the eastern half of New York State, and we
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          2  are looking to address significant resources above

          3  and beyond the watershed.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But with respect

          5  to that, there is -- that is a shorter procedure to

          6  use by the individual permit seeker.

          7                 MR. SWEEBODE: That is absolutely

          8  correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It doesn't

         10  require notification of local -- of other parties

         11  and most times requires only preconstruction

         12  notification to the agency; isn't that correct?

         13                 MR. SWEEBODE: That's correct.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And it is less

         15  stringent in its requirements to a person who wants

         16  the permit than the individual permitting; isn't

         17  that right?

         18                 MR. SWEEBODE: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Which you are

         20  now going to explain what that is.

         21                 MR. SWEEBODE: Yes, I will, sir.

         22                 The individual permit is a permit

         23  that requires a full public interest review process.

         24  What that means is that there will be a public

         25  notice to agencies, to members of the public and
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          2  concerned citizens who are interested in proposals

          3  in a specific geographic area.

          4                 That public notice will be a vehicle

          5  to collect public comment, and the information that

          6  is generated will be utilized in ultimately deciding

          7  on the individual permit application.

          8                 There is a requirement that there be

          9  an environmental assessment or an environmental

         10  impact statement under that process to look at the

         11  individual project. There is also a requirement that

         12  there be a full evaluation of impacts upon the

         13  public interest, and upon various factors to

         14  determine compliance with what is called Clean Water

         15  Act Guidelines.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And which of

         17  those permitting processes would be more protective

         18  of the watershed?

         19                 MR. SWEEBODE: The individual permit

         20  process, absolutely.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

         22                 And the decision to determine what

         23  process we will be using for the watershed, who is

         24  going to make that decision?

         25                 MR. SWEEBODE: The Corps of Engineers
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          2  is totally responsible for making that decision on

          3  the regional conditions and the Nationwide Permit

          4  Program.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Now in a

          6  situation where you have, if the situation should

          7  arise where you have a protocol which would call for

          8  the Nationwide permitting process and where there

          9  will be some notification, who would be making that

         10  decision, even though say the City of New York would

         11  come to you and say, look, we don't like what is

         12  going on out there, give you all sorts of reasons

         13  and answers --

         14                 MR. SWEEBODE: We would have the

         15  ultimate responsibility to determine whether the

         16  project could proceed under the Nationwide Permit or

         17  whether an individual permit would be required.

         18                 The experience we have had in this

         19  program is that we give great weight and

         20  consideration to our sister federal and state and

         21  City agencies if they comment on a preconstruction

         22  notification.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In your opinion,

         24  if we had neither the individual permit process or

         25  the nationwide permit process and merely had the
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          2  agreement that the upstate, the memorandum of

          3  understanding which exists with respect to the

          4  watershed, and the watershed regulations, do you

          5  believe that that is sufficient to protect this

          6  watershed?

          7                 MR. SWEEBODE: We do not believe that

          8  is sufficient, sir.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

         10                 Any other questions?

         11                 Okay, thank you very much. We

         12  appreciate you being here and we look forward to

         13  working with you.

         14                 Next we have the United States

         15  Environmental Protection Agency.

         16                 Kevin Bricke and Jeff Gratz. Proceed

         17  with your testimony. Once again, I must tell you

         18  that we don't have a reporter here, so you have to

         19  say who you are when you speak so that when the

         20  record is transcribed we will know that.

         21                 MR. BRICKE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman,

         22  and Council Members. My name is Kevin Bricke. I am

         23  Deputy Director of the EPA Region 2, Division of

         24  Environmental Planning and Protection.

         25                 With me to my right is Jeff Gratz,
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          2  who is the Leader of our special New York City

          3  Watershed Team, a team of about a half of a dozen

          4  individuals.

          5                 On behalf of our Regional

          6  Administrator Jeanne Fox, we are pleased to be here

          7  to discuss the proposed changes to the US Army Corps

          8  of Engineers Nationwide Wetlands Permit Program and

          9  their application for the City's drinking water.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Can everybody

         11  hear all right?

         12                 You are going to have to put the mic

         13  a little closer to yourself, some people are having

         14  trouble hearing.

         15                 MR. BRICKE: First let me emphasize

         16  that EPA is playing an active role in ensuring the

         17  protection of these watersheds and the delivery of

         18  safe drinking water to New Yorkers.

         19                 EPA has retained primacy for the

         20  implementation of the Surface Water Treatment Rule

         21  for the unfiltered Catskill and Delaware systems.

         22                 The City is avoiding the need to

         23  filter these systems under the terms of an EPA

         24  Filtration Avoidance Determination, which includes a

         25  whole host of watershed protection measures.
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          2                 Many of these measures are

          3  incorporated into the landmark New York City

          4  Watershed Memorandum of Agreement, which

          5  successfully balanced upstate and downstate

          6  interests in the watershed.

          7                 EPA is a signatory to this MOA.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I should

          9  emphasize also that the Corps of Engineers is not a

         10  signatory to that.

         11                 MR. BRICKE: That's correct.

         12                 In addition, EPA has entered into a

         13  consent decree with the City to filter the Croton

         14  system. However, even after it is filtered, the

         15  Croton system merits a strong watershed protection

         16  program, as part of a multiple barrier approach to

         17  delivering safe drinking water to New Yorkers.

         18                 Under Section 404 of the Clean Water

         19  Act, the Army Corps of Engineers issues Nationwide

         20  Wetlands Permits, you just heard about that. They

         21  authorize with little delay or paperwork certain

         22  activities having minimal, individual or cumulative

         23  adverse impacts on the environment.

         24                 In the interest of efficiency and

         25  effectiveness, the Corps has proposed changes to the
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          2  Nationwide Wetlands Permit Program that provide a

          3  base level of protection to all freshwater wetlands

          4  throughout the United States, but also anticipate a

          5  higher level of protection through the application

          6  of regional conditions for critical resource waters.

          7                 Unless the City's drinking water

          8  watershed are designated as critical resource

          9  waters, and suitable regional conditions are

         10  developed, the wetlands in these watersheds will

         11  receive less protection than they have in the past

         12  and are currently receiving, and that is

         13  unacceptable to EPA.

         14                 These watersheds are critical

         15  resource waters which clearly warrant special

         16  protection. They include wetlands which perform

         17  vital watershed protection functions, which you

         18  heard about before.

         19                 Regional Administrator Jeanne Fox has

         20  made it clear that in the final analysis the new

         21  Nationwide Wetlands Permit Program, as it applies to

         22  the watershed, must be at least as protective as the

         23  old program, the current program, otherwise EPA

         24  would object to it.

         25                 Neither the FAD nor the MOA currently
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          2  include any provisions that deal with the federal

          3  regulation of the placement of fill and wetlands.

          4                 However, both documents assume the

          5  base level of wetlands protection provided by the

          6  existing Corps regulatory program.

          7                 Any changes in this regulatory

          8  program should ensure that the base level of

          9  protection is maintained or preferably enhanced.

         10                 In the spirit of partnership, the

         11  partnership that produced the watershed MOA, EPA is

         12  amenable to exploring options that protect the

         13  environment while avoiding unnecessary regulatory

         14  burden.

         15                 We recognize the need to continue to

         16  balance upstate and downstate interests, but as long

         17  as the drinking water consumer is fully protected.

         18                 It was for this reason that EPA

         19  requested a special meeting of the Watershed

         20  Protection and Partnership Council. Our goal was to

         21  seek a consensus among the parties on this important

         22  issue.

         23                 The Council met two days ago in what

         24  we believe was a very productive session. Joe

         25  Sweebode from the Corps gave an excellent overview
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          2  of the Nationwide Permit Program, very similar to

          3  what you heard today. Importantly, he presented

          4  several regional options, again, which you just

          5  heard about, for the Partnership Council to consider

          6  for the New York City Watershed.

          7                 After a good dialogue among the

          8  Council members, there was unanimous agreement for a

          9  follow-up meeting on this issue, and I understand

         10  that will now occur next week.

         11                 EPA continues to encourage the

         12  parties to the Watershed MOA to seek a consensus on

         13  appropriate New York City watershed specific

         14  regional conditions for the Corps Nationwide Permit,

         15  to ensure that the new program is at least as

         16  protective as the old program.

         17                 At this point I will be happy to take

         18  questions or comments.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The issue really

         20  is particular areas within the watershed, isn't it?

         21  Whether we should use the Nationwide permitting

         22  process or the individual permitting process?

         23                 MR. BRICKE: Right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And what is the

         25  recommendation of EPA with respect to -- I don't
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          2  think there is any dispute with respect to above the

          3  head waters, because it is now determined that is

          4  the most important aspect of the watershed with

          5  respect to the wetlands, and that probably will

          6  result in using individual permitting, the

          7  individual permitting process above the head water,

          8  right?

          9                 MR. BRICKE: Well, I think the options

         10  that are on the table are the ones the Corps has put

         11  on the table, although they are amenable to

         12  considering other options. It gets a little

         13  complicated, but again our goal --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am talking

         15  above the head water.

         16                 MR. BRICKE: Well, the proposals for

         17  above the head water did not require individual

         18  permitting in all cases.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Not in all cases

         20  --

         21                 MR. BRICKE: No.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But in most

         23  cases.

         24                 But with respect below the head

         25  water, what is your recommendation? Which process
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          2  should be used, the Nationwide permitting or the

          3  individual permitting?

          4                 MR. BRICKE: The individual permit

          5  process is always more environmentally protective.

          6  But, again, there are options on the table, our goal

          7  would be to reach a consensus, as long as that

          8  consensus is on a program that is at least as

          9  protective.

         10                 If I could, there were six options.

         11  At the meeting of the Watershed Protection and

         12  Partnership Council, my director made it clear that

         13  the first two options are not acceptable to EPA.

         14  They in fact do not provide the same level of

         15  protection that is currently available, so EPA would

         16  not support Options 1 and 2.

         17                 Option 6, while it still allows for

         18  very small fill, less than a third of an acre allows

         19  for there not to be individual permits, our

         20  assessment is that that is in fact more

         21  environmentally protective than what is currently on

         22  the books.

         23                 So, based on those criteria, Option 6

         24  would be something that certainly we would find

         25  acceptable.
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          2                 Options 3, 4 and 5 get a little bit

          3  more complicated. There are attempts to deal with

          4  the regulatory burden issue. They are less

          5  environmentally protective than Option 6. Those we

          6  don't really have a position yet on. We really have

          7  to do further analysis to satisfy ourselves that

          8  they are satisfactorily environmentally protective.

          9                 Behind us you see a number of maps

         10  that the City of New York is going to be talking

         11  about later I think. It has a lot of very useful

         12  data on the location of wetlands, the location of

         13  head water points, et cetera.  And looking at that

         14  more specifically we will be able to assess the

         15  environmental protectiveness of the other options,

         16  so they will be very useful.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But at this

         18  point you would recommend and prefer Option 6?

         19                 MR. BRICKE: We are very comfortable

         20  with Option 6, but we are open to discussing other

         21  options.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Even ones that

         23  have not been presented?

         24                 MR. BRICKE: Even ones that have not

         25  been presented.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

          3                 Council Member Freed.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you.

          5                 Thank you very much for your

          6  testimony, but I have to say I am concerned, because

          7  while I read your hand-out and listened to your

          8  testimony, I will have to say that some of the

          9  phrases, such as when you are talking about seeking

         10  a consensus on appropriate New York City watershed

         11  specific regional conditions to ensure the new

         12  program is as protective as the old, I agree with

         13  being as protective as the old, but some of it, it

         14  just kind of rings a little vague. And I know to a

         15  certain extent you have to be that way, you have to

         16  look at all of these, but I am concerned about the

         17  idea of a nationwide versus regional standard where

         18  we are I think only one of two areas that still

         19  maintains the natural filtration system, as opposed

         20  to a natural filtration system.

         21                 So, I am concerned about adopting

         22  nationwide standards when obviously our conditions

         23  are somewhat different.

         24                 And I am also concerned that

         25  ultimately if in some ways we do adopt a level that
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          2  will allow slowly but surely some pollution or

          3  higher levels of pollution into our water system, if

          4  we won't ultimately then be condemned to a

          5  filtration system, which is something that I think

          6  none of us wants to see, and while we don't want to

          7  impact the upstate quality of life, we certainly

          8  don't want to ultimately impact our own quality of

          9  life to the point that we would have to pay for a

         10  filtration system and the, obviously the annual

         11  upkeep.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member

         13  Freed, do you have a question for these witnesses?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Well, I guess

         15  the comment is more of a question of we would like

         16  your insurance that that will not happen, and that

         17  you will continue to push for the same strict

         18  standards that we entered into when we entered into

         19  the memorandum of agreement, at which time I know at

         20  that time we in the City were very concerned because

         21  we weren't sure we were going to get a chance to go

         22  through with the natural filtration plant, and when

         23  we did get the memorandum and agreement, it seemed

         24  there were very strict standards, and I am worried

         25  that this may be eroding those, like it may
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          2  ultimately erode our water system as well.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You can answer

          4  the question.

          5                 MR. BRICKE: Okay. Well, there

          6  certainly is the potential for the erosion of

          7  protections, depending upon which option is

          8  selected.

          9                 We definitely believe that there need

         10  to be regional conditions for the watershed, no

         11  question about that. We do not support just the

         12  application of the Nationwide with no regional

         13  conditions, because that was actually Option 1 which

         14  we find unacceptable. So, we definitely think there

         15  need to be regional conditions.

         16                 I think another relevant point is we

         17  made a filtration avoidance determination and we

         18  have allowed the Catskill Delaware system to remain

         19  unfiltered. The base level of protection upon with

         20  the MOA and the FAD built was the existing Corps

         21  regulatory program. So at that point we accepted

         22  that Corps regulatory program.

         23                 So, in point of fact I think that

         24  makes for a logical position in that we are saying

         25  that is the absolute bottom line. Any changes to
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          2  this program must be at least as protective as.

          3                 We would actually prefer that we have

          4  an improved or an enhanced protection program, and

          5  we are hopeful that such an enhanced program can be

          6  designed without an increase in the regulatory

          7  burden, which I think is another relevant issue.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

          9                 Mr. Robles.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: If regional

         11  conditions are not instituted in the watershed, the

         12  failure to implement such conditions could lead to

         13  the end of filtration avoidance in New York City?

         14                 MR. BRICKE: Well, we are required and

         15  committed to doing a review of the performance under

         16  the FAD.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: I am sorry? I

         18  didn't hear you, I am sorry.

         19                 MR. BRICKE: We are required and

         20  committed to doing a review of the City's

         21  performance under the filtration avoidance

         22  determination. So the focus of that at least

         23  initially would be on whether the City accomplished

         24  what it had committed to do in the FAD. But we were

         25  also going to be, as part of that review, attempting
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          2  to measure the effectiveness of the Watershed

          3  Protection Program.

          4                 The ability to protect wetlands is a

          5  factor in the protection of the watershed, so if the

          6  program were actually to take a step backward, that

          7  would be a very negative factor that we would

          8  consider in our filtration avoidance determination.

          9                 We don't make a single, you know, we

         10  are not going to make that kind of a determination

         11  based on a single factor, but if the program became

         12  less protective, that would be a black mark against

         13  the program, definitely.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBLES: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         16  much, gentlemen. We really appreciate your

         17  testimony.

         18                 The next witness will be the

         19  Commissioner of the Department of Environmental

         20  Protection, Joel Miele.

         21                 Commissioner, I appreciate your being

         22  here. I appreciate your presentation. Would you

         23  identify yourself and your associate, and you may

         24  proceed.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: I am very pleased
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          2  to do that.

          3                 My name is Joel A. Miele, Sr., P.E.,

          4  I am the Commissioner of the Department of

          5  Environmental Protection for the City of New York.

          6                 On my right is the First Deputy

          7  Commissioner, Dr. Diana Chapin. On my left is my

          8  Special Counsel and Chief of Staff, Charles

          9  Sturcken.

         10                 Good morning, Mr. Speaker, Mr.

         11  Chairman, and members of the Committee. Before I

         12  even get into the prepared remarks, I think it would

         13  be helpful for me to put into perspective an

         14  overview here. You have just heard from EPA, I fully

         15  support, the agency fully supports the position that

         16  has been outlined by EPA. We are not interested in a

         17  weakening of any of the protections that are

         18  provided for the wetlands. We in fact are seeking

         19  specific tightening of the requirements in the

         20  wetlands, and we believe that working with the

         21  various people involved in the watershed agreement

         22  and in the watershed itself, that we will come to a

         23  closure that will ultimately protect the watershed,

         24  protect the environment, and at the same time afford

         25  a measure of security for the people who live and
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          2  work in the watershed, as well as ourselves.

          3                 The bottom line is we need to protect

          4  the water. We are clearly conditioned on that.

          5                 I am pleased to be here this morning

          6  and being given the opportunity to discuss some

          7  important issues connected with our watershed

          8  protection program.

          9                 I have already introduced my First

         10  Deputy Commissioner and my Special Counsel, also

         11  with me is Deputy Commissioner Bill Stasiuk, Dr.

         12  Stasiuk is the Director of DEP's Bureau of Water

         13  Supply, Quality and Protection. His mission is

         14  specifically the watershed.

         15                 The specific matter that has gathered

         16  us here this morning is the proposed changes in the

         17  United States Army Corps of Engineers' process for

         18  granting permits for certain activities over which

         19  it has jurisdiction, namely the filling in or

         20  disturbance of wetlands.

         21                 Since I believe that our common

         22  concern is really the broad issue of waterfront

         23  protection, and our ability to comply with the

         24  memorandum of agreement, I want to explain our

         25  overall program so that the context of our comments
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          2  is clear.

          3                 Wetlands protection is only one of a

          4  host of tools that the City employees to maintain

          5  and improve the quality of its potable waters and

          6  is, as you will see, a very important one to the

          7  Department.

          8                 A broad review of our Watershed

          9  Protection Program is timely. The end of last year

         10  marked the completion of the first full year of

         11  implementation of the memorandum of agreement.

         12                 Last month we gave USEPA a lengthy

         13  report on our success in meeting the various

         14  objectives that make up the watershed protection

         15  program.

         16                 I brought extra copies with me this

         17  morning which you should have as part of a package

         18  that includes my statement.

         19                 This document, a report card, if you

         20  will, reviews our land acquisition program, the

         21  partnership programs and the implementation of the

         22  watershed regulations as well as wetlands protection

         23  and preservation.

         24                 I ask the Committee to review this

         25  document carefully. It shows that this
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          2  Administration is actively implementing the

          3  obligations of the filtration avoidance

          4  determination and the memorandum of agreement. We

          5  are by every measure well ahead of our goals and

          6  fully expect to meet EPA standards to maintain

          7  filtration avoidance in 2002.

          8                 Particularly with the Watershed

          9  Protection Program, I don't expect everyone to agree

         10  with all of the decisions I make, but what I hope

         11  for, if not always expect, is that responsible

         12  parties will not needlessly exploit past antipathies

         13  between watershed stakeholders in the service of

         14  some personal or political agenda quite unrelated to

         15  the preservation of water quality.

         16                 I cannot stress often enough that

         17  very, very few surface water suppliers own as little

         18  of their watershed as we do. Only eight percent of

         19  the watersheds are owned by the City, and 23 percent

         20  owned by the State, the remaining 69 percent is

         21  owned by private individuals, mostly the people who

         22  live there, about 45,000 west of the Hudson and

         23  162,000 east of the Hudson. Preserving an unfiltered

         24  water supply drawn from an inhabited watershed west

         25  of the Hudson, where you only own about a third of
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          2  the land, and where the local governments are not

          3  shy about exercising their rights, requires

          4  cooperation and diplomacy, as well as tough

          5  management.

          6                 I am obliged to remind those

          7  concerned about our watersheds that the City could

          8  not promulgate, let alone enforce, its updated

          9  comprehensive watershed regulations, nor could it

         10  get a permit to buy a single acre of watershed land,

         11  until this Administration entered into the MOA.

         12                 Pursuant to the MOA, the

         13  Administration committed significant sums of

         14  ratepayer money. In return, the City was able to

         15  begin implementing various watershed programs which

         16  were laid out in excruciating detail for the benefit

         17  of upstate representatives who wanted to know

         18  exactly what we had planned for the land and waters

         19  in their communities.

         20                 In my statement I will address the

         21  following topics:

         22                 Our wetlands preservation programs

         23  generally.

         24                 DEP's comments on the modifications

         25  to the Army Corps permitting process specifically.
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          2                 Finally, an update on key watershed

          3  protection programs.

          4                 Wetlands comprise approximately 1.24

          5  percent of total watershed acreage west of the

          6  Hudson River, the so-called Cat/Del watershed, and

          7  7.02 percent of the acreage east of the Hudson in

          8  the Croton Watershed.

          9                 Although the acreage particularly

         10  west of Hudson is small, wetlands are of particular

         11  interest to DEP because of their ability to filter

         12  and abate pollutants as part of the hydrologic

         13  network that we call a watershed.

         14                 Fortunately, much of the watershed

         15  wetlands acreage is already owned by the City near

         16  its reservoirs or by the State and the Catskill

         17  Forest Preserve.

         18                 Where we do not own sensitive

         19  wetlands we look to either acquire them or closely

         20  monitor their usage.

         21                 I brought some detailed maps with me

         22  that show exactly where these wetlands are.

         23                 As of January 21st, 1999, DEP has

         24  under contract or has closed on 90 wetlands parcels

         25  totalling 162 acres west of the Hudson and 270
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          2  wetland parcels totalling 347 acres east of the

          3  Hudson. Some four percent of our total acquisitions

          4  to date are wetlands.

          5                 It is not necessarily the quantity

          6  that the City acquires that is most important, but

          7  also the location of the parcels and their function

          8  in the watershed system.

          9                 Sensitive wetlands, along with land

         10  along streams, steep slopes and buffering lands are

         11  all high priorities for the Land Acquisition

         12  Program. That is why we are buying them now, as

         13  opposed to less sensitive parcels targeted for

         14  purchase later in the program.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Commissioner,

         16  you are talking about purchases, are you also using

         17  the idea of environmental easements to acquire?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You didn't

         20  mention that.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: I will mention it

         22  later on in my --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, that also

         24  applies to the wetlands as well.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: It applies to the
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          2  wetlands as well.

          3                 To monitor wetlands activities, we

          4  review applications for local, state and federal

          5  Army Corps permits for wetlands disturbance. Because

          6  you not only need to obtain an army permit where

          7  there is an authority for the development, but you

          8  also need under the MOA to obtain our permit for

          9  development, as well as other permits from local

         10  communities.

         11                 Upon receipt of an application it

         12  would review it for impacts on our system and

         13  communicate our views to regulators, town boards and

         14  local legislatures.

         15                 We then use applicable law and

         16  regulation to ensure the applicant does not degrade

         17  wetlands or negatively impact water quality.

         18                 In the Croton Watershed, last year we

         19  reviewed 12 projects, including one Army Corps

         20  permit that were within 300 feet of DEC identified

         21  wetlands or watercourses that are protected under

         22  our regulations.

         23                 West of the Hudson during 1998 we

         24  reviewed nine Army Corps wetlands permits, and one

         25  state freshwater wetlands permit. The watershed
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          2  rules give DEP particular authority over DEC mapped

          3  wetlands. However, there are parcels that meet the

          4  DEC criteria for wetlands designation but have not

          5  yet been mapped by them.

          6                 To include these unmapped parcels

          7  under the jurisdiction of our rules, DEP has been

          8  working with the US Fish and Wildlife Service to

          9  precisely identify these parcels, so the State will

         10  include them in a revision of its freshwater

         11  wetlands map.

         12                 Although the State has not yet made

         13  these revisions, we are hopeful that they will, and

         14  I believe they have even received federal grant

         15  money to begin the process.

         16                 You have in your packet a copy of the

         17  pamphlet on wetlands that DEP produced, in

         18  conjunction with the US Fish and Wildlife Service.

         19  We have been distributing them throughout the

         20  watershed to help encourage the knowledge of and

         21  sensitivity towards wetlands.

         22                 It is also important to note that our

         23  watershed regulations give the City a substantial

         24  degree of control over development in wetland areas,

         25  even where the wetland in question does not meet the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            69

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  State's 12.4 acre threshold.

          3                 In our watershed, the vast majority

          4  of the wetlands areas lie alongside or form part of

          5  rivers, streams and other watercourses. The

          6  watershed regulations either prohibit or require DEP

          7  approval of the construction of impervious surfaces,

          8  i.e., tennis courts, i.e., buildings, within certain

          9  distances of watercourses.

         10                 The regulations also require detailed

         11  stormwater pollution prevention plans, with

         12  safeguards against erosion and runoff for any

         13  sizable land disturbance projects in close proximity

         14  to watercourses.

         15                 Finally, the watershed regulations

         16  require that all regulated activities, which include

         17  among others the construction of impervious

         18  surfaces, be conducted in a manner that does not

         19  constitute a source of contamination or degradation

         20  to the water supply.

         21                 DEP has developed two projects to

         22  provide scientific data to support inferences about

         23  how wetlands function in water quality preservation.

         24                 Again, in cooperation with the US

         25  Fish and Wildlife Service, we are quantifying trends
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          2  in wetlands use in the east of Hudson watershed over

          3  the last 40 years. Assessing trends in wetlands

          4  changes in a watershed system subject to intense

          5  development pressure should tell us more about the

          6  relationship between wetlands and water quality over

          7  time. We hope to use that information to sharpen our

          8  focus on our own watershed protection efforts, both

          9  in regulatory oversight and land acquisition.

         10                 The other wetland study we have

         11  underway is a pilot project on the Boyds Corner and

         12  West Branch basins. These critical basins are in the

         13  Croton system, which as you may be aware, has been

         14  subject to much more intense development than the

         15  west of Hudson basins.

         16                 I have brought along a map that

         17  displays these two basins. In this project we are

         18  again looking to clarify the relationship between

         19  wetlands and water quality, in this case by tracking

         20  parameters such as phosphorous and suspended solids

         21  as water moves through various types of wetlands

         22  that are part of these basins.

         23                 Results from this study will help

         24  direct the development of wetlands protection and

         25  non-point pollutant source programs, quantify the
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          2  role of wetlands as we establish water quality

          3  bottles and provide guidance for regulatory

          4  permitting.

          5                 The City is also aggressively

          6  acquiring parcels in this sensitive area. On the map

          7  of these basins you will see the pink colored areas

          8  which denote the parcels we have acquired or which

          9  are under contract.

         10                 Since the enactment of the Clean

         11  Water Act, the Army Corps has had the responsibility

         12  to regulate the dredging or filling of wetlands.

         13  They do this through review of applications for

         14  several types of permits including the two that are

         15  germane to this discussion.

         16                 A generic permit called the National

         17  Wetlands Permit, or NWP, and an Individual Wetlands

         18  Permit, IWP.

         19                 The NWP is usually considered to be a

         20  more streamlined process. The Individual Permit, you

         21  have already heard is usually considered to pose a

         22  much more serious regulatory hurdle.

         23                 In November 1998, the Army Corps

         24  proposed as a local condition to its national

         25  permitting program Regional Condition E. Regional
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          2  Condition E would restrict national wetlands permits

          3  in the City's watershed to one-third of an acre and

          4  require IWPs for any other activity that fell under

          5  the clause wetlands permitting purview.

          6                 The concept at play here is whether

          7  or not the simpler, less burdensome NWP should be

          8  issued for the disturbance and very small waterland

          9  areas.

         10                 In several communications with staff

         11  of the Army Corps, Deputy Commissioner Stasiuk,

         12  unbeknownst to me, expressed support for requiring

         13  the more burdensome IWPs for all activities in the

         14  wetlands as part of the New York City Watershed.

         15                 By late January this position had

         16  become known to various upstate residents and

         17  elected officials who then communicated to me their

         18  concern.

         19                 For those of us who have had

         20  experience with the Corps and its permits, you will

         21  be aware that seeking such a permit invariably

         22  requires the services of a professional, such as an

         23  engineer, and a fairly lengthy time frame so that

         24  both costs will be greater and time will be longer

         25  for an individually permitted project which might be
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          2  a small farmer or a community project.

          3                 This then was perceived by the

          4  signatory communities to the MOA as a direct threat

          5  to their understanding of what our partnership was

          6  all about.

          7                 Since I had not yet been briefed on

          8  the issue, I withdrew the comments without prejudice

          9  and told the Army Corps that I intended to review

         10  the matter myself as it was a policy issue and that

         11  I would submit comments accordingly over my own

         12  signature.

         13                 I told the upstate representatives

         14  that I would hear their concerns and decide whether

         15  or not I agreed with the staff's initial position.

         16                 I then asked upstate staff what they

         17  were trying to achieve and how they could most

         18  effectively protect the wetlands. Based on

         19  discussions with my staff, we agreed that what we

         20  really needed was notification, and the ability to

         21  review all wetlands-related permits before they were

         22  approved by the Army Corps.

         23                 Presently we received notice of some

         24  NWPs and some IWPs. I also decided that an important

         25  feature of protection for the watershed was not to
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          2  extend the NWP to areas other than the head lands,

          3  as is presently the case.

          4                 The Corps was proposing to extend the

          5  use of NWPs to all wetlands areas. I felt that this

          6  expansion and NWP use would lessen watershed

          7  protection and should not be considered.

          8                 These positions were included in

          9  comments submitted over my signature on March 15th,

         10  1999.

         11                 I outlined further in the letter that

         12  rather than request that the Corps deny the use of

         13  NWPs, or modify the wetland disturbance threshold,

         14  which the Corps would require an individual permit,

         15  DEP requested that it be furnished with applications

         16  for all permits and preconstruction notices from the

         17  Army Corps that pertain to the New York City

         18  watershed.

         19                 This would ensure that DEP is

         20  informed about all projects in the watershed that

         21  could potentially impact wetlands, would allow us to

         22  monitor projects closely and invoke our own

         23  regulatory powers where appropriate and would enable

         24  us to support the Army Corps work by ensuring that

         25  Army Corps permits are obtained and adhered to.
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          2                 At the same time, property owners

          3  would not be subjected to additional layers of

          4  regulatory oversight that are not warranted.

          5                 We will also insist that the new

          6  permitting program not represent a retreat from the

          7  Army Corps Program that exists today. Along with

          8  USEPA and the State, we oppose the proposed new

          9  program that would allow NWPs to be applied to a

         10  much broader range of wetlands throughout

         11  watersheds. We strongly opposed and continue to

         12  oppose any such extension of the use of NWPs.

         13                 In sum, we feel we are striking a

         14  proper balance on this issue. We feel that a

         15  combination of our existing regulatory powers,

         16  coupled with land acquisition and strict monitoring

         17  of Army Corps permits, will adequately safeguard

         18  sensitive wetland areas against improper

         19  disturbance.

         20                 Although I appreciate the opportunity

         21  to get these remarks on the record, I would look to

         22  move on to the report of other aspects of our

         23  watershed protection program.

         24                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Commissioner, if I

         25  could?  Unfortunately, I have to go attend to other
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          2  matters.

          3                 On the one point that I raised

          4  before, if I could just interrupt your testimony,

          5  because it is relevant to what the question I asked

          6  earlier, as to the letter that was sent by your

          7  subordinate which you obviously did not know about

          8  and which you reviewed. What was there about that

          9  letter that you find objectionable?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: I think the

         11  simplest way to put it is, what I was looking for

         12  was what were we trying to achieve. And what we were

         13  trying to achieve was to know before work started,

         14  work in wetlands, before we end up with a problem.

         15  Because what we have had up until now where NWPs are

         16  issued, is that if an NWP is issued and we are not

         17  made aware of it, the owner of the property

         18  commences work on it, and if there is a problem and

         19  my people find out about it downstream, as silt

         20  starts moving downstream or some impact occurs on

         21  the waterway, we then work our way up the waterway

         22  in our normal or regulatory process, find out what

         23  the problem is, but by the time we get there,

         24  because these are small projects, the project is

         25  usually completed. We don't believe that permits us
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          2  to protect the water correctly. So what we have said

          3  is we want prior notice of any NWP that is issued so

          4  that we can go up, speak with the property owner

          5  beforehand, speaker with the Army if we believe it

          6  is appropriate for an IWP instead of an NWP, and

          7  even if the Army decides that an NWP is appropriate,

          8  we can then have our own regulatory people there

          9  while the activity takes place and obviate any

         10  impact on our water.

         11                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Why couldn't you do

         12  that and still go with the stricter --

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: We could do that

         14  in many ways, the question is, if there are

         15  different ways to do it, I believe that as a partner

         16  in this partnership that we call the MOA, I have an

         17  obligation to make sure that while we protect the

         18  water we don't inflict any unnecessary pain or

         19  expense on the balance of our partners. And in this

         20  case, what I asked was, what will solve our need?

         21  And the answer was notice.

         22                 SPEAKER VALLONE: I agree.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Now, clearly, and

         24  I have to clarify this. The letters actually that

         25  went to the Army were not signed by my deputy, they
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          2  were signed by an employee who worked for my Deputy

          3  by direction essentially, so they didn't even get up

          4  to the deputy's level.

          5                 The key here was that was one way to

          6  do it. It is a very simplistic way to take an

          7  approach, it would solve the problem. He could have

          8  also written that if we buy out all the land in the

          9  watersheds and move all of the people out of the

         10  watersheds, he would have accomplished the same

         11  thing, but I don't think any one of us is interested

         12  in doing that, even if we had the capability

         13  fiscally to do it.

         14                 The key here is the balance. The

         15  watershed protection first, and after the watershed

         16  protection is taken care of, the question is, are we

         17  necessarily asking our partners to take on a burden

         18  or are we unncessarily asking them to take on a

         19  burden.

         20                 SPEAKER VALLONE: The objections that

         21  you received were from elected officials and upstate

         22  residents who though that this somehow was a

         23  violation of the MOA?

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: No. I think what

         25  they felt was that this was going to put a burden on
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          2  a small property owner who might want to do a small

          3  project on his own land, keep in mind, wetland

          4  though it may be and our impact on it. The answer

          5  is, if you get an NWP, the owner and someone local

          6  can normally put an NWP together, process it to the

          7  Army, if the Army agrees it is available for an NWP,

          8  that's fine. Keep in mind, if there is any

          9  construction building on it, they still would have

         10  to get an approval from us, they would still have to

         11  get an approval for the construction from the town

         12  or the village or the hamlet that they are in, and

         13  of course there are other state jurisdictions that

         14  would require permits possibly.

         15                 The key here is, and you heard it

         16  from the Army, it would require an Environmental

         17  Impact Study. Now, we know what Environmental Impact

         18  Studies are and we know the impact that they have on

         19  work that goes through the New York City Planning

         20  Commission. Whenever there is a requirement for it,

         21  because it adds another six months or nine months to

         22  the project. Now, if you are a private developer,

         23  that is wonderful. If you are a local farmer or a

         24  local community in the area, to add that extra

         25  expense to a project that might be a very small
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          2  dollar project, might put it completely out of the

          3  realm of feasibility. Now, what we are saying is,

          4  that if there is no need to inflict that, we

          5  shouldn't inflict that on people who we consider to

          6  be partners with us in the watershed.

          7                 SPEAKER VALLONE: The Chairman at this

          8  point wants to --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I just want to

         10  clarify something with respect to the difference

         11  between NWP, which is the Nationwide Wetlands

         12  Permit, as opposed to the individual wetlands

         13  permit.

         14                 The NWP, even which is not in one of

         15  the options, they put it in there and give you

         16  notification, does not require your approval, it

         17  just gives you input into the approval process --

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: That is

         19  absolutely correct. You heard that the Army has the

         20  ultimate -- the Army Corps of Engineers has the

         21  ultimate authority and responsibility.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is my

         23  understanding, and correct me if I am wrong, with

         24  respect to the individual wetlands permit, before

         25  they would be granted by the Army, they would

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            81

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  absolutely need your approval.

          3                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: No, that is

          4  absolutely not correct.

          5                 They would ask for our input. In some

          6  cases we will make an input saying we don't have any

          7  objection to it, we don't think there is any

          8  negative environmental aspects to it. On the other

          9  hand, in other cases we will make an input saying we

         10  think that you ought to require this to be done

         11  because it might have some impact on our water or on

         12  our wetlands. So, what we are giving them is input.

         13  It is their absolute responsibility and authority.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I understand.

         15  But you are saying that it is incorrect to say the

         16  approval is needed by you and other people in order

         17  to --

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: That is

         19  absolutely right. It is incorrect to state that they

         20  need our authority and our approval. They have the

         21  supreme responsibility.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But you won't

         23  admit to the fact that you have more input under the

         24  individual wetlands permit procedure than before.

         25  You certainly have more knowledge.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Well, here is the

          3  key: I want the knowledge, I need to be aware of

          4  before the fact. We are aware of now on IWPs, but

          5  not all. But what we have basically stated in my

          6  letter is we want prior knowledge of all

          7  applications in sufficient time to at least go back

          8  to them and say, hey, we don't think you should

          9  issue an NWP here, you should issue an IWP, or if

         10  you issue an NWP, this ought to be some of the

         11  considerations that you give.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am trying to

         13  get the distinction between the two as to which is

         14  more valuable to you.

         15                 I think one of your assistants wants

         16  to tell you something.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Yes, I think that

         18  point is important. I cannot tell the Army whether

         19  to issue an NWP or an IWP. Under the Watershed

         20  Regulations, under the state law and regulation, I

         21  have the ability to stop work that has any negative

         22  impact on the waterway.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, that was

         24  another point I was going to make.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: But that is
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          2  independent of the Army.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Because you

          4  stated earlier in your testimony that there are

          5  certain wetlands under the watershed rules and

          6  regulations and under the watershed agreement you do

          7  have jurisdiction over.

          8                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: I have

          9  jurisdiction in all of them under the watershed

         10  regulations.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But there are

         12  certain areas, certain wetlands within the watershed

         13  that you do not have jurisdiction over.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: That's correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is what I

         16  am saying. I think the concern here, and we don't

         17  know what percentage of those --

         18                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: That is one of

         19  the two programs that we propose to put together as

         20  an inventory of those and to see that they are added

         21  to the state's list so that they do come under

         22  scrutiny.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The other point,

         24  because we know now the area we are dealing with,

         25  which is those which you do not have jurisdiction
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          2  with. But with respect to the options that were

          3  offered by the Army Corps of Engineers, the six

          4  options, couldn't you with certain modifications

          5  live with Option 6?

          6                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Well, let me put

          7  it to you this way, rather than saying I could live

          8  with Option 6, I think what we need to do is do

          9  again what was done last week. We need to sit around

         10  the table with all of the participants involved in

         11  this and see where the minimum pain is inflicted and

         12  at the same time the maximum protection is provided.

         13                 We are bound to that. Clearly, I

         14  can't unilaterally, and I wouldn't want to

         15  unilaterally, preempt something else.

         16                 But if you look at solely the

         17  question of the nth degree protection for the water,

         18  I don't think many of us would agree that everyone

         19  human and every animal needs to get out of the

         20  watershed because that would provide the nth degree

         21  protection.

         22                 Well, I mean, that is a theoretical

         23  possibility, and in fact there are watersheds in the

         24  United States that are very much like that, but the

         25  answer is ours is not and therefore we have to live
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          2  with what we have. And again, keep this in mind and

          3  it's important: By the amount of money we are

          4  investing in the MOA to purchase land, by the

          5  upgrade of every single wastewater treatment plant

          6  in the watershed at our ratepayers' expense, we are

          7  taking the base level, as you heard from EPA, they

          8  were comfortable with and used in giving us the MOA,

          9  and we are raising that level to a complete

         10  different standard that the City has never achieved,

         11  and that will be for all time, because once we

         12  establish tertiary treatment for all wastewater

         13  treatment plants, the foul water from wastewater

         14  treatment plants that the Speaker was talking about

         15  earlier, now go from 40 percent of the wastewater

         16  being put, to less than two percent of the

         17  wastewater being put into our water, and that is a

         18  for all time improvement. The land purchase gives us

         19  the same sort of elements, because as we take title

         20  to that land and get the environmental easements

         21  that we have talked about, that land gets taken out

         22  of the development pool for all time again.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But the wetlands

         24  are extremely important for filtration purposes as

         25  well, we all know that. But have you any reason to
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          2  believe, do you believe it is effective, the use of

          3  the NWP procedure, that they would give you

          4  notification, that the Army Corps of Engineers would

          5  go along with something like that?

          6                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Right now they

          7  only give it to us on certain of the NWPs. Again,

          8  you have heard there are 41 of them, this is NWP 26.

          9  There are other NWPs, some we get in -- what we are

         10  asking for is whatever kind of a permit you issue,

         11  wherever you issue it in our watershed, we want

         12  notice of it in advance, and we think that is a

         13  condition --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And you think

         15  notice is sufficient without really having any

         16  approval?

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Yes. The answer

         18  is, if we believe we can find something that impacts

         19  our water negatively, we bring it to the army's

         20  attention, even if we don't have the individual

         21  authority under the MOA to stop it, absolutely, we

         22  believe the Army, based upon past experience, and we

         23  truly believe they are concerned, you know, first

         24  class about this water, that they will undertake to

         25  ask for conditions and requirements and turn down
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          2  those permits that are not able to be --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It would seem to

          4  me that is very important, but also the EPA's --

          5                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: We agree.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:-- Approval

          7  should be important to us, because that is under the

          8  filtration avoidance determination, we have to make

          9  sure that they are satisfied.

         10                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: You just heard

         11  EPA and basically everything they have said we

         12  absolutely support, except that we haven't reached

         13  any conclusions on whether it is proposal one or

         14  proposal six or some combination of them.

         15                 Absolutes, there must be no lessening

         16  of the protection of the watershed, okay? That is

         17  the first thing.

         18                 The second thing is, we want certain

         19  improvements in the watershed and we believe those

         20  to be drop-dead issues for the City of New York.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Unfortunately

         22  the devil is in the details.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: That's true. And

         24  we want to get into the details and we will at the

         25  meeting next week.
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          2                 SPEAKER VALLONE: I interrupted you,

          3  Commissioner. I don't know whether you want to

          4  finish your statement. But I do have to leave,

          5  please excuse me, and at the same time I will leave

          6  the rest of the questions to the Chair.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Thank you. I

          9  appreciate it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Do you wish to

         11  finish?

         12                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Yes, I would like

         13  to, if I may.

         14                 The primary components of the City's

         15  watershed protection program are the following:

         16                 - land acquisition.

         17                 - the watershed regulations.

         18                 - monitoring programs and scientific

         19  studies.

         20                 - rehabilitation of failing septics

         21  and/or sewer systems.

         22                 - the upgrade of City-owned and all

         23  non-City-owned treatment plants.

         24                 - the watershed agricultural program.

         25                 The remainder of my prepared remarks
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          2  address the current status of the first two programs

          3  above, which I feel are the most relevant to our

          4  discussion today.

          5                 Acquiring more land in the watershed

          6  is the single, most important tool in the long-term

          7  preservation of the City's water supply. When the

          8  City acquires lands in the watersheds, the

          9  commitment is to keep it undeveloped, which is

         10  obviously a concern to any town and municipality

         11  interested in expanding its tax base.

         12                 Although the City pays approximately

         13  $55 million every year, in local taxes in the

         14  watershed, the commitment to keep our lands

         15  undeveloped is of some concern to watershed

         16  communities in that our acquiring potentially

         17  reduces the future income of watershed towns and

         18  counties.

         19                 As Chairman Michels may remember, the

         20  Coalition of Watershed Towns commenced the

         21  proceeding to prevent the state from granting the

         22  City the permit to acquire additional watershed

         23  wetlands, watershed lands. This proceeding and

         24  related litigation was only with drawn as a part of

         25  the MOA settlement which also included the issuance
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          2  of the necessary permit without which there was no

          3  land acquisition program.

          4                 The program's primary objective is to

          5  acquire tens of thousands of acres of sensitive

          6  lands, including wetlands, that surround our

          7  drinking water.

          8                 To date, as noted in our report, we

          9  have solicited some 107,875 acres for purchase in

         10  the Catskill and Delaware watersheds alone.

         11                 Since commencement of this program,

         12  in January 1997, DEP has taken title to or has under

         13  contract purchased over 14,370 acres of land. In the

         14  key priority area south of the Rondout Reservoir, 85

         15  percent of the eligible land has been acquired or is

         16  under contract by the City.

         17                 I have another map that depicts the

         18  Rrondout basin acquisition. Those again you will see

         19  in pink.

         20                 Beyond outright acquisition, DEP has

         21  numerous programs designed to ensure sound land

         22  management practices on lands not owned or

         23  controlled by the City.

         24                 For example, DEP is in the process of

         25  establishing conservation easements on
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          2  privately-held lands. Approximately 270 acres held

          3  by three property holders have registered for this

          4  program.

          5                 Once a final agreement on the

          6  Program's guidelines is reached with DEC, these

          7  lands will be subject to restriction on activities

          8  harmful to the water supply while remaining in the

          9  hands of our upstate partners.

         10                 The easements benefit both property

         11  owners who get to keep and use the land, and the

         12  City which gets to stretch out land acquisition

         13  dollars.

         14                 The easements vary in their

         15  restrictions, certain activities are permitted on

         16  certain types of land.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I should say

         18  that when you first embarked upon this it was

         19  something that we didn't originally understand, and

         20  I thought it was a brilliant thing to do the

         21  easement rather than purchase because it will save

         22  us a lot of money.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: I thank you, and

         24  my sons thank you.

         25                 Enforcement of the revised watershed
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          2  rules and regulations under the MOA which went into

          3  effect in May 1997, is also a pivotal factor in the

          4  continued health of our watershed.

          5                 Enforcement of the watershed

          6  regulations has intensified over the past two years

          7  and we will continue to build on that.

          8                 The bulk of our early enforcement

          9  efforts have been directed towards eliminating

         10  failing or failed private septic systems in the

         11  watershed.

         12                 The Watershed Protection Section

         13  consists of 62 inspectors and supervisors who

         14  continuously patrol City-owned land around the

         15  reservoirs and do sector patrols of the entire

         16  watershed region. Obviously those people are able to

         17  support and expand upon the efforts of the Army

         18  Corps of Engineers whose limited staff you heard of

         19  earlier today.

         20                 Aggressively pursue outstanding

         21  enforcement actions against documented violators;

         22  review building sites from the testing phase through

         23  the completion of construction for individual sewage

         24  treatment systems; inspect City structures and water

         25  supply appurtenances; and issue permits for and
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          2  enforce the City's fishing and boating regulations.

          3  These activities are coordinated closely with other

          4  state and local law enforcement agencies. Suspected

          5  violations of environmental laws and other criminal

          6  activities are referred to the DEP police for

          7  investigation.

          8                 Since the implementation of the

          9  revised Regulations on May 1st, '97, the Protection

         10  section has issued a total of 1,240 notices of

         11  violation and notices of failure east and west of

         12  the Hudson, has made over 3,400 patrols covering

         13  over more than 1.4 million square miles, and issued

         14  approximately 15,000 fishing and boating permits.

         15                 Staff from the engineering section

         16  provide technical support to the protection section

         17  and carry out field inspections of approved projects

         18  to assure compliance with the watershed regulations

         19  and/or applicable Army Corps of Engineers'

         20  requirements.

         21                 To place additional emphasis on

         22  enforcement, DEP formed the Environmental

         23  Enforcement Division of the DEP police.

         24                 This unit investigates all

         25  specifically environmental complaints in the
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          2  watershed.

          3                 EED also inspects sites where

          4  hazardous materials are stored, and investigates

          5  reports of all major hazardous material spills.

          6                 Since May 1997, DEP police have

          7  issued over 360 environmental summonses.

          8                 The Mayor recently agreed to increase

          9  the size of the DEP police force by 70 officers,

         10  more than doubling our current force.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Are you

         12  increasing their salaries?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Yes. In fact we

         14  are negotiating that right now. It is a matter,

         15  obviously, for collective bargaining, but we have a

         16  commitment and what we will attempt to do is to

         17  reach --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Career Path

         19  maybe --

         20                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Career Paths and

         21  to find out that our wages are compatible with and

         22  are able to permit us to keep career police officer.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And we are

         24  trying to get people from the City to go up there

         25  and live, rather than hiring locals?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Interestingly

          3  enough, we have had inquiries from New York Police

          4  Department members who live in the watershed and who

          5  work in the City who are now interested in our

          6  Department, since it will be a little more

          7  attractive to them, and we have had inquiries from

          8  other local police departments in the watershed,

          9  people who started with us, left because of the

         10  money issue in the Career Path, and now seeing money

         11  in the Career Path back in the process are now

         12  interested in coming back.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Maybe they are

         14  influenced by the fact that there are people

         15  considering requiring all police officers to live in

         16  the City.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Yes.

         18                 Lastly, I recently created a new

         19  position of Enforcement Coordinator in the upstate

         20  bureau. This new function will coordinate several

         21  units carrying out watershed enforcement programs.

         22                 It is filled by an attorney with an

         23  enforcement background who also directs the DEP

         24  police force, assuring coordination between the

         25  technical and engineering staff and the watershed
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          2  police.

          3                 This list of enforcement efforts only

          4  emphasized how DEP uses conventional command and

          5  control regulations to carry through on its

          6  commitment to maintain what is without question one

          7  of the great natural resources of this country. As

          8  Commissioner and a steward of this resource, I

          9  cannot overstate that these efforts represent only a

         10  portion of what we are doing to restrict harmful

         11  activity on the lands that we share with the

         12  inhabitants of the watershed.

         13                 It is important to make clear to the

         14  Council that our goal is not litigation, but

         15  compliance.

         16                 In some cases compliance may be

         17  achieved by cooperative programs, such as the highly

         18  successful watershed agricultural program, by

         19  education and by a host of other programs.

         20                 If successful, these voluntary

         21  partnership programs put the focus of compulsory

         22  legal strategies where they belong, as the last

         23  resort.

         24                 If the City were only interested in

         25  compelling watershed residents into acting in what
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          2  we believe to be the City's interest, I am

          3  absolutely certain there would be no MOA and no

          4  filtration avoidance determination. The City would

          5  still be in court trying to get a land acquisition

          6  permit and promulgate updated watershed regulations.

          7  EPA would long ago have lost patience with us and

          8  ordered us to filter. DEP and watershed residents

          9  share a large complex resource - the lands and

         10  waters of a 1,950 square mile piece of territory for

         11  which we have different uses, some more compatible

         12  with each other and some less.

         13                 The MOA sanctioned the issuance of

         14  vastly more strict watershed regulations primarily

         15  related to new development, but the number of

         16  violations we issue is not by itself a sign of

         17  effectiveness in watershed protection. The City's

         18  program includes a battery a voluntary partnership

         19  programs which are intended to induce property

         20  owners to institute land use practices that they

         21  might not have otherwise been concerned with which

         22  they might not have been able to afford.

         23                 In other words, we don't just enforce

         24  the watershed rules against violators, we are

         25  proactive participants in watershed land use. The
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          2  City is part of a partnership, all members of which

          3  have to be prepared to both give and take. No member

          4  of this partnership will get everything they want.

          5                 So far what the City has obtained is

          6  an improvement in water quality indicators and a

          7  filtration avoidance waiver good until 2002 with the

          8  option of extension beyond that if our water quality

          9  statistics remain good.

         10                 We think that we will obtain that

         11  extension and we think it lies in the interest of

         12  our upstate partners that we do.

         13                 At this point I will conclude my

         14  written remarks. If you would like me to go further

         15  into any individual watershed protection program

         16  which are covered in detail in the annual report, I

         17  will of course be happy to do so.

         18                 If not, I am happy to and I am

         19  pleased to take your questions.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you,

         21  Commissioner. There is no doubt that all of us,

         22  whether it be upstate or the City Council or your

         23  agency are concerned that the water remain in the

         24  wonderful condition that we found it and continues

         25  well into the century.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: We want it in

          3  better condition.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We would like to

          5  make it in better condition as well. And it is

          6  extremely important to us that our relationship with

          7  the upstate communities remain well, in good shape,

          8  as we have always said.

          9                 But I think it should also be said

         10  that they also use this water, so it behooves them

         11  also to make sure that the water is kept in the

         12  greatest condition.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: Some of them use

         14  the water for drinking, some of them only use the

         15  water visually or as part of the ambience of where

         16  they live. Many of them use wells. We do not supply

         17  water to all of the watershed residents.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But there are

         19  upwards of 9 million people who use this water?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: That's right. But

         21  8 million of them are New Yorkers and people who

         22  visit New York and the other million are primarily

         23  Westchester and Putnam residents.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And what we are

         25  saying to you is we are asking questions here in

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            100

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  order to try and come to what is not only the truth,

          3  but what is best for all of us, because it will be

          4  upstate or downstate and we have always had that

          5  attitude. But it is important that this City, which

          6  is the engine that drives the State of New York, and

          7  everybody has to understand it doesn't look out for

          8  their water supply, because our population has been

          9  increasing and it is willing to continue to increase

         10  and we all know about Putnam County and the huge

         11  amount of increase in the development of Putnam

         12  County, we have to be aware of that, we have got to

         13  look into the future, an that is extremely

         14  important.

         15                 We are going to allow you to go now.

         16  If you want to stay and respond to other questions

         17  afterwards or make some statements based on other

         18  testimony --

         19                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: If you have no --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And also we

         21  would reserve the right, as we always do, to submit

         22  to you some questions that may arise from your

         23  testimony.

         24                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: We are very

         25  pleased to do that. I think we jointly have a
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          2  responsibility to make sure again that the quality

          3  of water that we provide and the quantity of water

          4  we provide to the City residents is adequate for all

          5  time into the future. I am dedicated to that. I have

          6  a very, very professional staff that is dedicated to

          7  that, has been and will continue to be, and we will

          8  continue to work with not only the regulatory

          9  bodies, but again all of the departments and all of

         10  those people that have an interest in this water.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am convinced

         12  of that, and we should not let anything outside of

         13  the desire to have the optimum water for this City

         14  and for this State be the objective here, and any

         15  other interference is something we should not

         16  tolerate and I know you feel the same way.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: I do.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you,

         19  Commissioner.

         20                 COMMISSIONER MIELE: And thank you

         21  very much for the opportunity to make the

         22  presentation.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Our next witness

         24  will be Mr. Robert Kennedy. And anyone else who

         25  wishes to testify with you.
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          2                 Mr. Kennedy, welcome. We appreciate

          3  your being here. We look forward to your testimony.

          4                 As we have told all the other

          5  witnesses, please identify yourself, and understand

          6  this is all being put on tape which will be

          7  transcribed.

          8                 MR. KENNEDY: I am Robert F. Kennedy,

          9  Jr., I am an attorney for Riverkeeper, which has

         10  been deeply involved in the watershed issues for

         11  over a decade. I want to first of all thank this

         12  Committee, Speaker Vallone, yourself, Councilman

         13  Michels and this Committee, for its long involvement

         14  in this issue. We would never have obtained a

         15  watershed agreement if it weren't for the early

         16  intervention of this Committee, and your interest as

         17  one of the first political leaders in New York State

         18  who actually took an interest in this issue and took

         19  the time to really learn this issue and you have

         20  given us wonderful guidance and support throughout

         21  the last ten years of fighting on this issue.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you. And I

         23  might say that your concern has been something that

         24  we have been well aware of over so many years and it

         25  has been an inspiration to many of us.
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          2                 MR. KENNEDY: I want to start out just

          3  with an aside, because Commissioner Miele mentioned

          4  one program that I think it is important for this

          5  Council to understand, and I am going to be as brief

          6  as I possibly can.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I understand you

          8  have a time problem.

          9                 MR. KENNEDY: Right.

         10                 There is a program, a state program,

         11  that protects wetlands of unique local importance.

         12                 As you know, the state law, under New

         13  York State law, DEC, the State Department of

         14  Environmental Conservation, only protects wetlands

         15  that are greater than 12.4 acres.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

         17                 MR. KENNEDY: However, localities and

         18  the City of New York have the authority to map

         19  wetlands that are smaller than that in areas of

         20  concern and get those wetlands protected under the

         21  state law that allows people to petition to have

         22  wetlands of unique local importance. The City of New

         23  York has promised us for the last five years that

         24  they are going to map those wetlands and get them in

         25  under the State program. That has not happened yet.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            104

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Are they in the

          3  process of doing that, to your knowledge?

          4                 MR. KENNEDY: Well, I heard

          5  Commissioner Miele this morning say that they were

          6  in the process of doing it, and that the state, that

          7  the State had gotten some US Fish and Wildlife

          8  funding to assist them on that program, but we heard

          9  a statement from the State the other day that in

         10  fact they were not going to use that US Fish and

         11  Wildlife Service money to map wetlands that were

         12  less than 12.4 acres. And, you know, the State is

         13  culpable here as well, but the City of New York, and

         14  you know, in all of these issues the State has some

         15  culpability, but our problem is that the City of New

         16  York really is not standing up for the watershed,

         17  and if the State isn't doing something it is

         18  supposed to be doing, we should have the

         19  commissioner here who is saying that publicly, and

         20  who allows the substantial advocacy groups to say,

         21  okay, who is at fault here, is it the State or the

         22  City? And at this point --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is it a matter

         24  of money?

         25                 MR. KENNEDY: Well, it may be a matter
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          2  of money, but it couldn't be more than, you know, a

          3  couple of hundred thousand dollars to --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are almost

          5  entering into our budgetary period, maybe that is

          6  something we should be looking to and see if the

          7  state is not going to provide the money, maybe we

          8  should, and the City Council be an advocate of

          9  putting that money into the budget. And we know what

         10  the money is and let us know any information we can

         11  have with respect to it, I guarantee you there will

         12  be a very firm effort to have that money placed in

         13  the budget.

         14                 MR. KENNEDY: If that were done this

         15  whole controversy could be avoided because then we

         16  would get the protection without the Corps of

         17  Engineers' permit.

         18                 I just wanted to say also just one

         19  brief introductory remark about the Memorandum of

         20  Agreement, the Watershed Agreement. The Watershed

         21  Agreement is really two parts. The City agrees to

         22  put a billion and a half dollars essentially into

         23  the upstate community to build infrastructure, a lot

         24  of it infrastructure that those communities would be

         25  forced to build themselves under existing state laws
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          2  that have nothing to do with the watershed

          3  agreement, to purchase land, to rebuild septic

          4  systems, to retrofit sewage treatment plants. In

          5  exchange for that the City got the ability or the

          6  authority to regulate growth and development in the

          7  watershed. In reality, what happened during the

          8  watershed negotiations is there were already

          9  regulations in effect since 1953, but they were

         10  generally perceived as too weak to protect the water

         11  supply, and in fact the water supply had declined,

         12  the quality of water had declined substantially

         13  since 1953 to the extent that the Croton system now

         14  needs to be filtered. So, those were inadequate.

         15                 Were those regulations actually

         16  strengthened through the watershed negotiations?

         17  Arguably not. In some cases they were, but in some

         18  cases the regulations were actually weakened, the

         19  buffer zones were shortened. We had a prohibition

         20  that EPA had enforced before we signed the watershed

         21  agreement against all new sewage treatment plants

         22  within a 60-day travel time of New York City. That

         23  prohibition was pierced by the regulations so now at

         24  least three new sewage treatment plants are going to

         25  be constructed. So, we didn't -- how ever you argue
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          2  it, because we did get some better regulations,

          3  stronger regulations, on two areas - the placement

          4  of impervious surfaces and stormwater discharges.

          5  But how ever you look at it, the regulations are not

          6  substantially stronger than they were during the

          7  time when the watershed was declining.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Hopefully

          9  enforcement is.

         10                 MR. KENNEDY: And that is my point, is

         11  that the only way that this memorandum, this

         12  agreement, is going to work to permanently protect

         13  the water supply of nine and a half million New

         14  Yorkers, is if we have strong implementation and

         15  enforcement by New York City, and at this point in

         16  history that is not happening. And over the last six

         17  months we have seen some disturbing signs that the

         18  political tradeoffs that have hampered watershed

         19  protection for decades are continuing to happen.

         20                 In the last six month, for example,

         21  thousands of new acres of watershed land have been

         22  opened up to developers, first with the steep slopes

         23  retreat, the loophole that was created by New York

         24  City to allow development on steep slopes which

         25  itself opens up tens of thousands of acres to new
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          2  development in the watershed, and now opening up

          3  thousands of acres of wetland acres to watershed

          4  development. This has come in response to political

          5  pressure from Delaware -- from upstate Republican

          6  party, but also from the Putnam County development

          7  community that used up all of the land that was

          8  suitable for development during the 1980s and now

          9  seeks to climb up onto hillsides and into wetlands

         10  and into areas that were in the past always regarded

         11  as too dangerous to develop.

         12                 The watershed, again the watershed

         13  regulations will not prohibit this. Commissioner

         14  Miele said in his testimony just now, and has said

         15  in the papers over the last few days, that the Corps

         16  of Engineers, under the process of the Corps

         17  explained it, the State of New York protects

         18  wetlands down to 12.4 acres. Wetlands up to three

         19  acres that were head waters, in other words, they

         20  had a flow less than five cubic feet per second,

         21  could be filled as long as -- up until recently

         22  without any restriction at all, you had to get a

         23  Nationwide Permit. That was not a good thing. And

         24  President Clinton was criticized for it, the Corps

         25  of Engineers was widely criticized, and President
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          2  Clinton responded three years ago by saying we are

          3  going to review and we are going to strengthen the

          4  Nationwide Permit Program because we are losing

          5  hundreds of thousands of these small acres of

          6  wetlands across the country and we now understand

          7  that these are critical towards water quality,

          8  aquifer, recharge habitat and a number of other

          9  benefits. Well, the Corps then kind of surprised

         10  people last summer when it announced these long

         11  awaited revisions which were actually supposed to

         12  strengthen the watershed regulations by weakening

         13  them further by allowing this loophole that had only

         14  applied to isolated wetlands that were above head

         15  water and say we are going to allow those Nationwide

         16  Permits in all fresh water wetlands. This loophole,

         17  this new loophole would open up thousands of acres

         18  in the New York City watershed to new development,

         19  and that is really what this is about.

         20                 Now, Commissioner Miele says, well,

         21  we are going to safeguard the people of the City of

         22  New York and the other people who drink this water

         23  supply because we are going to get the Corps to

         24  notify us before any of these wetlands are filled.

         25  In reality that doesn't work. In reality what you
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          2  have, it is a number of new attacks on the

          3  watershed.

          4                 First of all, as you pointed out a

          5  few moments ago, if you have a wetland and there are

          6  40 homeowners around it, each one of those

          7  homeowners technically has the ability to take their

          8  one-third or their three acres of wetland. The

          9  accumulative effect of that is enormous, and most of

         10  those will never make it into the regulatory

         11  process.

         12                 In my experience, and I would welcome

         13  and I invited the watershed Council the other day,

         14  to come on a tour of the watershed with me, and I

         15  will show you wetlands that have been filled,

         16  routinely filled in Westchester and Putnam County.

         17  Putnam County is now the fastest growing county in

         18  the State of New York, that is the best testimony

         19  that the watershed agreement is not working. The

         20  watershed agreement was supposed channel development

         21  into the towns, into the existing hamlets which

         22  would grow upwards but not outwards, and to preserve

         23  the open green landscapes that are so critical to

         24  water quality. But what we are seeing is development

         25  boom that is unprecedented, and again and again you
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          2  hear it invoked in meetings like this, this idea

          3  that what we are trying to do by reducing the

          4  regulatory burden is to protect the small farmer,

          5  this poor farmer supposedly. Putnam County is now

          6  the wealthiest county in New York State. It is the

          7  highest mean family income in New York State.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Above

          9  Westchester?

         10                 MR. KENNEDY: Yes. Above Westchester,

         11  above any place. And what we are doing with these

         12  kind of retreats from the regulation, if we are

         13  getting New York City taxpayers to subsidize

         14  developers in Putnam County who are building million

         15  dollar homes for the wealthiest population in New

         16  York State, and that is really what is happening if

         17  you look at, you know, what is going on here.

         18                 Will it work, to have the Corps now,

         19  to have this PC, this preconstruction notice, which

         20  Commissioner Miele said painted a panacea, the way

         21  that we are going to avoid the impact, the negative

         22  impacts of these new Nationwide Permits which are

         23  now going to apply to all of the wetlands in the

         24  watershed, is by having a preconstruction notice

         25  that will be sent to DEP. First of all, who
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          2  determines whether or not the wetland that he is

          3  about to fill, that a developer is about to fill, is

          4  a jurisdictional wetland? Is one that requires a

          5  preconstruction notice? Why can't a developer say,

          6  well, I have an acre wetland, but, you know, I have

          7  never really had it surveyed, maybe it is just a

          8  third of an acre, and just fill it? And then when

          9  they come to him and say you filled a whole acre,

         10  who is going to prove it? It is under ten feet of

         11  dirt. You will never be able to prove it. And of

         12  course this is what happens every day in the

         13  watershed.

         14                 So, number one, DEP is never going to

         15  find out about it.

         16                 Number two, and I cannot

         17  over-emphasize this point: The City of New York has

         18  an army of people, constituents in the upstate

         19  watershed, and I live in the watershed and you see

         20  people here from Trout Unlimited and from Sierra

         21  Club and from 20 or 30 different groups, little

         22  local constituent groups up in the watershed, who

         23  are trying to control growth. Why are they trying to

         24  control it? Because the growth in places like Putnam

         25  County is destroying their quality of life. It is
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          2  raising standards of living for a few people, and it

          3  is lowering quality of life for the majority of the

          4  people who moved up there, in order to take care of

          5  the amenities that are now being liquidated for cash

          6  by the big developers. And they don't like it, and

          7  their roads are choked with traffic, and they're

          8  breathing poor air, the water quality is declining,

          9  and the downtown centers, like Carmel and Bruster

         10  and Mt. Kisco are being robbed of their vitality,

         11  the local commercial people, the local hardware

         12  store owners are being put out of business by these

         13  big box stores, and these are the people that pay

         14  for the little leagues and pay for the CubScouts and

         15  support these communities and they are being put out

         16  of business. So, you have tremendous support in

         17  Putnam County, in Northern Westchester County, to

         18  stop this kind of careless development and what you

         19  are doing by making this a secret process between

         20  the Corps of Engineers and the DEP is you are

         21  ignoring those constituents.

         22                 If my neighbor tried to fill a

         23  wetland and he has got to go through the individual

         24  permit process, I am going to receive a notice of

         25  it, and I am going to be able to step up to the
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          2  plate and the City of New York never has to be

          3  involved.

          4                 I am going to be able to step up and

          5  say I don't want that wetland filled. I don't want

          6  that wetland filled, that is important for my

          7  quality of life. And at the planning boards and the

          8  local towns you are going to have hundreds of people

          9  who are fighting to stop those wetlands from being

         10  filled. And what you are doing is you are

         11  transforming that public process that is supposed to

         12  protect the publicly-owned resource into a private,

         13  closed corridors, darkened process that happens

         14  between one guy at the Corps and another guy at DEP,

         15  and the public will never find out about it. And you

         16  have abandoned your most powerful constituency for

         17  protecting the New York City watershed, which is the

         18  people of the New York City watershed, and that is

         19  what this process is about.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So out of all of

         21  these options you would opt obviously for Option 6?

         22                 MR. KENNEDY: No, I do not think

         23  Option 6 is powerful. I would opt for what Bill

         24  Stasiuk in his wisdom after 20 years of working on

         25  water quality and being the competent scientist of
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          2  DEP, who used to be the Deputy Director of the

          3  Department of Health of this State for, I don't

          4  know, decades, I would agree 100 percent with the

          5  letter that he sent, which is that there should be

          6  no Nationwide Permits in the watershed. Because if

          7  you let a guy fill a third of an acre, and his

          8  neighbor fill a third of an acre, and each one of

          9  those people is making a determination on their own

         10  eye-balling it, what a third of an acre is, you are

         11  going to lose a lot of wetland, and we shouldn't

         12  have that in the New York City watershed.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The point I was

         14  going to make in addition to that --

         15                 MR. KENNEDY: I think number 6 is too

         16  weak. I think we should do what Bill wants to do in

         17  his heart of hearts, we all know, which is to

         18  protect the New York City watershed.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Even under that

         20  scenario, even under the scenario using the

         21  individual wetlands permit, the ultimate decision is

         22  made by the engineers.

         23                 MR. KENNEDY: It is made by the

         24  engineers, and they really don't have that much

         25  discretion. I mean, you know, basically they check
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          2  off boxes and if those boxes are all checked off, if

          3  it is a Nationwide Permit, they really don't have

          4  much discretion about what they are going to do

          5  outside of that parameter.

          6                 They don't have the discretion. There

          7  is a presumption that that permit should be issued.

          8  There is a legal presumption that it should be

          9  issued. And so there is not much they can do. They

         10  can ask for an individual permit. That is what they

         11  can do.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Why is the

         13  individual permit preferable to the notice?

         14                 MR. KENNEDY: The individual permit is

         15  preferable because in that process you get public

         16  involvement.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

         18                 MR. KENNEDY: And you get the people

         19  who know what is going on in the watershed, you get

         20  the neighbors commenting, you get the guy who can

         21  say, look, I live on this pond next to developer X

         22  who now wants to develop a third of an acre, and I

         23  can tell you that we had an algae bloom in this pond

         24  that began in March last year and lasted to

         25  November, and that this pond, although it has never
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          2  been measured by anybody, is overloaded for

          3  phosphates and if you lose a third of an acre of

          4  wetland it is only going to compound that problem

          5  and therefore not any acre should be filled, and

          6  that happens all over the watershed. DEP doesn't

          7  know what is happening on these ponds.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am trying to

          9  make a point, if you would bear with me for a

         10  second.

         11                 In requiring the individual wetlands

         12  permit, and going through this notification and

         13  whatever has to be done there procedurally, but the

         14  ultimate decision has to be made by the Corps of

         15  Engineers based upon all of the information

         16  gathered; isn't that correct?

         17                 MR. KENNEDY: And we are fine with

         18  that, but we want --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am not

         20  finished yet.

         21                 MR. KENNEDY: Okay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: However, if they

         23  make a decision that is contrary to the great weight

         24  of evidence and all of the information that is

         25  obtained during that process, is there still -- I am
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          2  talking to you as one lawyer to another lawyer --

          3                 MR. KENNEDY: And we can appeal it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is there still

          5  the option of going into court and saying that they

          6  abused their discretion?

          7                 MR. KENNEDY: That's right. If it is

          8  arbitrary and capricious, if they have used their

          9  discretion we go to court. So we have that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So there still

         11  is an authority over and above the Army Corps of

         12  Engineers?

         13                 MR. KENNEDY: That's right.

         14                 You know, I will tell you, in real

         15  life --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is the

         17  value of the IWP?

         18                 MR. KENNEDY: That is one of the

         19  values. But to me the largest value, and this really

         20  works, is public input, and you know, the reason

         21  Congress put it in the Clean Water Act and the

         22  reason it is in all of our environmental statutes

         23  that you can't get a permit without public input is

         24  because it works. Because you have the public out

         25  there, the community members who can look at the
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          2  resource and say wait a second, this is important to

          3  the community for the following reason.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I agree with

          5  you, I was trying to get to the ultimate authority.

          6                 MR. KENNEDY: So, yes, those are the

          7  two reasons.

          8                 And then, you know, also, ultimately

          9  I think that the thing, the truth that this whole

         10  process has illustrated for us is that this is a

         11  political process, and that, you know, ultimately do

         12  we want DEP, which has just backed down for

         13  political reasons because somebody received a call

         14  from somebody else up in the Catskills, do we want

         15  them being allowed to run this whole process in

         16  private? Because all of these developers up there

         17  are connected. I mean, you go to Westchester and

         18  Putnam County, there are people who have roots in

         19  the City, who can call up some City official and

         20  say, listen, you know, I am about to fill this

         21  wetland, I don't want any trouble from the City.

         22                 I don't want that process to take

         23  place in the quiet. It should take place in the

         24  public. And you know, we have seen here, there is no

         25  better illustration that this process, the
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          2  protection of our watershed supply is up for grabs,

          3  is up for political trades, as it has been for many

          4  years for political considerations, to keep peace

          5  with particular people or with powerful people

          6  upstate, and we should try to move it into the light

          7  as much as possible.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I understand

          9  your point, of course I have no way of knowing the

         10  facts that you state, other than what you have said,

         11  but it is also important that we do have the

         12  goodwill of the people upstate, including the ones

         13  that you referred to who are very much for keeping

         14  the pristine quality of the water in the area for

         15  the wildlife, fishing and everything like that. But

         16  it is important that the people upstate also work

         17  with us on this issue in furtherance of what you are

         18  saying. I know you are from upstate --

         19                 MR. KENNEDY: Well, let me say this --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But you are

         21  saying it should be done strictly on the merits?

         22                 MR. KENNEDY: That's right. And you

         23  know, there are a lot of supporters upstate for much

         24  stronger City regulations.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I know, you said
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          2  that in the beginning of your testimony.

          3                 MR. KENNEDY: It depends region to

          4  region where you go to. But I want to say this

          5  because there has been an implication throughout the

          6  debate over this issue, that somehow when we signed

          7  the watershed agreement, we were creating a ceiling

          8  on new regulation on the New York City watershed,

          9  and that is baloney. In the two years that we sat in

         10  the room negotiating, debating that agreement,

         11  nobody, nobody ever raised that issue or said that.

         12  We were negotiating over what was in the New York

         13  City watershed regulations, and how much the City

         14  was going to have to pay the upstate communities to

         15  swallow them, and that's it. It had nothing to do

         16  with state regulations. And right now we are hoping

         17  the state upgrades the streams to AA special as you

         18  were saying in the watershed, are we going to now

         19  say they can't do that? Are we going to say we are

         20  going to put a freeze on all new City water

         21  regulations? This watershed agreement was supposed

         22  to be the foundation of the best watershed, of a

         23  model watershed protection system for the whole

         24  nation. It wasn't supposed to be a ceiling on the

         25  least protective watershed in the country, and that
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          2  is what people are now arguing. It is an 1,800-page

          3  agreement, and every word in there there was

          4  bloodshed over, and I challenge anybody to find me

          5  one word in that agreement that supports the

          6  interpretation that that agreement was supposed to

          7  freeze federal regulations in the watershed. So, you

          8  can come to me and say this is going to offend

          9  somebody upstate, but we sat in the room with the

         10  upstate people for two years and somebody should

         11  have raised it then out in the open when we could

         12  have debated it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: To my knowledge

         14  it does not contain such language.

         15                 MR. KENNEDY: It does not.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But I also

         17  wanted to make the point that a very important part

         18  of that was with the filtration avoidance.

         19                 MR. KENNEDY: That's right. And

         20  filtration that surface water treatment rule says

         21  New York City must demonstrate in order to avoid

         22  filtration, and this is not the EPA's choice, this

         23  is what congress said, that it must demonstrate that

         24  it has established control over all human activities

         25  in the New York City watershed that could impact
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          2  pollution or water quality. And this is a human

          3  activity that every scientist in this country will

          4  tell you can impact water quality. And whatever the

          5  EPA says, and I have to say I am disappointed about

          6  the EPA's position on here and that it hasn't been a

          7  stronger force for watershed protection, but

          8  whatever the EPA says, Congress has already made the

          9  decision that the City has to demonstrate its

         10  control over all activities in the watershed that

         11  might impact pollution or water protection and

         12  clearly filling wetlands, whether it is a third of

         13  an acre or three acres are those kind of activities.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

         15                 Are there any questions?

         16                 Thank you very much.

         17                 MR. KENNEDY: Thank you.

         18                 Next we have the Deputy Comptroller

         19  Jack Chartier, on behalf of the Comptroller of the

         20  City of New York.

         21                 Mr. Chartier, I appreciate it.

         22                 MR. CHARTIER: Council Member Michels,

         23  members of the Committee, first of all I apologize

         24  for the Comptroller Alan Hevesi for not being here,

         25  he has an all-day seminar taking place.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We understood

          3  that and we are sorry that we could not schedule

          4  this for a more convenient time for his being here.

          5                 MR. CHARTIER: And I also want to

          6  thank you for allowing me to follow Robert Kennedy,

          7  Jr., he's a tough act to follow.

          8                 As you know, Comptroller Hevesi --

          9  before I give the Comptroller's testimony, let me

         10  introduce Mike Granade, the Chief Engineer in the

         11  Comptroller's Office, and also with us is Nancy

         12  Anderson, our Chief Environmentalist, and Alison

         13  Walsh, our Legislative Counsel.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: All people who

         15  are familiar to me.

         16                 MR. CHARTIER: Right. Well, just in

         17  case there are hard questions, they will answer

         18  them.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We have some

         20  good ones for you.

         21                 MR. CHARTIER: As you know,

         22  Comptroller Hevesi has been actively involved in the

         23  negotiations and the development of the Memorandum

         24  of Agreement issued in 1997. That agreement included

         25  a filtration avoidance determination granting New
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          2  York City a waiver from the requirement to filter

          3  the Catskill Delaware drinking water supply.

          4                 The Comptroller insisted on many

          5  changes to the agreement that had been negotiated

          6  between the federal and state officials and upstate

          7  and City representatives to ensure that the City's

          8  massive $2.2 billion investment in the MOA would buy

          9  us all long-term watershed protection.

         10                 His many concerns about the MOA are

         11  described in our report Avoiding Disaster. In it he

         12  warns that the Watershed MOA represented only a

         13  first step in establishing a new watershed

         14  protection program to keep our drinking water clean

         15  and to avoid the need to fill the costly filtration

         16  plant. Among his concerns then and now is the

         17  possibility that inappropriate development could

         18  threaten the purity of the drinking water of 9

         19  million New Yorkers. Since viable wetlands are an

         20  essential element of our watershed's defenses, we

         21  are particularly concerned with the impending

         22  decision of the Army Corps of Engineers regarding

         23  permits for modification and activity affecting

         24  wetlands, and with the Administration's recent

         25  reversal regarding the Army Corps proposals.
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          2                 The Comptroller strongly disagrees

          3  with the DEP Commissioner in that decision,

          4  apparently reacting to upstate complaints, to

          5  withdraw certain comments on the wetlands proposals.

          6                 DEP had, beginning in August,

          7  advocated for special regional conditions to be

          8  applied to the Corps wetlands permit program for the

          9  City's watershed. Such conditions would mandate

         10  stricter Army Corps scrutiny of applications to fill

         11  or modify wetlands in the City's watershed.

         12                 It was not until February that Mr.

         13  Miele decided that he had been mistaken and sent a

         14  letter withdrawing the earlier comments. But DEP was

         15  correct in advocating the special conditions for the

         16  City's drinking water supply. The City has invested

         17  over $2 billion in watershed protection efforts

         18  through the MOA alone and has an obligation to the

         19  water rate payers and the public health to advocate

         20  for the strongest possible protections against

         21  pollution.

         22                 The Administration's late decision to

         23  advocate the less stringent permitting requirements

         24  in the watershed is to say the least disappointing.

         25                 Wetlands serve as vital functions in
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          2  our watershed, they act as natural filters of

          3  pollutants, breaking them down before they enter our

          4  streams. They prevent erosion and by holding water

          5  during storm periods and releasing it to recharge

          6  the groundwater supply.

          7                 Wetlands also perform key functions

          8  for upstate residents. By providing food for small

          9  fish, they help the trout fishing industry and that

         10  is important to many upstate towns.

         11                 They help to reduce the flooding and

         12  erosion that has caused so much property damage in

         13  steep slope areas. While wetlands may represent a

         14  relatively small percentage of the City's watershed

         15  acreage, they are often found along streams and

         16  reservoirs that directly or indirectly feed our

         17  water supply.

         18                 In July of 1998, the Army Corps

         19  proposed a new and modified NWP program to become

         20  effective on September 15th of 1999, and that would

         21  have allowed National Wetland Permits to be issued

         22  for all wetlands up to two or three acres. Many of

         23  these wetlands cannot at present be altered without

         24  receiving individual permits from the Corps, which

         25  entails scrutiny of each proposed application.
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          2                 This proposal means that thousands of

          3  acres of wetlands nationwide could be changed

          4  without prior scrutiny by the Corps.

          5                 In November of 1998, the New York

          6  District Office of the Corps issued proposed special

          7  regional conditions to the City's watershed that

          8  would require the Army Corps scrutiny of any

          9  alteration of a wetland over one-third of an acre.

         10  Subsequently the Comptroller and others wrote to the

         11  Army Corps in support of the regional conditions and

         12  opposing the use of Nationwide Wetland Permits in

         13  the New York City watershed.

         14                 The Comptroller remains convinced

         15  that the National Permit Program proposed in July by

         16  the Corps is insufficient for the City's watershed

         17  and that special condition for the watershed, as

         18  proposed by the New York District Office of the Army

         19  Corps in November are appropriate and indeed

         20  necessary for the Nation's largest unfiltered

         21  drinking water supply.

         22                 Two days ago the New York District

         23  Office of the Army Corps, having received extensive

         24  comments regarding the proposals, met with members

         25  of the Watershed Protection and Partnership Council
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          2  to explain the permit process. The Corps said that

          3  it presently plans to suspend its decision on

          4  modifications to the permit program for the New York

          5  City watershed, pending comment on several

          6  alternative proposals that were explained at the

          7  meeting.

          8                 Most of these were combined

          9  Nationwide Permits and the most rigorous scrutiny of

         10  the individual permitting process, depending on the

         11  size of the wetland.

         12                 According to the Corps, these will be

         13  proposed shortly in the federal register, and the

         14  Comptroller's Office will review and comment on them

         15  at that time.

         16                 However, EPA has already said it

         17  finds that two of these alternatives are

         18  insufficient in protecting the watershed, and this

         19  most recent set of options represents a departure

         20  from the New York office's earlier proposal of a

         21  uniformed set of special conditions for the entire

         22  watershed.

         23                 Still, the Comptroller is hopeful

         24  that the Army Corps is now giving the City's

         25  watershed the deliberation it merits and can arrive
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          2  at a sound permitting program that protects the

          3  City's drinking water supply.

          4                 Whether through an umbrella set of

          5  special conditions imposed uniformly throughout the

          6  watershed or otherwise, the Army Corps must adopt a

          7  permit program that protects our watershed against

          8  threats by the development.

          9                 In the meantime, we encourage the

         10  Army Corps in its reconsideration of the wetlands

         11  permit in the City's watershed, to consider

         12  development pressures in certain crucial areas of

         13  the watershed and remember the importance of

         14  credible administration and enforcement of any

         15  permit conditions it imposes. You can have all the

         16  guidelines you want, and if they aren't adhered to

         17  and if they aren't followed up with, the guidelines

         18  and regulations mean nothing.

         19                 Any program it adopts should

         20  incorporate such assessments, particularly for parts

         21  of the watershed where development pressure is

         22  strongest, such as in Westchester and Putnam County.

         23                 Water quality in the crucial areas of

         24  the reservoirs have already been and continues to be

         25  threatened by the expansion of the Route 120 and
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          2  associated new projects that have already been

          3  approved.

          4                 No new permits should be issued in

          5  these areas without the highest possible level of

          6  scrutiny. Any other scheme leaves open the

          7  possibility that critical small wetlands areas could

          8  be lost.

          9                 Let me conclude by saying that the

         10  Comptroller's belief is that scientific facts and

         11  not politics should dictate these decisions and one

         12  of the most important conditions on which the

         13  Comptroller has based his approval of the modified

         14  MOA was that a study of the watershed be undertaken

         15  by the National Academy of Sciences, and a National

         16  Research Council Water Sciences and Technology

         17  Board. This study, which is scheduled to be released

         18  this summer, will provide a scientific assessment of

         19  the Catskill/Delaware Water Supply and Watershed. We

         20  are confident that all concerned government

         21  agencies, and the concerned public, will benefit

         22  from this report, and we urge the Corps, if

         23  possible, to consider its findings in making its

         24  final determination on the NWP proposal.

         25                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Council Member

          3  Marshall.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Actually, my

          5  comments relate to the former speaker, but they are

          6  applicable also in this case.

          7                 I have had some experience with the

          8  water, it is actually Flushing Bay, which Jack knows

          9  all about, and we have had to deal with the Army

         10  Corps of Engineers and with the State DEC and the

         11  Port Authority, and it is very important for public

         12  input to be in place.

         13                 These permits were seen as of right

         14  almost, even though there is a very stringent

         15  process to put them through, and had it not been for

         16  a public inquiry and intervention, the project would

         17  have gone through and it would have been

         18  devastating, we would have lost a whole body of

         19  water. So I can't emphasize enough the human element

         20  and to be sure that the public is involved. When we

         21  have large massive agencies working with one

         22  another, there tends to be a courtesy one to another

         23  without really the accuracy of the public and in

         24  this case, as it is up in the watershed area, as it

         25  is right there on the coast in Queens around
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          2  LaGuardia Airport it affects people who live there,

          3  and we as the people who live there had to get an

          4  attorney, we had to pay him, in fact we got

          5  attorneys from the project in the Hudson River, at

          6  any rate it will come to me in a minute. At any

          7  rate, we went and we got them, they were from the

          8  Sierra Club, et cetera. And the young fellow named

          9  Gerard did a great job and showed some very

         10  interesting things about the process when it

         11  involves a major agency like the Port Authority of

         12  New York and New Jersey and DEC.

         13                 And so that it is very, very

         14  important, even elected officials, and I was in the

         15  Assembly at the time, must take an active role and

         16  we must listen to the people in the area. I just

         17  wanted to underline that. And particularly here

         18  where we are very concerned, it is a very delicate

         19  area. We have worked hard to try to come up with

         20  these agreements and so on and it is not the first

         21  time I have sat on this Committee and seen people

         22  come from all over the State in an effort to make

         23  sure that our water is in good shape and to also

         24  look out for those people on the watershed property.

         25                 MR. CHARTIER: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay, thank you.

          3                 MR. CHARTIER: Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank the

          5  Comptroller for his interest, we appreciate you

          6  being here and continue in the good work. It is a

          7  very interesting issue.

          8                 Next we are going to have Jeff Baker,

          9  who is the -- well, he will tell you who he is

         10  himself.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: It was

         12  Westway that I was trying to --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are not going

         14  to waive your credentials, Jeff.

         15                 Mr. Baker.

         16                 MR. BAKER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Identify

         18  yourself and who you represent, as you usually do.

         19                 MR. BAKER: My name is Jeffrey Baker.

         20  I am an attorney and I represent the Catskill

         21  Watershed Corporation and the Coalition of Watershed

         22  Towns. I have been involved in --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They are two

         24  different groups?

         25                 MR. BAKER: They are two different
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          2  groups. The Coalition of Watershed Towns is an

          3  inter-municipal organization, comprised of

          4  approximately 35 towns and villages that compromise

          5  the bulk of the west of the Hudson watershed.

          6                 The Catskill Watershed Corporation is

          7  a not-for-profit local development corporation,

          8  which was established pursuant to the watershed MOA,

          9  which implements many of the programs under the MOA.

         10  It is comprised of a 15-member board, 12 of those

         11  members are publicly elected officials from the

         12  watershed. There is an appointment from the Mayor's

         13  Office, who is at this point Dr. Stasiuk, there is

         14  an appointment from the Governor's Office, who is

         15  DEC Deputy Commissioner Erin Crotty, and there is a

         16  representative of the Environmental parties who was

         17  chosen by Governor Pataki.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And do they

         19  always agree, the two of them?

         20                 MR. BAKER: No.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How do you

         22  represent two conflicting groups? Sometimes

         23  conflicting.

         24                 MR. BAKER: They have not conflicted.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So far.
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          2                 MR. BAKER: So far. If there is ever a

          3  conflict, obviously I will be recusing myself and

          4  not getting involved in it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: As far as your

          6  testimony is concerned here on this issue, they are

          7  in agreement?

          8                 MR. BAKER: There is no conflict

          9  whatsoever on that at all.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Please proceed.

         11                 You have some written testimony?

         12                 MR. BAKER: I have written testimony,

         13  which I passed up to the staff. I will summarize the

         14  tone or the substance of it as I respond to some of

         15  the comments that I have heard today and remind you

         16  of several points.

         17                 I regret that other members of the

         18  Committee did not stay around or the press after Mr.

         19  Kennedy left.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We will make

         21  sure they understand what you are saying, we will

         22  get your testimony.

         23                 MR. BAKER: I understand I don't have

         24  the pedigree that he has, but --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is the
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          2  problem we always have in all legislative bodies.

          3                 MR. BAKER: We all have to suffer

          4  that, I suppose.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Everybody has

          6  other schedules and other places to be. I am here

          7  and I am listening fully to you, as I did a couple

          8  of days ago.

          9                 MR. BAKER: I appreciate it, Mr.

         10  Michels. And as has been said before, it is true

         11  that this Committee was I think the first group that

         12  tried to open up a dialogue between the upstate and

         13  downstate, and you have --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And I think we

         15  did.

         16                 MR. BAKER: And you did. And you were

         17  very successful. And I appreciate the efforts that

         18  you and Speaker Vallone put in the past to get away

         19  from some of the politics and look at some of the

         20  substantive issues and help support what came to the

         21  watershed memorandum agreement.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We like to think

         23  that we do government, not politics.

         24                 MR. BAKER: That is the crucial

         25  distinction. I am glad you said that, because that
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          2  is what this issue is. The issue here is governance,

          3  good governance. It has been politicized, unfairly

          4  politicized by Mr. Kennedy, I have to tell you.  And

          5  I apologize if I am intemperate in my comments.

          6  Virtually everything he told you was false.

          7                 If you look into the facts and we can

          8  get down to it, everything he said has no basis in

          9  the facts or the law. So let me go through what the

         10  point is, because this is an issue of governance.

         11                 The Watershed Memorandum of Agreement

         12  came up with a comprehensive plan to protect New

         13  York City's water supply well into the future, it is

         14  a phenomenal document. It is phenomenal because it

         15  established for the first time in history, peace,

         16  partnership and cooperation between New York City

         17  and the upstate community to protect the City's

         18  water supply and the watershed MOA specifically

         19  recognizes that the goals of watershed protection

         20  and economic prosperity for the watershed residents

         21  are not incompatible.  They can happen together and

         22  they recognize this.

         23                 One of the biggest issues I had as an

         24  attorney representing those towns and getting the

         25  members of the towns and constituents to agree to
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          2  sign the MOA was a question of trust; can we trust

          3  the City? We cannot trust the City, people said,

          4  they have reneged on promises in the past. And the

          5  MOA was an embodiment of that trust that we could

          6  work together and undertake new initiatives together

          7  and not change the agreement that are reached as

          8  part of that. And I commend Commissioner Miele for

          9  his comments, because he recognized the need for

         10  maintaining that trust and maintaining the word of

         11  this City and that is what caused him to revise the

         12  comments that --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I should also

         14  say, I hate to interrupt you, but the fact of the

         15  matter is that some of us here, what we thought was

         16  extremely important, was to tell the City that they

         17  should go up and purchase the property or the

         18  easements and they are now doing it on a one-on-one

         19  basis and not using eminent domain or high-handed

         20  tactics to get the property in order to maintain the

         21  goodwill with the people from upstate, and I think

         22  that contributed greatly to the good feeling between

         23  --

         24                 MR. BAKER: That was a critical

         25  element of it and could not have been done without
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          2  it.

          3                 But what also was critical and what

          4  was so important to this City and to everybody is

          5  that this process that led up to MA was a long,

          6  tortuous process that took seven years to do it. We

          7  did not want to make this an unending battle. We

          8  were coming up with collectively watershed

          9  regulations that are eons beyond what previously

         10  existed despite what Mr. Kennedy said.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The 53

         12  regulations.

         13                 MR. BAKER: The 53 regulations

         14  governed previous. Essentially that was it. You now

         15  are mandating tertiary treatment for wastewater

         16  treatment plants on the watershed. This is the only

         17  place in the country that requires mandatory prior

         18  review of stormwater pollution prevention plants to

         19  control non-point source pollutions. You have

         20  stricter regulations on septic systems than

         21  elsewhere in the state, you have strict regulations

         22  on the location of impervious services. To say that

         23  these regulations are not far and beyond what was

         24  there before is patently false. And the important

         25  factor that came in when we were negotiating these
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          2  things was that New York City does not regulate in

          3  the watershed in a vacuum. You are not, the DEP is

          4  not the only environmental agency out there. We have

          5  a whole host of state environmental laws that came

          6  into effect in the 1970s after much of the

          7  development east of Hudson.

          8                 You have these federal environmental

          9  laws and the Army Corps Wetlands laws, which were

         10  all the foundation upon which everything else was

         11  built. The goal from the City's perspective was

         12  where do we need to make things better, where aren't

         13  things covered, and that should be the focus of the

         14  regulation. And so, going along with that is because

         15  no one did not want to go through the process any

         16  longer or have to continue to revisit it. We had

         17  this huge program of regulations, infrastructure

         18  improvements and land acquisition, the City wanted

         19  assurance on its filtration avoidance determinations

         20  that that would be good for at least five years, and

         21  all of the parties wanted an opportunity to evaluate

         22  the effectiveness of the programs embodied in the

         23  MOA, and revisit those in five years. Because you

         24  need time. When you are coming up with such a

         25  comprehensive package, you have to see how it works.
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          2                 The regulations haven't even been in

          3  effect for two years yet, and yet people are saying

          4  there is some kind of a threat, we have to reopen

          5  this agreement, we have to go back and do added

          6  regulations that weren't there before? When the

          7  people in the watershed hear that, there is going to

          8  be hell to pay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Two things.

         10  Number one, even though we have a five-year period

         11  from the day the MOA was signed, we also have a

         12  situation that if we are not doing what has to be

         13  done, the EPA doesn't even have to wait the five

         14  years to require us to build the filtration plant.

         15  That is something we have always been told. They can

         16  short circuit if they think there is a threat to the

         17  water supply. So I think that is important.

         18                 There is no question there has been

         19  some very wonderful things and are many wonderful

         20  things in the MOA, and that is extremely important

         21  also, and that we set up within the MOA a body which

         22  you are a member of, and which I am not exactly a

         23  member of the same group but a part of that group

         24  where people can sit down and talk, as we did two

         25  days ago, to try to resolve our differences.
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          2                 MR. BAKER: And that was the important

          3  issue to happen.

          4                 Let me talk about the specifics of

          5  the wetlands issue and this question that somehow

          6  there has been a relaxation of standards and that

          7  now we are open --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Can we agree on

          9  one other thing?

         10                 MR. BAKER: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: If it wasn't for

         12  the Corps of Engineers coming out with these new

         13  regulations and wanting to do a 26, much of this

         14  controversy wouldn't have come about.

         15                 MR. BAKER: That is probably true, but

         16  we knew that was going to be happening, and that is

         17  where it is important, because let's talk about

         18  baseline.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes, I wanted to

         20  go into that.

         21                 MR. BAKER: That is the critical

         22  factor.

         23                 Yes, there is a provision, and that

         24  is why the Partnership Council deals with

         25  initiatives, if we had missed something in the
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          2  regulations or in the program that posed a threat to

          3  the water supply, that required something to happen

          4  before the five-year review, yes, there was an

          5  opportunity to come back and do that. If something

          6  that was a threat to the filtration avoidance had to

          7  be considered, there is no restriction on that being

          8  considered. So that is a given. There is no

          9  endangerment to the FAD from that respect. The

         10  wetlands don't do it. Let me give you some history,

         11  and this is all -- please check my facts on this,

         12  this is all true.

         13                 When the MOA was signed, and more

         14  importantly, when it was fully negotiated and the

         15  regulations were developed, and the EPA issued its

         16  draft filtration avoidance determination, the

         17  Nationwide Permit Program that Corps had in a place

         18  allowed a blanket Nationwide Permit filling up to

         19  one acre. Not a third of an acre, up to one acre.

         20                 You could then go up to ten acres

         21  with a preconstruction notification, a PCN, beyond

         22  that required an individual permit.

         23                 So, the baseline we were working at

         24  the time already envisioned a certain allowance, a

         25  permissive filling of wetlands up to one acre, it
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          2  did not cover wetlands below the head waters. It was

          3  only wetlands above the head waters and isolated

          4  wetlands, but that was the number.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The thing that

          6  was involved and even though it hasn't been

          7  delineated is below the head waters.

          8                 MR. BAKER: Well, there is an

          9  important distinction, because I might agree with

         10  you --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I think it is an

         12  important distinction, above and below the head

         13  waters.

         14                 MR. BAKER: I might agree with you on

         15  that, and the State might agree with you if that

         16  were the distinction, but when you listen to what

         17  Mr. Kennedy said, and what the EPA said, is he is

         18  not concerned with wetlands below the head waters,

         19  that suddenly that has been opened up as a loophole,

         20  if you will, or a new area that is covered by it. He

         21  is saying all Nationwide Permits, all wetlands above

         22  the head waters and isolated will not be allowed

         23  without an environmental impact statement. An

         24  environmental impact statement will cost $100,000.

         25  Remember the definition of a federal wetland: There
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          2  is no size limitation on it. This is not an

          3  exaggeration, and you can ask the representatives of

          4  the Corps to contradict me if I am wrong, but a

          5  federal wetland can include a rut in a road that has

          6  wetland vegetation, standing water, and hydric

          7  soils, and if it is big enough to delineate with a

          8  circle on a survey map, that is a federally

          9  jurisdictional wetland. So what you are saying now

         10  --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Even if it is

         12  more than a third of an acre?

         13                 MR. BAKER: Oh, it can be -- I have

         14  seen them as ten square feet being delineated by the

         15  Corps on a whole process, and now you are saying you

         16  can't fill that without an environmental impact

         17  statement.

         18                 I started my career as an

         19  environmental lawyer in 1987, and my first cases

         20  were the Staten Island's Freshwater Wetlands cases.

         21  I don't think I have to remind people what kind of

         22  hell people went through down there having to deal

         23  with wetlands regulations down here. If you don't

         24  think that is a minor issue, put those same

         25  restrictions back in Richmond County and see if it
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          2  is acceptable down here, because we are not talking

          3  about any water quality here, his goal is stopping

          4  all development at all levels, regardless of the

          5  impact of water quality.

          6                 But let me get back to my point on

          7  how --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I think he would

          9  disagree with you on that.

         10                 MR. BAKER: Not from what I heard.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I didn't hear

         12  him say that.

         13                 Okay, continue.

         14                 MR. BAKER: When the MOA was signed,

         15  the limits were one to ten. It then went down and it

         16  was noticed in December '96 and took effect in

         17  February 1997, the current restriction that is in

         18  place now is Nationwide 26, which is up to a third

         19  of an acre, with the Nationwide Permit, up to three

         20  acres with a PCN and above that with an individual

         21  permit.

         22                 What nobody brought to your

         23  attention, although I know you heard this on

         24  Tuesday, Mr. Michels, was that what goes in hand

         25  with the federal wetlands program is the state water
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          2  quality certification program. It goes together. The

          3  federal government cannot issue permits under its

          4  wetlands permit program without getting a water

          5  quality certification from New York State Department

          6  of Environmental Conservation, and that allows

          7  certain Nationwide Permits to go forward.

          8                 The current standard statewide is

          9  that the state has given a blanket water quality

         10  circ for the Nationwide Permit activities up to a

         11  third of an acre.

         12                 Above a third of an acre requires an

         13  individual water quality certification process,

         14  which is a permitting process. It provides for

         15  public input. It provides for public comment, it

         16  does not escape notice. And, as Mr. Sweebode told us

         17  at the Partnership Council meeting on Tuesday, any

         18  time you are involved under current regulation with

         19  a PCN they always require mitigation, you get into a

         20  very careful review, it is not an easy process. And

         21  in my experience and in my firm's experience doing a

         22  lot of environmental work, you are invariably in a

         23  one to a one and a half year process in that and it

         24  is no minor feat to get that kind of a permit.

         25                 So what we are talking about when
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          2  they are saying we don't want a rollback from what

          3  we agreed to on an MOA, we already have a

          4  significantly stricter federal regulatory scheme

          5  than was envisioned when the MOA was issued, and we

          6  have a stricter federal scheme than was approved by

          7  EPA when it issued its FAD to the City, because when

          8  the FAD was issued you could go up to one acre.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: This covers all

         10  wetlands within the watershed?

         11                 MR. BAKER: All federally regulated

         12  wetlands.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: All wetlands.

         14  Forget about whether they are federally regulated or

         15  not.

         16                 MR. BAKER: No.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We have a lot of

         18  wetlands in the watershed. If you remember, the

         19  Commissioner did say there were certain wetlands

         20  that they don't have jurisdiction over.

         21                 MR. BAKER: The ones that they don't

         22  have jurisdiction over, only the federally regulated

         23  wetlands. They have jurisdiction by the way the

         24  regulations work over everything else.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What is your
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          2  comment on the mapping situation?

          3                 MR. BAKER: The mapping? The mapping

          4  of new wetlands?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The mapping of

          6  the wetlands, so that they can have jurisdiction

          7  over them?

          8                 MR. BAKER: Well, that goes to again

          9  one of the errors in Mr. Kennedy's testimony, is

         10  that we had specific discussions, and I can tell you

         11  the time, place, of where it was, about wetlands and

         12  where the extent of the wetlands were, and Mr.

         13  Kennedy's group said that they wanted the state to

         14  regulate all wetlands less than 12.4 acres as

         15  wetlands of unusual local importance. You can't do

         16  that legally.

         17                 There is a process under state law

         18  that if a wetland smaller than 12.4 acres is deemed

         19  of unusual local importance as proposed by the City

         20  or the State, that a process has to go through and a

         21  hearing and you have to notify the land owners and

         22  give an opportunity and you have to demonstrate why

         23  it is of unusual local importance. It is an

         24  expensive, an arduous process and requires some real

         25  proof. And again, I bring you back to the Staten

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            151

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  Island --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Who is the

          4  burden on in that case to prove that?

          5                 MR. BAKER: It is not necessarily a

          6  burden of proof, the ultimate decision would be

          7  DEC's, which depending on the hearing they held

          8  would be either arbitrary and capricious or

          9  substantial evidence to support their decision.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And the question

         11  also is notification.

         12                 MR. BAKER: Well, you notify the land

         13  owners and the people around it, a notification

         14  process. And what was said in that is, there is

         15  nothing stopping New York City or Riverkeeper or

         16  anyone else who feels that there are wetlands out

         17  there that are not protected under state law that

         18  are of unusual local importance to demonstrate it.

         19  Show that it requires a level of proof, a new level

         20  of regulation as otherwise provided on state law.

         21  They haven't made an effort to do that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: First they have

         23  to have knowledge that there is an attempt to do

         24  some filling in the wetlands.

         25                 MR. BAKER: No, that is not true.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How are they

          3  going to find out that somebody is going to go ahead

          4  and modify the wetlands?

          5                 MR. BAKER: That would actually be too

          6  late to do it.

          7                 The time to do it is if there is an

          8  extensive network of small wetlands out there that

          9  deserve protection under state law that escape it

         10  now, they obviously must know about them. There are

         11  maps. There is a nationwide inventory -- excuse me.

         12  The national. The National Wetlands Inventory Map,

         13  that were prepared by the US Fish and Wildlife

         14  Service and DEP for the New York City Watershed that

         15  were issued in 1997. When those were issued, it was

         16  at that time Mr. Kennedy's group or anybody else

         17  could have started the process in identifying those

         18  wetlands which were smaller than 12.4 acres that

         19  warranted protection. Nothing happened on it. There

         20  was no proposal there.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Which would also

         22  be an extremely extensive process.

         23                 MR. BAKER: Well, somebody has to

         24  undertake it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You don't

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            153

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  believe the government should, a governmental

          3  authority or the State or the City should be doing

          4  something like that?

          5                 MR. BAKER: The State and the City can

          6  do it. I don't believe, and I don't know extensively

          7  what is out there, but I certainly would not agree

          8  that you should take every small pocket of a wetland

          9  and designate it as unusual local importance in the

         10  watershed, that is contrary to the intent of the

         11  statute.

         12                 There may be certain ones out there

         13  that do warrant it and that is worth doing.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And that hasn't

         15  been done either?

         16                 MR. BAKER: No. But what the State has

         17  said, and the money that they are taking, the

         18  federal money, is that because of the inventory maps

         19  that were done, they did identify some wetlands

         20  above 12.4 acres that had escaped the original state

         21  wetlands map, and the state is looking at those.

         22  They don't have to show unusual local importance for

         23  those, they just have to show that they exist. And

         24  those are the ones that they are going to study and

         25  propose amending the maps to put those on the maps
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          2  and get --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, under 12.4

          4  is still a substantial amount of property.

          5                 MR. BAKER: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It could be a

          7  substantial amount of property.

          8                 MR. BAKER: But anything under 12.4

          9  acres still falls under Corps jurisdiction, Army

         10  Corps jurisdiction, and you can't escape the fact

         11  that New York City still has regulations that

         12  prohibit activities within 100 feet of a water

         13  course.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

         15                 MR. BAKER: And any wetland of any

         16  significant importance that would have an impact on

         17  this water supply system is going to be within 100

         18  feet of a water course.

         19                 Isolated wetlands that have no

         20  surface connection to the water supply do not as a

         21  matter of fact in law have an impact on the water

         22  supply. It doesn't flow from it.

         23                 We are not talking about general

         24  wetlands benefits as wildlife habitat, I am not

         25  arguing that. We are arguing what is relevant here
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          2  and special and critical to the water quality of

          3  this City.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So you are

          5  saying that the wetlands that are critical to the

          6  water supply and to the purity of the water supply

          7  of the City, are all under some sort of regulation?

          8                 MR. BAKER: I suppose in my mind I can

          9  imagine a situation where one somehow is escaping

         10  that kind of regulation, but I have yet to see one

         11  actually on a map or in reality where something like

         12  that is at risk.

         13                 Another important point where we

         14  supposedly have this new threat because of the Army

         15  Corps, because of dropping and opening up Nationwide

         16  Permits to below the head water, I have asked, we

         17  still have not seen how many acres are threatened by

         18  that, where are these wetlands on these national

         19  inventory maps that are below the head waters. The

         20  Corps doesn't know. EPA doesn't know.

         21                 As I learned today, the City is in

         22  the process of starting to map where those things

         23  are to identify, and that of course will be useful

         24  to see, but to jump to the conclusion that we have

         25  thousands or hundreds of thousands of acres that are
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          2  at risk is hyperbole. There is nothing out there

          3  that shows what it is.

          4                 As Mr. Miele pointed out,

          5  Commissioner Miele pointed out, based on the

          6  inventory maps that were done before, you have west

          7  of Hudson approximately 6,000 acres, 6,400 acres, of

          8  vegetated wetlands, most of those are already under

          9  control of this City or this State. The amount that

         10  is missing from there that is somehow escaping

         11  coverage by the new proposed nationwide, I submit is

         12  very small, if any. And that is the point that the

         13  upstate community is saying, if you think there is a

         14  threat to the water quality here that has to be

         15  protected, because we rely on clean water too, we

         16  drink it, we recreate in it, it is important to the

         17  economy. Show us where those problems are and they

         18  will address them, and they would probably join in

         19  figuring out how to deal with those, simply working

         20  on anecdotal information, and the position that more

         21  regulation is good because we should use more

         22  regulation to protect our water supply because it

         23  provides clean water for 9 million people is wrong.

         24                 Because I could give that back to

         25  you, Mr. Chairman, and say, under that one I could
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          2  also tell you that you could protect the City's

          3  water supply more by putting even added treatment on

          4  treatment plants and throw more money, better money

          5  into controlling turbidity through your stream

          6  corridor protection program, which is grossly

          7  underfunded, and you could put money into

          8  controlling turbidity coming through the Esopis

          9  Tunnel from the Sochary (phonetic), and the City

         10  should spend hundreds of millions of its own money

         11  first to have a much greater impact on the water

         12  supply. But you are looking for certainty in your

         13  own regulatory programs and your own burdens you

         14  have from EPA, and that is why the MOA and the FAD

         15  are done that way so that you are not open to an

         16  arbitrary thing of going through the whole process,

         17  EPA coming down and saying, you know, we want even

         18  stronger treatment on these treatment plants and go

         19  spend a lot more money for it.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, I think

         21  they are coming down because of the suggested

         22  changes by the Corps of Engineers.

         23                 MR. BAKER: But the suggested change

         24  is the only, the only delta, if you will, from what

         25  currently exists, is whether these cover below the
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          2  head waters. And if we were to --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And that could

          4  be a substantial change.

          5                 MR. BAKER: It hasn't been shown to

          6  it. But what is being asked by the Corps --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is the

          8  whole point I was going to make before, it really

          9  behooves government to do that, rather than

         10  individuals or individual groups to do that, to go

         11  in and find that, because there is a substantial

         12  expenditure of funds, but it is government's

         13  function to at least obtain the knowledge as to what

         14  needs to be protected, if it must be protected.

         15                 MR. BAKER: And I agree, then it is up

         16  to the Corps, the EPA, DEP when they originally ask

         17  for it and the people are doing it to map and show

         18  where those problems are.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right. And I

         20  don't disagree, I think the mapping is a good idea.

         21  At least before we decide what to do, at least we

         22  have knowledge of what is there to be regulated. If

         23  we are to regulate it.

         24                 MR. BAKER: You see, actually I think

         25  you and I agree on one thing, is that the area of
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          2  risk here may be the wetlands below the head waters

          3  that are now open to one-third of an acre of

          4  disturbance on a Nationwide Permit, all right?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Which can also

          6  be accumulative, which is a point that was made and

          7  could be a good point.

          8                 MR. BAKER: And that might be true.

          9  The State is considering that on a statewide basis,

         10  whether they want that to go forward on a statewide

         11  basis.

         12                 The proposal from Mr. Kennedy and the

         13  Corps is not to deal with Nationwide Permits below

         14  the head waters only, he wants to abolish Nationwide

         15  Permits and require individual permits on all

         16  wetlands, isolated and above the head waters, at

         17  least at the Corps' proposal above one-third of an

         18  acre and by Mr. Kennedy on all of them. That is not

         19  the change in law that has been proposed by the

         20  Corps. The only change proposed by the Corps is

         21  opening up wetlands below the head water. If that

         22  was the limit of the regional condition there may

         23  not be a disagreement, although our basic position

         24  is, if you want to put a stricter regulation on the

         25  watershed than is otherwise applicable elsewhere in
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          2  the state, show why it is necessary for water

          3  quality, because the comprehensive program that we

          4  have, and believe me, it is causing extreme

          5  difficulty in the watershed for people learning how

          6  to deal with the new regulation, show us why it is

          7  absolutely necessary.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Let me just ask

          9  you whether or not -- you are very familiar with

         10  Option 6 --

         11                 MR. BAKER: Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Which was

         13  proposed November 18th, 1998. Are you saying that

         14  Option only applies below the head water, or does

         15  that apply both above and below the head water?

         16                 MR. BAKER: My understanding is the

         17  way it is drafted now, it applies to both.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That was my

         19  understanding.

         20                 MR. BAKER: But what that does is it

         21  misses the whole point, doesn't it? Because it is

         22  allowing you still to use a Nationwide Permit below

         23  the head waters, which is supposedly the new area

         24  that was being opened up that is a problem, yet they

         25  are allowing that one to continue. But they want to
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          2  restrict the activities that have been allowed, at

          3  least since '97 and were allowed in a much greater

          4  extent when the MOA and the FAD were issued. That is

          5  where it doesn't make sense. They are putting up a

          6  red herring to get everyone's attention, while the

          7  real goal is to stop the smallest level of

          8  development in the watershed that doesn't have any

          9  impact, and a level of development that everybody

         10  agreed to when the MOA was signed, that the

         11  Nationwide Permit Program, as it existed then,

         12  covering above the head waters and isolated wetlands

         13  was okay and did not threaten the City's water

         14  supply, that was EPA's FAD.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Let me ask you a

         16  question. Did the realization by the Corps of

         17  Engineer, in your opinion, that above the head

         18  waters really required more intensive care than

         19  below the head waters, did that come before or after

         20  the MOA was signed?

         21                 MR. BAKER: There hasn't been a change

         22  that way. Going back I think to the origination of

         23  the Nationwide Permit Program, which I guess gets

         24  traced back to the late seventies, and I might be

         25  wrong --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The testimony

          3  here, according to my understanding, was that under

          4  the old regulations and NWP 26, I think is the one

          5  they were talking about --

          6                 MR. BAKER: Right.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: -- That that one

          8  was not concentrating above the head waters and did

          9  not require that there be individual permitting, and

         10  they didn't think above the head waters was the

         11  important area to be protected as we consider it

         12  now.

         13                 MR. BAKER: That is generally true.

         14  But the Nationwide Permit Program on the national

         15  level doesn't change that. The regulations for above

         16  an isolated head waters is still essentially the

         17  same. They are actually lowering --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I meant to

         19  include isolated head waters.

         20                 MR. BAKER: Right. But they are

         21  actually lowering some of those criteria.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Actually

         23  wetlands and above the head waters.

         24                 MR. BAKER: Right. Above the head

         25  waters wetlands means ones that are adjacent to
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          2  watercourses that are above the head waters above

          3  five cubic feet per second. Isolated have no surface

          4  connection to a watercourse.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Please make

          6  whatever other point you want to make, we do have a

          7  time situation. And I am sorry I was taking away

          8  your time by asking you questions.

          9                 MR. BAKER: I think I have managed to

         10  cover most of our points.

         11                 I just want to stress, this is a

         12  partnership agreement. This agreement is working.

         13  The devil is in the details, there is plenty --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Someone said

         15  that recently.

         16                 MR. BAKER: I know you said that

         17  earlier.

         18                 There is plenty of room for

         19  controversy, legitimate controversy and differences

         20  of opinion between DEP and the upstate community as

         21  we implement this. Those are inevitable.

         22                 What is not necessary is to construct

         23  an artificial controversy to essentially revoke the

         24  trust that was put into that agreement by moving

         25  forward and regulating something that was agreed was
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          2  not necessarily to be regulated and there has been

          3  no demonstrated proof. Because if we move forward

          4  along that, if the EPA and the Corps, and if there

          5  is City support for that, there is going to be a

          6  serious violation of trust, and without the

          7  cooperation of the upstate communities buying into

          8  this agreement, that is the threat to the filtration

          9  avoidance. And if we lose that, that is far more

         10  important than this.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I think one of

         12  the other things we are in agreement on is, is that

         13  if there appears to be any deterioration in the

         14  pristine quality of the water supply to the City of

         15  New York, you would join with us in looking very

         16  hard to find out what is causing it and to remedy

         17  it.

         18                 MR. BAKER: Of course. And there isn't

         19  any, and there won't be because of all of the

         20  improvements that are going in there. By the latest

         21  projections and the modeling that is going on there,

         22  water quality is and will improve.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is what the

         24  Commissioner said, we not only seek to hold the

         25  status quo, we want to improve the water quality for
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          2  all of our drinking.

          3                 MR. BAKER: It will inevitably. You

          4  are upgrading over 120 treatment plants with

          5  tertiary treatment, not to mention the City's own

          6  plants which still aren't fully upgraded.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Do you also

          8  agree we have a problem of enforcement on the

          9  restrictions we already have in there?

         10                 MR. BAKER: No, there is plenty of

         11  enforcement. There is plenty of enforcement.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: To a level that

         13  you are happy with?

         14                 MR. BAKER: Actually in excess of what

         15  we are happy with.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay. All right.

         17  Thank you so much, we really appreciate your

         18  testimony.

         19                 MR. BAKER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We have some

         21  questions from Mr. Sabini.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Yes. Could I

         23  just ask him to expand on that? Because you know,

         24  our feeling is the opposite. So maybe you could tell

         25  us why you feel that way, or give an example of what
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          2  the excess is?

          3                 MR. BAKER: I can give you examples. I

          4  mean, I speak from -- Councilman, you weren't here

          5  earlier, I believe, I am from the West of Hudson

          6  Watershed, so I speak from our perspective over

          7  there. Every single time a spade of earth is turned

          8  over, somebody is visited by multiple levels of DEP

          9  officials. Every permit is getting an excruciating

         10  level of review.

         11                 We have had arguments with DEP as to

         12  whether a stormwater plant is required for an area

         13  within 100 feet of a watercourse. Normally it is.

         14  But we pointed out that the watercourse in question

         15  here was upgradient of the area of disturbance and

         16  stormwater does not flow uphill.

         17                 Nevertheless, we entered into a long

         18  process until DEP agreed that that one wasn't

         19  covered by the regulations.

         20                 There is strenuous and careful

         21  review, any higher is just wrong.

         22                 And I would like to point out

         23  something that has really struck me as just the most

         24  blatant statement that Mr. Kennedy made.

         25                 Mr. Kennedy praised Dr. Stasiuk for
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          2  the original letters requesting the regional

          3  condition, and praised his qualifications as the

          4  watershed manager and his qualifications as a

          5  scientist, and I don't question those qualifications

          6  one bit. But Mr. Kennedy has issued multiple reports

          7  in the papers naming Dr. Stasiuk, as what he

          8  considers one of the most incompetent administrators

          9  of the watershed program, when he thought that he

         10  wasn't enforcing it enough. So, what is Dr. Stasiuk?

         11  Is he the most competent or is he the best person in

         12  the world? I submit he has done a phenomenal job

         13  running the watershed up there and running his staff

         14  and the enforcement there is stricter than it needs

         15  to be, and certainly there is nothing missing in

         16  that level.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you for

         18  your testimony.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER SABINI: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We look forward

         21  to working with you.

         22                 MR. BAKER: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The next witness

         24  is Vahak Khajekian, representing the Bronx Borough

         25  President, Fernando Ferrer. And the last time I
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          2  looked, the people from the Bronx drink water from

          3  the watershed.

          4                 Welcome. We look forward to your

          5  testimony. Our best regards to our distinguished

          6  Borough President.

          7                 MR. KHAJEKIAN: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chairman. I think one thing that we can agree on,

          9  that there is a difference of opinion on this issue,

         10  and there is clearly a difference of opinion as to

         11  how the watershed is being protected.

         12                 My name is Vahak Khajekian. I am a

         13  Deputy Director of Bureau of Planning and

         14  Development at the Office of the Bronx Borough

         15  President. I will read the following statement on

         16  his behalf and I will cut my statement short,

         17  recognizing that there is a lot of people wishing to

         18  speak.

         19                 I have submitted my full testimony as

         20  well as numerous documentation and attachments.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         22  much for your consideration.

         23                 MR. KHAJEKIAN: Mr. Chairman, thank

         24  you for this opportunity to comment on the Army

         25  Corps of Engineers' proposed modification to
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          2  Nationwide Permits regulating small wetlands. The

          3  Borough President believes this issue of paramount

          4  importance goes to the heart of our efforts to

          5  protect New York City watershed and the regional

          6  environment.

          7                 It also will affect affordability of

          8  housing in New York City, as it will affect water

          9  rates.

         10                 Scientists agree that wetlands

         11  perform critical functions in the ecosystem. In

         12  watershed areas particularly, wetlands play an

         13  integral role in natural filtration processes. They

         14  retard rainwater runoff and cleanse waters that flow

         15  into reservoirs.

         16                 Having come to the conclusion that

         17  isolated wetlands have far greater value than

         18  previously recognized, and a greater need for

         19  protection, in July 1998 the Army Corps' New York

         20  District proposed  modifications to Nationwide

         21  Permit 26 Program.  This proposal aims to strengthen

         22  wetland protection by, as we have heard numerous

         23  times today, consideration of regional conditions

         24  prior to permitting development on critical wetland

         25  assets. This would in effect give latitude to the
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          2  Army Corps to divert development from sensitive

          3  wetlands, or if necessary, require certain

          4  conditions for their protection.

          5                 One would expect that New York City

          6  DEP would strongly support such regulations, and in

          7  fact, in 1998, in August of '98, the agency did

          8  support greater protection of Wetlands and

          9  recommended that projects which involve significant

         10  wetland losses submit individual applications to the

         11  Army Corps and prove on a case by case basis that

         12  there would be no adverse impact on water quality.

         13                 However, in February of this Year,

         14  Commissioner Joel Miele, in a highly unusual move,

         15  withdrew the comments submitted by his own Deputy

         16  Commissioner stating that they should never have

         17  been sent out. This flip-flop by the City

         18  Administration was directly and unquestionably in

         19  response to pressure from upstate development

         20  interests who want the City watershed loosely

         21  regulated. The DEP's action would indeed benefit

         22  such interest to the detriment of the watershed and

         23  the City ratepayers.

         24                 New York City has been fortunate in

         25  having a water supply that provides high quality
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          2  drinking water without filtration. The vast

          3  watershed that supplies this water, however, remains

          4  under attack. Development pressures and real estate

          5  interests continue to gobble up pristine open

          6  spaces. Water quality degrades as forests and

          7  wetlands give way to poorly planned housing

          8  subdivisions, corporate offices and suburban malls.

          9  For this reason the City is faced with a consent

         10  decree to filter the Croton water supply.

         11                 If this trend continues, the

         12  Catskill-Delaware system which supplies 90 percent

         13  of the City's water will fall to the same fate and

         14  must be filtered. The costs are enormous and could

         15  be as high as $10 billion all to be underwritten by

         16  water consumers, every household and business in New

         17  York City.

         18                 As you may know, the Borough

         19  President is strongly opposed to the Croton

         20  Filtration Plant which DEP proposes to construct in

         21  the Bronx, in Van Cordlandt Park, one of our most

         22  precious open space resources.

         23                 The Borough President, in his report

         24  to the City Planning Commission, which I have

         25  submitted to you, has called for filtration
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          2  avoidance and the implementation of a strong

          3  watershed protection plan, which includes aggressive

          4  land acquisition and management programs, as well as

          5  strengthening of the regulations and enforcement.

          6  Just in parentheses, the total sum allocated for

          7  land acquisition in the Croton system is $17.5

          8  million approximately, far too inadequate to make

          9  any difference there.

         10                 The stakes are very high here, every

         11  setback in protecting the watershed brings us closer

         12  to having to filter the City's water supply.

         13  Political exigencies must not take precedence over

         14  public interest and the City must change its

         15  posture, and not only with regard to the nationwide

         16  permit 26, but also its lax enforcement of existing

         17  watershed regulation.

         18                 The City and State, in close

         19  cooperation with upstate communities must refocus

         20  their energies and resources to implement a serious

         21  regional and watershed protection plan for both the

         22  Croton and the Cat-Del system. We must pursue smart

         23  growth policies which protect the watershed while

         24  ensuring the economic vitality of upstate

         25  communities. Lest, the environment and economy of
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          2  the region will suffer, so will the quality of life

          3  of its population.

          4                 The Borough President calls on the

          5  Council and the City Council to strongly support

          6  watershed protection and strengthen wetland

          7  regulations as proposed by the Army Corps. Your

          8  farsightedness will not only help the City avoid

          9  filtration and save the ratepayers billions of

         10  dollars but also conserve the fast disappearing

         11  regional open space resources while ensuring high

         12  quality water for all New Yorkers well into the

         13  future.

         14                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         16  much. Our best to the Borough President, and thank

         17  him for his participation.

         18                 MR. KHAJEKIAN: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Next is the

         20  honorable Jim Gordon from Putnam County.

         21                 Thank you for coming down again. If

         22  you could reduce any of your testimony to writing,

         23  we would appreciate it receiving it.

         24                 MR. GORDON: You will be pleased to

         25  hear I didn't bring any. I just would like to make a
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          2  couple of random remarks.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Jim, would you

          4  identify yourself and what your position is in

          5  Putnam County?

          6                 MR. GORDON: For nine years I was a

          7  member of the Putnam County Legislature, I was the

          8  Chairman of the Legislature for four years. I was

          9  the Putnam County representative throughout the

         10  entire watershed negotiations. I am currently the

         11  Watershed Administrator in my second year.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What was that?

         13  You dropped your voice in the end.

         14                 MR. GORDON: I am currently the

         15  Watershed Administrator in my second year of

         16  difficult service.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right. Thank

         18  you. I know that, and we appreciate the service.

         19                 MR. GORDON: The MOA and the

         20  regulations specifically state that the goal of this

         21  agreement was to protect the water quality and the

         22  economic viability of the counties. That is why this

         23  is such a big deal to us. It is 50 percent of the

         24  watershed agreement.

         25                 I have heard several remarks from
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          2  people today about protecting your ratepayers. I

          3  wholeheartedly agree, and I hope that you understand

          4  that we agree, and I hope some day you will agree

          5  that we have an obligation to the people who pay the

          6  taxes of Putnam County.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Among them being

          8  the City of New York.

          9                 MR. GORDON: You are the best we have.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We pay real

         11  estate taxes.

         12                 MR. GORDON: Mr. Chairman, we would --

         13  as a matter of fact, we proposed in the first month

         14  of negotiations that New York City buy all the land.

         15  We had no problem with that, just as long as we

         16  didn't suffer financially. The City said it had no

         17  money, and so the land-buying program in Putnam

         18  County right now is totally inadequate. There is not

         19  enough money to buy that land.

         20                 Recently the county offered a piece

         21  of 50 acres within the watershed to New York City

         22  and were told they didn't have the money to buy it.

         23  It has now gone to a private owner.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We need the

         25  details of that. I would very much like to look into
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          2  that.

          3                 MR. GORDON: Okay.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Also I

          5  understand that Putnam County is one of the fastest

          6  growing counties economically and in prosperity in

          7  the United States.

          8                 MR. GORDON: Let me tell you about the

          9  economics.

         10                 You are talking about a household

         11  income, husbands and wives, or husbands and whoever,

         12  together earn that amount of money. They have to, to

         13  be able to afford to live where they live. We don't

         14  have the rateables, we don't have the tax sources,

         15  other than homeowners. My little town of Putnam

         16  Valley, we are only a little bit in the watershed,

         17  93 percent of our income comes from homeowners. You

         18  can't survive on that kind of an economic balance.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So they have

         20  high real estate taxes?

         21                 MR. GORDON: We have to be in order to

         22  pay for the government, and other supports,

         23  obviously.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Evidently you

         25  are getting very wealthy people moving up there and
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          2  buying homes up there.

          3                 MR. GORDON: I haven't met one outside

          4  of -- well, I haven't even met him, Donald Trump --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am just trying

          6  to verify the fact that you are the fastest growing

          7  county in the United States.

          8                 MR. GORDON: Those are well known

          9  figures. And the household income is also

         10  verifiable, and I have no problems with that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I always thought

         12  Westchester was the richest county in the United

         13  States, or maybe Orange County, California, but now

         14  it is Putnam County.

         15                 MR. GORDON: We have been there for

         16  years.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are doing

         18  something right.

         19                 MR. GORDON: That's correct. And

         20  mostly what we are doing right is make sure that it

         21  is still an economically viable, as well as an

         22  ecologically viable county.

         23                 This is not the first time that we

         24  have taken steps in our county to protect the water

         25  quality.
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          2                 Let me just go quickly to the

          3  negotiations because I think it is difficult for you

          4  to understand what happened.

          5                 The previous regulations ran to eight

          6  pages, much of it double-spaced. Those were the

          7  regulations that protected the water quality of New

          8  York City.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The 1953

         10  regulations.

         11                 MR. GORDON: That is correct.

         12                 The current regulations run to 1,800

         13  pages. Obviously we did something --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The MOA is 1,800

         15  pages.

         16                 MR. GORDON: No, no. Yes, it could

         17  very well be, I haven't counted.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The MOA is 1,800

         19  pages.

         20                 MR. GORDON: It is thousands of pages,

         21  I don't care to count it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: All right. But

         23  there are separate regulations over and above the --

         24                 MR. GORDON: Well, the regulations

         25  just work out of the -- the MOA is what we project
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          2  should be done, the ideas should be done, some of

          3  the agreements, the regulations tell what must be

          4  done.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

          6                 MR. GORDON: It is important for you

          7  to understand that we started this off long before

          8  the fights that we had, and I should give credit

          9  here to some people who have not been credited

         10  entirely, to Governor Pataki for taking on an

         11  absolutely impossible job, getting us together to

         12  begin with. Because we hated each other. And Mayor

         13  Giuliani for signing off on this.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We heard these

         15  stories. And Mike Finagan.

         16                 MR. GORDON: Your feeling is?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I said and Mike

         18  Finigan as well who worked so hard on the issue, and

         19  Erin Crotty.

         20                 MR. GORDON: Yes. And there were two

         21  people locally here too, Marilyn Gelber, who was the

         22  first Commissioner we dealt with, and now of course

         23  Mr. Miele, who I think is a marvelous person.

         24                 Gelber taught us to trust, because we

         25  didn't trust you people at all. The first move New
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          2  York City wanted to make was to take our land,

          3  eminent domain. We had to go to a federal court to

          4  stop it. And people were a little bit upset when --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I think Mr.

          6  Appleton, Commissioner Appleton also was against

          7  that. When he came in that was the attitude, but he

          8  changed that, of course at our urging, we urged that

          9  as well, and we did not use eminent domain because

         10  we believed unless we have good faith in the people

         11  of the watershed agreement, of the watershed area,

         12  that we wouldn't be able to enforce whatever

         13  regulations were made, and that was important,

         14  recognizing the history and the antagonism.

         15                 MR. GORDON: I am asking you to

         16  understand where we are coming from.

         17                 We first were hit with the eminent

         18  domain, the closest thing I could think of was New

         19  Jersey trying to take Ellis Island.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Recognizing

         21  early that was a mistake --

         22                 MR. GORDON: Or the New York Yankees.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We recognized

         24  use of eminent domain was a mistake and it should

         25  not be done, and I think it has been stated here
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          2  many times.

          3                 MR. GORDON: I am not asking for you

          4  to validate it, sir. I am just telling you this is

          5  the way we start it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I understand

          7  that. That was many years ago.

          8                 MR. GORDON: And for the two years of

          9  these negotiations, we fought and fought and fought

         10  and came up with an agreement that was acceptable to

         11  everybody, an almost unbelievably successful

         12  process.

         13                 One of the things that has been said

         14  a couple of times here today is that, well, the

         15  thing isn't working and we have got to change it. We

         16  built in the five-year period, we are halfway there.

         17  It is only two and a half more years. It is just a

         18  little bit more than two and a half more years,

         19  before we will review how effective this is. And to

         20  make changes now, without having a solid basis and

         21  so far the Army Corps of Engineers hasn't shown me a

         22  single fact why they must do this, why these changes

         23  must be made, nothing. It is their idea. People say

         24  yes, it is stricter, big deal, good deal. Why is it

         25  good? Tell me. Tell me why it is needed.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It is also a

          3  nationwide change.

          4                 MR. GORDON: We are talking about

          5  something that is very rare in this nation. State

          6  engineered by county, tri-county, quad-county

          7  agreement to protect the watershed. Most of those

          8  restrictions are absent all over this country.

          9                 We believe that what we have crafted,

         10  until we are proven different, has indeed protected

         11  the water quality of New York City.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I don't think

         13  you are going to find any arguments on this side of

         14  the bench.

         15                 MR. GORDON: Okay, sir. And I think

         16  that is about it.

         17                 Oh, the enforcement process. A lot of

         18  yelling about enforcement here. I am not sure that

         19  we don't confuse words, enforcement of what?

         20  Enforcement by the Police Department or the DEP? Or

         21  enforcement by the people who run the offices? I

         22  don't know. I think it is better to keep in mind

         23  that we might ask that question in the future.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Maybe we should

         25  use the word compliance.
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          2                 MR. GORDON: Compliance is fine,

          3  because compliance is tough. Enforcement I can't

          4  speak to.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

          6                 MR. GORDON: Tennis courts. Good luck

          7  if you want to build a tennis court. The regulations

          8  make that very difficult, especially on a one acre

          9  piece of property. There are buffer regulations for

         10  wetlands that are just absolutely making that

         11  impossible.

         12                 And I just finally, Mr. Vallone's

         13  statement is beginning to bother me a little bit. I

         14  am sorry he is not here. About political and what is

         15  right are two different things. I think that is very

         16  difficult to hear in this hall. I would hope that

         17  most of your people, I have no reason to doubt it,

         18  sometimes believe that what is political is also

         19  right. Certainly the MOA was. Please keep it in

         20  mind.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you so

         22  much. I am very glad you are here, and I hope you

         23  have a nice trip back to Putnam County, which is a

         24  beautiful, beautiful county, and I have been

         25  spending some time there in years past.
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          2                 MR. GORDON: We have always credited

          3  the reservoirs for keeping us green, so we

          4  appreciate what has happened.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

          6                 Next we have Mark Izeman, the Natural

          7  Resources Defense Council.

          8                 Thank you, Mark. Thank you very much

          9  for coming, I appreciate you being here.

         10                 MR. IZEMAN: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I always

         12  appreciate your input, you and Mr. Goldstein's input

         13  into our affairs here at the City Council.

         14                 MR. IZEMAN: For the record, I am Mark

         15  Izeman from the Natural Resources Defense Council. I

         16  will be very short, given the time of day and the

         17  others that want to speak.

         18                 We are here today, Mr. Chairman, to

         19  urge the City Council to adopt a resolution, not

         20  simply to have a hearing, urging the Army Corps to

         21  adopt the proposal that was put forward by the City

         22  in its August 1998 letter.

         23                 There are four reasons why we think

         24  that makes sense. First, wetlands are very, very

         25  important. And the latest action that the City DEP
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          2  has taken is not an isolated slip of the letter, but

          3  actually is one step in a long line of actions the

          4  City has taken since the early 1990s to try to

          5  regulate wetlands in the City, and we can provide

          6  the details of the history of the City's efforts to

          7  try to regulate wetlands, but this recent action is

          8  not an isolated first-time incident that the City

          9  has just decided to move forward on trying to

         10  protect wetlands.

         11                 The second reason is it is required

         12  by federal law. Section 404 of the Clean Water Act

         13  states that Nationwide Permits may be issued only

         14  for those activities that will have minimal,

         15  cumulative, adverse affect on the environment. It is

         16  without question that the cumulative impacts of

         17  further development in the New York City watershed

         18  will have more than minimal effects.

         19                 Moreover, the Army Corps recently

         20  stated, in an October 14th, 1998 federal register

         21  notice, that it had a commitment to ensure that

         22  activities approved under the Nationwide Permit

         23  Program avoid, to the maximum practicable extent,

         24  potential adverse environmental effects on waters

         25  that are recognized as critical resource waters.
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          2                 Third, strengthening the wetlands

          3  permit process is fully consistent with the 1997 EPA

          4  FAD, Filtration Avoidance Determination.  There is

          5  nothing in the document that prohibits any

          6  governmental agency from advancing further

          7  safeguards that may be necessary to protect water

          8  quality, and the FAD specifically noted that further

          9  improvement in the City's program might well be

         10  necessary to ensure continued filtration avoidance.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Where is that?

         12  That is in the document itself?

         13                 MR. IZEMAN: Yes, it is in the FAD --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I acknowledged

         15  your first statement, but I am not sure I understood

         16  the second statement.

         17                 MR. IZEMAN: The second statement

         18  noted that improvements --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That requires

         20  improvements to be made.

         21                 MR. IZEMAN: Yes, I would be happy to

         22  -- I don't have the page and number right here, but

         23  I would be happy to get that to you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It certainly

         25  doesn't stop it from being done, but I know that
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          2  actually it affirmatively said it should be done.

          3                 MR. IZEMAN: Okay, I can definitely

          4  provide the Committee with that page.

          5                 And finally, there is nothing in the

          6  1997 watershed agreement that precludes wetland

          7  regulations, or restricts the federal government

          8  from taking additional action on this issue.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are

         10  absolutely right and I don't think anybody disputes

         11  that.

         12                 MR. IZEMAN: Well, in fact, the

         13  watershed agreement, which has been talked about

         14  before, which incorporates the City's watershed

         15  regulations, fails to adequately protect the

         16  wetlands. As has been discussed, the watershed

         17  agreement only addresses wetlands that cover less

         18  than, or fails to address wetlands that are less

         19  than 12.4 acres in size and so that there are

         20  thousands of acres in the watershed that are

         21  unprotected. And I think that again --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There are

         23  certain wetlands that are protected, near rivers and

         24  streams.

         25                 MR. IZEMAN: Well, if they are above
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          2  12.4 acres --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I understand

          4  even if they are under 12.4 acres.

          5                 MR. IZEMAN: No, not under City or

          6  State protection.

          7                 The argument that has been advanced

          8  by some people is that the watershed regulations

          9  prohibit the building of impervious services within

         10  100 feet of watercourses, and because a lot of

         11  wetlands are probably within that 100 feet buffer

         12  they are effectively covered.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Right.

         14                 MR. IZEMAN: But it is important to

         15  recognize that --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That is what I

         17  am saying.

         18                 MR. IZEMAN: Yes, but it is important

         19  to recognize that that buffer zone provision is more

         20  holes than cheese, and there probably are ten

         21  different exemptions for all sorts of activities.

         22                 In addition, there are buffer

         23  restrictions for the placement of septic systems

         24  which aren't covered by --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You could see
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          2  how people can say that that does indirectly protect

          3  the --

          4                 MR. IZEMAN: I am not quite sure --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: 12.4 acres of

          6  wetlands.

          7                 MR. IZEMAN: Well, I can see how

          8  people would make the statement, but I don't think

          9  it is supported by the watershed regulations.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It may not

         11  directly say it, but indirectly it does the

         12  protection, even though it may have more holes than

         13  cheese, as you said.

         14                 MR. IZEMAN: I don't even think

         15  indirectly it protects it because there are so many

         16  loopholes in that buffer zone, you couldn't even

         17  call it that. I mean, there is a general prohibition

         18   --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

         20                 MR. IZEMAN: -- But then it goes on to

         21  list so many exemptions that it is hard to know what

         22  it actually covers.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I know. In other

         24  words, I am saying the glass is half full, you are

         25  saying it is half empty.
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          2                 MR. IZEMAN: Right. Well, more than

          3  that though.

          4                 But I think it is important to

          5  recognize that special wetlands conditions should be

          6  implemented in a manner that is not unduly

          7  burdensome to farmers and to forestry areas, and the

          8  Corps should develop procedures to ensure that for

          9  those special and important areas, that the permit

         10  processes be expedited and done in an equitable way.

         11                 But those are two different issues.

         12  The Army Corps should first move ahead to adopt the

         13  proposal, and then develop procedures so that it can

         14  be implemented in a way that is fair and

         15  appropriate. But you need to take the first step of

         16  actually adopting the restrictions.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Is there any

         18  reason why it can't all be done at the same time?

         19                 MR. IZEMAN: No, it could be done at

         20  the same time. But it is not simply a choice between

         21  adopting the regulations with the current way it

         22  operates and not adopting it. Maybe there is a way

         23  of expediting permits and coming up with special

         24  procedures to deal with the unique conditions and

         25  the unique situations in the watershed.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well,

          3  refinements are always something that should be

          4  considered.

          5                 MR. IZEMAN: Right.

          6                 So that leads me to my final

          7  conclusion, which is that the New York City Council

          8  should adopt a resolution calling on the Corps to

          9  both adopt the special conditions and at the same

         10  time develop procedures so that it can be

         11  implemented in an equitable way, and it is not an

         12  understatement to say that if the City Council

         13  adopted such a resolution, it would probably be the

         14  most important single thing the City Council could

         15  do in 1999 to protect the New York City Watershed.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We certainly

         17  would consider, any language you want to provide us

         18  with, we would certainly look at it.

         19                 MR. IZEMAN: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 The next witness is Eugenia M.

         23  Flatow.

         24                 Thank you for being my car mate

         25  coming back from Bal Halab (phonetic) the other day.
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          2  We appreciate your being with us.

          3                 MS. FLATOW: I was happy to do it.

          4                 Is this on?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes.

          6                 MS. FLATOW: My name is Eugenia

          7  Flatow, and I am here representing three

          8  organizations, the City Club of New York, the

          9  Estuary Program, which has a statement in it that I

         10  recall to the State of New York that there will be

         11  no loss of wetlands. That is part of the CCMP, and I

         12  would just like to remind people of that. Because it

         13  is equally important to think of what the impact of

         14  this nationwide will do here in New York City. It is

         15  true that we have the same problem on Staten Island

         16  that we have been talking about elsewhere, and it

         17  would be very useful if we could adopt Long Island's

         18  system of everything that effects the wetlands is a

         19  wetland of critical importance, so whatever the

         20  legal language is, because it might get us out of

         21  this.

         22                 I just would like to say several

         23  things that I think are important. I commend the

         24  Corps for its procedure and for what it is

         25  proposing, and I would like to agree that there
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          2  needs to be regionalization of how this is applied,

          3  and I would like to say for the record that I don't

          4  think you can have one application throughout the

          5  watershed. I would like to echo what Mark just said,

          6  and that is, I also represent the New York City

          7  Sloan Water Conservation District. And preserving

          8  our family farmers and our forests is equally

          9  important to the health of the watershed. So it is

         10  very, very important that we regionalize in a way

         11  that looks at the function of the wetlands that is

         12  being considered.

         13                 And although it may be dangerous at

         14  the moment, I do agree with Bobby that it is very

         15  important that there be public oversight of what is

         16  happening and I think that is where we are coming

         17  from.

         18                 If we could have an expedited

         19  process, and I would be glad to work to get more

         20  staff for the Corps of Engineers so that we could

         21  have notice of what is being requested as a permit

         22  and make some evaluation of the impact of that

         23  particular process on the importance of our wetlands

         24  in creating that natural filtration system, that I

         25  think it would be useful. We are not protected now.
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          2  The state does not recognize anything that is below

          3  a certain size or not mapped.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: It's 12.4 acres.

          5                 MS. FLATOW: I know it is 12.4. And I

          6  would like to say for the record, and I know that

          7  you will not like it, that I negotiated this with

          8  them, I said I would like to go to Albany and change

          9  the Freshwater Wetlands law so that it is not size

         10  that is the critical feature here. And we made a

         11  deal that the CCMP would have a thing in it, a thing

         12  that said no loss of wetlands, if I would not go to

         13  try to change the law. And maybe I better reconsider

         14  that, because there is only 1.2 percent, 1.3 percent

         15  west of Hudson, and 6.4 east of Hudson. There must

         16  be plenty of land left for development and for

         17  growth and still keep those wetlands where they are,

         18  because the corrolary to that question is: What

         19  happens if we lose some of that? Their function is

         20  so important.

         21                 So, I would like to leave with you,

         22  thank you for this opportunity. We do have to work

         23  together, and although I was not a party to the

         24  negotiations, I was working just as hard behind the

         25  scene to make sure that we stayed together because I
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          2  thought it was important. But the fact of the matter

          3  is, I find it difficult to equally weight an

          4  economic quality of life with a life support system,

          5  and that is what we are talking about. Our water is

          6  our life support system for 9 million people. I

          7  think we can reach an accommodation but there is --

          8  I am not going to point any fingers, there is more

          9  than one person at this table today that wasn't

         10  telling the whole truth, or maybe the pure truth,

         11  because the fact of the matter is, we have a certain

         12  amount of trust, but I learned Wednesday that DEP

         13  has entered into an MOU with State DOT which exempts

         14  them from the regulations in violation of the

         15  Governor's edict. I haven't read it yet, but there

         16  is one statement in it which startled me, and that

         17  is that State DOT is exempt from following watershed

         18  regulations. And considering what we have been going

         19  through in Route 120, I find that a cause for very

         20  big concern.

         21                 So, I think what we need is more

         22  workshops where we learn to talk to each other and

         23  really be sure of our facts, and develop a process

         24  for protection that will include the Nationwide with

         25  appropriate regionalization so that we can be sure
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          2  that we are not missing anything because the MOA is

          3  a great document but nobody will say it is perfect.

          4  There were a great many accommodations, and I hope

          5  that our mid-year review is going to point up what

          6  has to be changed and we can agree on those changes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Now, let me ask

          8  you, I would very much like to see that agreement

          9  between DEP and DOT.

         10                 MS. FLATOW: I have just gotten it, I

         11  haven't read it myself, but I read the first page

         12  and that was --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: When you finish

         14  with it, please, I would love to --

         15                 MS. FLATOW: I would be happy to get

         16  you a copy of it, sir.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That to me is

         18  very startling to hear.

         19                 MS. FLATOW: It was very startling to

         20  me when I heard about it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And I agree with

         22  you, it is true that the MOA is not a perfect

         23  document, and neither is our Constitution, and that

         24  has been amended like 23 times.

         25                 MS. FLATOW: Well, I have spent a good
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          2  deal of my life defending my environmental

          3  credentials because I keep trying to find a solution

          4  to bring people together, because nothing is going

          5  to work if we are not working together.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And I might say

          7  to you, I am always startled, there is a certain

          8  judge who will go nameless, when he swears in judges

          9  and other people, he always says, do you swear to

         10  uphold the Constitution as amended.

         11                 MS. FLATOW: But thank you for this

         12  opportunity. I think it has been very helpful.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: My pleasure. I

         14  think people should know that you are an engineer.

         15                 MS. FLATOW: Yes, sir.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And you have an

         17  engineering degree?

         18                 MS. FLATOW: Yes, sir.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

         20                 MS. FLATOW: I know how imperfect that

         21  sometimes can be.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes. As a law

         23  degree is likewise.

         24                 Marian Rose.

         25                 MS. ROSE: My name is Marian Rose, and
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          2  I would like to thank this Committee.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you. We

          4  are very appreciative you are here.

          5                 MS. ROSE: Thank you for listening to

          6  this and I appreciate your patience in listening to

          7  speaker after speaker. I am trying to be as short as

          8  I can. It is somewhat difficult to speak after a

          9  long line of very eloquent speakers and try and say

         10  something that has not already been said.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Let me put it to

         12  you this way, there is a very famous politician in

         13  New York who is a Congressman who always says, and

         14  he repeats -- I can't remember who said it -- he

         15  says everything has been said but not everybody has

         16  said it.

         17                 MS. ROSE: Well, I will try and say

         18  what hasn't been said.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And sometimes

         20  you can say it a little differently.

         21                 MS. ROSE: I will try and say it a

         22  little differently or try and add something that

         23  hasn't been said.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are here to

         25  listen.
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          2                 MS. ROSE: I will do the best I can.

          3  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Morris Udall. I

          5  was quoting Morris Udall.

          6                 MS. ROSE: I am President of the

          7  Croton Watershed Clean Water Coalition, which is a

          8  Coalition of over 40 groups, very diverse. We have

          9  environmentalists, we have religious groups, housing

         10  and community groups. We represent over 100,000

         11  members, both upstate and downstate, and our purpose

         12  is to maintain, protect and improve the quality of

         13  the waters in the Croton Watershed through regional

         14  action, in order to avoid filtration.

         15                 So what I would like to emphasize

         16  here is our main interest is in the Croton Watershed

         17  --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Which represents

         19  ten percent of the water supply of the City of New

         20  York. It is a very important ten percent.

         21                 MS. ROSE: That's correct. And in

         22  times of drought we represent 30 percent.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's true.

         24                 MS. ROSE: And we are also --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And our only
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          2  defense against the Chelsea Pumping Station.

          3                 MS. ROSE: Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Which pumps

          5  Hudson River water into our system, which we like to

          6  avoid.

          7                 MS. ROSE: We would like to avoid the

          8  well known reasons. Unfortunately the watershed

          9  keeper, the Hudson River Keeper is not here to tell

         10  us about that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Let me just

         12  interrupt you for a second. I would like to thank

         13  the people of the Corps of Engineers for being here

         14  and we really very much appreciate your attendance,

         15  your testimony and the fact that you have stayed and

         16  listened to so many witnesses. Please feel free to

         17  ask us in any way that we can cooperate with you and

         18  any information you need, including copies of

         19  testimony or anything else you might want to have.

         20  We want you to feel that we will fully cooperate

         21  with you in every respect. Thank you, again. Please

         22  keep in touch.

         23                 I am sorry for interrupting.

         24                 MS. ROSE: That's all right. Thank

         25  you.
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          2                 Our members reside in the City, in

          3  the Bronx, Manhattan and also Westchester and Putnam

          4  County, so we have both upstate and downstate

          5  members, and our purpose is to protect our watershed

          6  and to protect the quality of the water and the

          7  streams in the wetlands and in the reservoirs.

          8                 I will come straight to the point.

          9  Because the wetlands have a unique capacity to

         10  enhance water quality, we urge this Committee to

         11  recommend that no nationwide permits be allowed

         12  within the Croton Watershed or any of the components

         13  of the Catskill Delaware Watershed that lie East of

         14  the Hudson. That is our point. No Nationwide Permits

         15  in the Croton Watershed. I will come to the reasons

         16  for that.

         17                 As you know, the City is under

         18  consent order to chemically treat and filter the

         19  Croton waters, and this is proceeding, the site has

         20  been chosen in the Bronx. There is a good deal of

         21  opposition to that, and it is certainly nothing is

         22  written in stone. We are looking for alternatives to

         23  filtration and the City DEP is also looking for

         24  alternatives to filtration of the Croton Watershed.

         25  That may never occur.
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          2                 But I don't want to go into that now.

          3  What I want to emphasize is the protection of the

          4  watershed and how important it is, because even if

          5  filtration does occur, you want the water to be as

          6  clean as possible that goes in the filtration.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: There is no

          8  question about it. And it has even been said with

          9  respect to the huge filtration plant that we are

         10  trying to avoid in the Catskill region, that even if

         11  we put in that plan, it would cost us some six to

         12  eight billion dollars, operating costs of $600

         13  million --

         14                 MS. ROSE: Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You still would

         16  have to do the same things we are doing now in order

         17  to protect the water supply.

         18                 MS. ROSE: Our contention is that if

         19  you do put in a filtration plant say for the Croton,

         20  it would cost close to $1 billion, that will make it

         21  very much more difficult to protect the watershed.

         22  The incentive won't be there anymore because you can

         23  filter the water, so if you pollute it you simply

         24  clean it up and --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We'll have a
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          2  hard time convincing people if you still have to

          3  protect the water supply even though filtration is

          4  being done.

          5                 MS. ROSE: I wish we could, but it is

          6  going to be very much more difficult. And it is

          7  already very difficult to protect the open space in

          8  Northern Westchester and Putnam.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 MS. ROSE: I haven't finished yet.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Oh, go ahead.

         13                 We would have ended on an area of

         14  agreement. Go on.

         15                 MS. ROSE: I just would like to add

         16  that, to correct the record for some of the things

         17  that are being said, we realize that Westchester and

         18  Putnam are being very heavily developed, however,

         19  the development in the reservoir, around the

         20  reservoir is still very, very sparse. When they

         21  average out the development in Westchester they

         22  average in New Rochelle, they average in White

         23  Plains, Yonkers, Mount Vernon, which are very

         24  heavily developed areas, and then they average it

         25  out over the whole county. But if you travel around
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          2  the reservoirs, these areas are very sparsely

          3  developed, most of the land is owned either by the

          4  municipalities or the State or New York City.

          5                 Twenty percent of the land in the

          6  reservoirs is parkland, it's not going to be

          7  developed. If the City just buys another six

          8  percent, they will be up to what the EPA requires as

          9  control over the land surrounding the reservoirs.

         10                 Another thing I would like to stress

         11  is that the water in the Croton, according to the

         12  DEP itself is still high quality and it fulfills all

         13  federal health standards and according to the DEP

         14  itself, the quality of the water has maintained

         15  itself until this day, it still fulfills all health

         16  standards. So, this is good water. It should be

         17  protected. There is no reason whatsoever to allow

         18  the wetlands to be impacted and the quality of the

         19  water to go down and then you will have to pay for

         20  this huge filtration plant.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We are really in

         22  great agreement on that.

         23                 MS. ROSE: Good.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: All the water

         25  supply has to be protected and certainly all the
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          2  wetlands.

          3                 Anything else?

          4                 MS. ROSE: All right, if we are in

          5  agreement, that's fine. Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 Lori Brown of the Sierra Club. Thank

          9  you, again, for staying. I will thank everyone here

         10  for still staying.

         11                 Roy Felshin.

         12                 Thank you very much. Please proceed.

         13                 MS. BROWN: I will be brief.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No, please, we

         15  are not asking you to be brief, we are just saying

         16  we are appreciative of the fact you are here, and we

         17  have always been appreciative of the Sierra Club and

         18  the wonderful contribution it makes to the

         19  environment of this country.

         20                 MS. BROWN: Thank you.

         21                 I am here on behalf of the 35,000

         22  members of the Sierra Club Statewide, and --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And I might say

         24  one of the most respected environmental groups in

         25  the country.
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          2                 MS. BROWN: Thank you. Oldest and the

          3  largest grassroots environmental group in the

          4  nation, and that is also why we are particularly

          5  concerned that the permitting process be public, and

          6  that is the strongest tool that we have in terms of

          7  making sure that sound environmental decisions are

          8  made on behalf of our drinking water.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's right.

         10                 MS. BROWN: So, we are particularly

         11  concerned that DEP is taking, not taking the right

         12  course of action with respect to the drinking water

         13  protection in the watershed, and we have people

         14  focused on this issue nationwide, statewide and

         15  locally, and we do consider it to be, we were

         16  watching very closely to see how this is going to be

         17  handled and we do look to the City Council to take a

         18  stand and an appropriate position on the strongest,

         19  strictest protections of the watershed and we also

         20  would like to echo the Croton Watershed Clean Water

         21  Coalition's position that there should absolutely

         22  not be any Nationwide Permits within the watershed.

         23  There has to be a different standard for the

         24  watershed.

         25                 So, we would like to go on record as
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          2  saying that we absolutely do not feel that Option 6

          3  that has been proposed by the Corps is sufficient.

          4                 And one last thing I really just want

          5  to say quickly is that the DEP is asking us to trust

          6  them, and they have dropped the ball more than once.

          7  The reason that the water quality is the way it is

          8  or that it is being threatened now is under their

          9  stewardship and it is under their watch where it has

         10  come to the point where we are looking at the need

         11  for additional protection. And, you know, it has

         12  been noted that in the Route 120, for example, it

         13  was in that situation where they had not even seen

         14  the proposal, they weren't even involved with that.

         15  It was the citizens, it was the Sierra Club, it was

         16  several organizations that got out and forced the

         17  issue. So, in light of that, it is hard to believe

         18  the DEP, when they just say trust us, we will do the

         19  right thing, we will protect the water.

         20                 So, with that, I will keep it very

         21  short, but we are out there --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Short, sweet and

         23  to the point.

         24                 MS. BROWN: Right. We are going to

         25  continue working on protecting the water quality and
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          2  the watershed.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Please do. You

          4  do a very important and necessary function.

          5                 MS. BROWN: Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you.

          7                 Dr. Paul Mankiewicz. Not an unknown

          8  witness to this Committee.

          9                 Welcome, Dr. Mankiewicz.

         10                 I am reminded you once had a beard?

         11                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: I did. I was asked by

         12  my children to remove it, so I look different now.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Lincoln was

         14  asked to grow it.

         15                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: Well, there you go.

         16  It is the difference between science and politics,

         17  maybe, I don't know. Thank you.

         18                 I am just going to point out a couple

         19  of basic problems with the approach to permitting

         20  that the Corps has taken, and I documented some of

         21  it in here and one article that we wrote as well.

         22                 The Corps hasn't taken into account

         23  the critical contributions of small wetlands, and I

         24  will simply say it like this: A small wetland

         25  doesn't have as much area, but wetlands actually are
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          2  good at certain kinds of biogeochemical or

          3  ecological filtrations, but the surround uplands are

          4  good at others. If a wetland is small, it means it

          5  is better connected to surrounding filters.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How small would

          7  you say?

          8                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: Well --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How small is

         10  small?

         11                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: When you are looking

         12  at a third of an acre, that is still 14,000 square

         13  feet, that scale is not a bad one to look at because

         14  you could get into the water table -- what the

         15  gentleman said from the Watershed Coalition

         16  representative was right, you can see wetlands that

         17  are not connected to other bodies of water, except

         18  through the groundwater, but from big storms you can

         19  have huge amounts, we are talking about many

         20  millions of gallons of water going into these third

         21  of an acre, or a few third of an acre type wetlands,

         22  because it goes into the wetlands, spreads out to

         23  the surrounding soils and that has very high

         24  hydrologic conductivity, and it moves as pure water

         25  into the water table.
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          2                 So, in other words, what keeps the

          3  capacity of the reservoir system of the watershed

          4  and water table in place is a lot of these little

          5  hallows that are connected to areas that have great

          6  conductivity and move immense amounts of water

          7  during storm events into the water table which is

          8  what supplies the reservoirs with very, very high

          9  quality water all the time.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: So would you

         11  agree with the third of an acre or would you say

         12  they should be protected no matter what size?

         13                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: A third of an acre is

         14  probably a good way to look, because the problem is

         15  you get into -- you can recognize the third of an

         16  acre from aerial photographs, soft infrared from

         17  Lansat and those kinds of things, so it is an easier

         18  kind of thing to spot in the landscape.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: How about

         20  Satellite?

         21                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: Yes, you can do that.

         22  That's right. That is a very doable technology now

         23  that really should be done by DEP, DEC and everyone

         24  interesting in regulating --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And help them
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          2  with their mapping.

          3                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: That's right,

          4  immensely. And these things can be very well

          5  discerned now from soft infrared signals.

          6                 So, exactly what is being criticized

          7  about the small wetlands is that they are small and

          8  what that is telling you is they have much more

          9  biogeochemical contact with filters that actually do

         10  more of the work.

         11                 Wetlands are not good at picking up

         12  phosphorus, they are very good at removing carbon

         13  and nitrogen from surrounding areas, that is upland

         14  soils can remove about a ton, half a ton of

         15  phosphorus per acre per year, so it is actually

         16  these coupled systems are what work best.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That's a good

         18  point.

         19                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: I think the problem

         20  is, if you just look at it this way, you can have

         21  from the surrounding soils conductivities that are

         22  ten or 100 times greater when they are biologically

         23  diverse. So that means a third of an acre wetland,

         24  coupled with dry soils would be about as good as a

         25  three or a 30-acre wetland. So, just to keep that
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          2  kind of rubric in mind, one-third of an acre, the

          3  surroundings of a one-third of an acre wetland can

          4  have hydraulic conductivities that would match it

          5  with a three-acre or a 30-acre wetland in terms of

          6  overall water moving capacity.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And we are

          8  talking about isolated wetlands?

          9                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: We are just talking

         10  about in a sense to look at how much water it can

         11  move.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The ones you are

         13  talking about are the ones that are not really near

         14  a waterway of some sort?

         15                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: That's right. Yes,

         16  you have landscape rises and falls.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Like a pond?

         18                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: That's right. An

         19  indentation which can move immense amounts of water,

         20  and I think really what we need is much more

         21  scientific basis for this regulation base as opposed

         22  to the idea that we have to regulate everything

         23  under a certain scale. Because that can be done now

         24  very quickly with, a you mentioned, the satellites,

         25  with -- you can actually get the general
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          2  physiography of an area by walking over with

          3  ground-penetrating radar. It doesn't take a long

          4  time. One person could do many acres in one day.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What ever

          6  happened to the divining rod?

          7                 DR. MANKIEWICZ: It has been replaced

          8  by ground DPR.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you so

         10  much.

         11                 Next is Donald C. Patchner. He left.

         12                 Okay, David Ferguson is up.

         13                 Is a George Nikitovich here? No. I

         14  just want to get some idea.

         15                 Carl Schwartz.

         16                 MR. FERGUSON: He left too.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And Karen

         18  Argenti? She is here, okay. You will be the last

         19  witness.

         20                 MR. FERGUSON: Stanley, good to see

         21  you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Good to see you.

         23  We are spending more and more time together.

         24                 MR. FERGUSON: Yes, I know. It has

         25  been more water than housing.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: We have two

          3  mutual interests, the HDFC and this.

          4                 MR. FERGUSON: That's true. We meet on

          5  all occasions.

          6                 My name is David Ferguson, and I

          7  represent the HDFC Coalition and also the Council of

          8  Chelsea Block Association, and I am also the

          9  secretary of the Croton Watershed Clean Water

         10  Coalition, and Marian Rose is the president and just

         11  spoke, and I think that is a very significant thing,

         12  because Marion comes from upstate, and she is the

         13  president, and that is where we meet once a month at

         14  the Purchase Meeting House, right next to the

         15  Westchester County Airport, and all of these towns

         16  from Putnam and Westchester come and in light of

         17  what -- I had just planned to read this brief

         18  statement, but in light of all that I have hard

         19  today, I have a, you know, back of an envelope

         20  situation here.

         21                 First of all, I would like to comment

         22  on --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Just remember,

         24  the Gettysburg Address was written on the back of an

         25  envelope.
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          2                 MR. FERGUSON: I know, I always

          3  remembered that and that is why I only bring

          4  envelopes, I am hoping.

          5                 Anyhow, the monitoring, the Kennedy,

          6  you know, when he signed on the watershed agreement

          7  some of us were not that happy with it. You know, we

          8  had been working with Aqua and so --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I do recall.

         10                 MR. FERGUSON: And he would tell us,

         11  don't worry, we have this wonderful monitoring

         12  system, that Michael Finigan had promised him that

         13  they were going to have this multi-million dollar

         14  monitoring system that would be able to set off

         15  alarm bells if anything went wrong in a particular

         16  stream, if they had a spike and so forth and

         17  whatever, and it would also give us a baseline,

         18  which we to this day don't have, and that monitoring

         19  system, and the EPA was supposed to have something

         20  to do with that, they never promised the rose garden

         21  but whatever, the thing has never materialized, the

         22  money has never been allocated by the Congress and

         23  so there are those of us now in the CWCWC and other

         24  groups that are working to see if we can get that

         25  money out, because we need that science, and that is
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          2  one of the basic things from our position, the

          3  science in the Croton is not there, and that bears

          4  on the wetlands because all of these decisions are

          5  made in lieu of the kind of science that they should

          6  be made, the decisions are pushed by politics and

          7  not science, and that is one of the things that

          8  concerns us greatly.

          9                 Also, they hadn't bought an acre, you

         10  know. The Commissioner talked about the property

         11  buying, but if you looked at the map, and especially

         12  the map of the Croton area, the only place that got

         13  property on the way there is in the west branch

         14  mainly, and precious little around even the Kensico,

         15  which is another big problem, because we are

         16  involved with that as well and they haven't bought

         17  an acre in Westchester in two years, and all they

         18  had to begin with was $17.5 million, now they have

         19  $18.5 as a result of the consent decree and that is

         20  peanuts. You could spend it in an afternoon.

         21  Westchester alone has $25 million for open space and

         22  if we want to protect this watershed, and see this

         23  is already the connection that Marion had referred

         24  to between filtration and non-watershed protection,

         25  because it is clear from the very beginning, we were
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          2  told from DEP, Joe Kitas told us once and I have

          3  everything on tape, that the people over in the

          4  watershed, when they were working on the agreement,

          5  told him from the east of Hudson that, why have any

          6  regs over there anyhow, you are going to filter. I

          7  mean that is the approach. He said no, DEP was firm

          8  and strong and they didn't do it, and God bless them

          9  for it, of course. But I mean, that is an indication

         10  of the connection that is made between development

         11  and filtration. And Trump has bought, in this two

         12  years that we haven't bought an acre, has bought

         13  property for six golf courses, just in the beginning

         14  --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Where?

         16                 MR. FERGUSON: In the Croton

         17  Watershed.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What county?

         19                 MR. FERGUSON: Well, I don't have the

         20  exact property, I assume Westchester I know because

         21  I have read in the papers and some in Putnam.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: In Putnam maybe

         23  it is contributing to the increase in the value of

         24  Putnam.

         25                 MR. FERGUSON: Yes. I mean, Putnam,
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          2  you know, is definitely on the way.

          3                 I would like to really talk to this

          4  point about the people, because there is the

          5  assumption somehow that there are the people in the

          6  watershed that we have to negotiate with to get a

          7  deal. There is a Berlin Wall and the Commissioner

          8  always says, what do you want to do, buy all the

          9  property? Do you want to build a wall around it? The

         10  fact is that Marion is here representing, we

         11  represent now, I counted them up, 47 groups,

         12  including a variety of groups from the Town of

         13  Southeast Concerned Residents, of the town of

         14  Southeast, to the Metropolitan Council on Housing in

         15  New York City. It is one of the most extraordinary

         16  working partnerships going on two years that you

         17  have ever seen in the history in this area. And the

         18  people up there are getting really upset and want to

         19  protect their own watersheds for obvious reasons.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What does Met

         21  Counsel have to do with this, I don't understand?

         22                 MR. FERGUSON: It is a housing issue.

         23  That is why I got into this. That is how I got into

         24  water, Stanley.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am very
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          2  familiar with Met Council, as you know.

          3                 MR. FERGUSON: Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Primarily

          5  downstate.

          6                 MR. FERGUSON: Because they are water

          7  consumers and ratepayers. Rent Stabilization

          8  Association already have articles in the newspaper

          9  of wanting to pass this along, they are finally

         10  coming down to water rate hearings and they will

         11  probably be down in the next one the last two years.

         12                 I talked to Joe Strassberg years ago

         13  and said, hey, can you get with us to help us

         14  support source protection, because it is all going

         15  to impact on our rates, that is where, you know, I

         16  got into this and --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are saying

         18  you want to do metering in every apartment?

         19                 MR. FERGUSON: Well, that is what I

         20  want, yes. But you see, we could talk about that

         21  later.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The metering has

         23  been put in there for water conservation. That was

         24  the main purpose of metering.

         25                 MR. FERGUSON: I am for metering, I
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          2  just think it should be in every apartment because

          3  then you get the real conservation. Otherwise it is

          4  going to cost --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Obviously.

          6                 MR. FERGUSON: Yes, we agree again. We

          7  are agreeing. We do this all the time.

          8                 But anyhow, what I just wanted to say

          9  is there was a meeting Bobby Kennedy came to up in

         10  Putnam and Karen Argenti had a lot to do with

         11  causing it to happen, of all of these towns from

         12  Kent, from Carmel, from the town of Southeast, and

         13  Karen can probably mention some other towns, that

         14  came together about 300 people, and these people,

         15  one guy said, "What am I doing here and not watching

         16  Monday Night Football? I am not an activist." But

         17  then he told his story, they want to build in a

         18  wetland, in the middle of a golf course, and the

         19  impact is 130 units in an area that is one-third

         20  wetland in the sanctuary golf course and he lives on

         21  Ridge Road and they are going to have to connect

         22  that and their whole way of life is going to be

         23  destroyed by traffic.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are saying

         25  what Mr. Kennedy also said, is that many people
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          2  upstate want the same protection that we want down

          3  here.

          4                 MR. FERGUSON: That's right. And I am

          5  giving you anecdotal --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are giving

          7  me anecdotal material.

          8                 MR. FERGUSON: I give you one other

          9  and it is in there, this is really a big one. This

         10  woman went and moved out of New York with her family

         11  to go up there and one week there she turned on her

         12  faucet and no water. And when the water was there it

         13  was often polluted. In other words, they are

         14  draining the aquifer. In other words, this tax based

         15  argument to begin with is faulty. The residential

         16  costs more taxes, about a dollar twenty-five for

         17  every dollar you get, it costs more to have

         18  residential development, and on second place, if

         19  they violate these laws, these laws protect them as

         20  well and the people up there are beginning to

         21  realize it.

         22                 So, we need, and the City Council

         23  could welcome the people from upstate in a quite

         24  different way. Not in a combative way, but we are

         25  really on the same page because the people that
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          2  speak from the development point of view, do not

          3  necessarily represent all of the people in those --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I agree with you

          5  and I am going to hear this testimony, I just think

          6  it should be better organized and have their voices

          7  heard as well as the developmental people.

          8                 MR. FERGUSON: Well, they are getting

          9  there.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: That would be

         11  great.

         12                 MR. FERGUSON: They are a little

         13  behind but they are getting there.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you so

         15  much.

         16                 MR. FERGUSON: Well, I want to just

         17  mention two other things.

         18                 One, this Route 120. I just heard

         19  that the Governor has just signed a notice. We

         20  thought there was an executive order --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What Eugina

         22  Flatow was making reference to?

         23                 MR. FERGUSON: Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I asked for that

         25  memorandum, I want to see it.
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          2                 MR. FERGUSON: Right. There was

          3  supposed to have been an executive order that the

          4  DOT had to obey all watershed regulations and this

          5  is a phenomenal change.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, we have

          7  got to see that.

          8                 MR. FERGUSON: And the other thing is,

          9  about Bill Stasiuk and whether he is a good guy or a

         10  bad guy.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Well, let me

         12  tell you this, Bill Stasiuk needs no defense as far

         13  as we are concerned.

         14                 MR. FERGUSON: Well, I have had some

         15  problems. We have argued publicly --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Bill Stasiuk has

         17  been involved in this process since the --

         18                 MR. FERGUSON: I know. We may disagree

         19  on a valuation of Bill Stasiuk, but all I am saying

         20  is I appreciated the stand he took on this

         21  particular issue of the wetland permitting, and you

         22  know, I commented, I shook his hand on that, because

         23  whether he is a Jekyl or Hyde or whatever, all I

         24  care about is the water, and if somebody, you know,

         25  moves in that direction. But we haven't seen the
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          2  enforcement, I have to tell you. And we have been up

          3  there, I have been up there so much they think I

          4  live in Westchester, and I can tell you that the

          5  enforcement, and I can give you anecdotal stuff to

          6  support --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You and Mr.

          8  Carter ought to get together on that one.

          9                 MR. FERGUSON: So, that's basically,

         10  you know, there is a lot of work that has been going

         11  on, people in New York going up there and people

         12  coming --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I want you to

         14  know I really appreciate the work you have put in

         15  and the time and effort that you do. It is really

         16  appreciated. We do listen to you and we want to hear

         17  from you.

         18                 MR. FERGUSON: I have just -- can I

         19  quote to end the thing a president? I just was

         20  hearing this: "We must handle the water, the wood,

         21  the grasses, so that we will hand them on to our

         22  children and children's in better and not worse

         23  shape than we got them."

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Teddy Roosevelt?

         25                 MR. FERGUSON: " Public rights come

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            225

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  first and private interests second. Every man holds

          3  his property subject to the general right of the

          4  community to regulate its use."

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Teddy Roosevelt?

          6                 MR. FERGUSON: Yes.

          7                 And the last quote, Ed Heelan, a

          8  developer in Croton Watershed, who is suing the City

          9  for $11 billion, as you may have heard, is fond of

         10  saying, "Last time I checked this was still

         11  America."

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: What a wonderful

         13  country.

         14                 MR. FERGUSON: Last time I checked it

         15  was America the beautiful.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you so

         17  much.

         18                 Karen Argenti, last but certainly not

         19  least. Welcome once again.

         20                 MS. ARGENTI: Thank you for holding

         21  this hearing.

         22                 My name is Karen Argenti, and I have

         23  lived my entire life in the Bronx. My experience is

         24  working for the City Council President and State

         25  Senator, City Council Member and former Community
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          2  Board 7 in the Bronx Chair, so when the DEP

          3  assaulted our neighborhood with the prospects of

          4  constructing a massive industrial plan in our

          5  backyard I thought I knew what to do.

          6                 We formed the Friends of Jerome Park

          7  Reservoir to fight the building of the Croton Water

          8  Filtration Plant. However, that was before I heard

          9  about Wetlands and SWMPs. It was before I heard

         10  about pollution of the drinking water supply by

         11  upstate communities. It was before I found out that

         12  the City of New York succumbed to the fight to

         13  control our watershed because they did not have the

         14  political will. I didn't really know what they were

         15  talking about.

         16                 Anyhow, because they never did it

         17  before, and due to mistakes made by some of the

         18  regulators, we convinced the DEP to pursue a dual

         19  track approach and studied the non-filtration

         20  alternative to building a plant in Croton.

         21                 From that study, whatever happened to

         22  it, we learned that to protect the Croton Watershed

         23  enough not to build a filtration plant, you had to

         24  do many things. Among those things is the creation

         25  of 300 acres of wetlands. I have to admit that the
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          2  consultants didn't go exactly far enough, and Paul

          3  will explain this all to you, that we really needed

          4  a bunch of carbon shrinks (sic) like shrubs around

          5  the new wetlands and a couple of uplands, but

          6  nevertheless, it was clear we needed wetlands.

          7                 If you need wetlands to avoid

          8  building a filtration plant, then the reverse must

          9  be true.

         10                 If you destroy wetlands, which is

         11  what the upstate communities are asking for, you

         12  will have to build a filtration plant, and now I am

         13  not just talking about the Croton.

         14                 In New York City, in the New York

         15  City watershed, we need the regional conditions

         16  which state they can issue no permits.

         17                 I urge you to protect the sensitive

         18  watersheds and New York City's drinking water

         19  supply.

         20                 Moreover, it will maintain the

         21  majestic natural beauty, the most exquisite in the

         22  world, that first attracted settlements to these

         23  areas. Make no mistake about it, this is a New York

         24  City environmental justice issue.

         25                 Rather than look for other less
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          2  adverse alternatives, someone upstate may be

          3  polluting the source of our drinking water downstate

          4  here.

          5                 Without these regional conditions,

          6  they will destroy wetlands, they will exasperate

          7  erosion, they will pollute water sources, all the

          8  while downstate residents, elected officials and

          9  appointed officials are without the political will.

         10                 I cut it a little. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 The hearing is adjourned.

         14                 (Hearing concluded at 3:40 p.m.)
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